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n behalf of 

the employees 

directors of 

Frederick County 

Bank (the "Bank") and its holding company, Frederick 

County Bancorp, Inc. (the "Company") (OTC Bullefin 

Board: FCBI), it is my pleasure to present the 2009 Annual 

Report of the Company to our shareholders. 

For the quarter ended December 31, 2009, the Company 

recorded net income of $505,000, which included a provision 

for loan losses of $300,000, and a gain from tbe sale of 

securifies in the amount of $118,000, with diluted earnings 

per share of $0.34, as compared to net income of $154,000, 

which included a provision for loan losses of $475,000, and 

diluted earnings per share of $0.10 recorded for the fourth 

quarter of 2008. The Company eamed $1.05 million, which 

included a provision forloanlossesof$l.18 million anda gain 

from the sale of securities in the amount of $235,000, with 

diluted earnings per share of $0.71 for the full year of 2009 

as compared to $1.04 mihion in earnings, which included a 

provision for loan losses of $935,000, and diluted eamings 

per share of $0.69 for the same period in 2008. The increased 

provision for loan losses reflects management's recognition 

that the continued economic weakness during 2009 would 

necessitate a higher level of reserves. The Company has seen 

a slight decrease in its ratio of nonperforming assets to total 

assets which is 0.56% and a modest increase in its rafio of 

net charge-offs to average loans which is 0.56% for 2009. 

Total assets as of December 31, 2009, stood at $258.6 

milhon, with deposits of $219.3 million and gross loans of 

$214.9 million, representing increases of 1.6%, 1.1% and 

1.5% respectively, compared to the fuh year of 2008. The 

Company's relatively flat asset, deposit and loan growth 

reflect management's determination to limit balance sheet 

growth, thereby strengthening its capital and liquidity 

positions during this period of continued economic 

weakness. While 2009 continued to be an extremely difficult 

year for the banking industry, we are pleased that the Bank's 

performance compared favorably with many banks of similar 

size, that we remained profitable, and that we ended the year 

with solid capital and liquidity positions. 

After intentionally keeping asset growth flat for three 

years in an effort to preserve capital, we are positioned 

to begin growing the Bank once again. We do, however, 

recognize that the economy remains weak, with the potential 

for economic contraction once federal stimulus spending is 

withdrawn. We are also very concerned that the rise in interest 

rates (borrowing costs) which is anticipated to begin later 

this year, will put further stress on the economy. While we 

remain confident that the local (Frederick County) economy 

has and will continue to benefit significantly as a result of 

our proximity to Washington, D.C. (federal spending), we 

are not immune to economic pressures. We believe that 

residential real estate values are at or near bottom in terms 

of valuations, however, we feel that further weakness (i.e. 

higher vacancy rates, lower lease rates, and consequently 

lower values) in the national, regional and local commercial 

real estate sector will have a negative impact on community 

bank balance sheets and income. That will be evidenced by 

continued news of bank failures, particularly among those 

banks which have high concentrations of commercial real 

estate exposure. While we may have several Maryland bank 

failures during 2010, most of the failures will continue to be 

outside of Maryland. 

In summary, be assured tbat we are a very healthy bank and 

are ready to retum to our growth strategy. We do, however, 

recognize the perils of a weakened economy where many 

uncertainties continue to exist. We remain determined to 

protect the interest of our shareholders, depositors and 

employees, by continuing to operate Frederick County Bank 

in a safe and sound manner. 

In closing, we believe that our most valuable assets are 

our customers, shareholders, and employees, for which 

we are very grateful. More than anything else, the Bank's 

performance reflects your patronage, continued enthusiasm 

and contributions during these very challenging times. 

Sincerely, ^ 

Martin S. Lapera 

President and CEO 



Selected Financial Data 
The following table sets forth certain 
selected financial data concerning the 
Company, and is qualified in its entirety by 
the detailed information and consolidated 
financial statements, including notes 
thereto, included elsewhere herein. 

Years Ended December 31, 

(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts) 

Summary of Operating Results: 
Total interest income 
Total interest expense 

Net interest income 
Provision for loan losses 

2009 

$ 14,001 
5,274 

8,727 
1,175 

2008 

$ 15,480 
7,116 

8,364 
935 

2007 

$ 16,247 
7,977 

8,270 
491 

2006 

$ 13,735 
5,649 

8,086 
213 

2005 

S 10,719 
3,252 

7,467 
450 

Net interest income after provision for loan losses 7,552 7,429 7,779 
Security gains (losses) 235 26 27 
(Loss) gain on sale of foreclosed properties (37) 15 — 
Gain from insurance proceeds — — 230 
Other noninterest income (excluding gains and losses) 577 535 410 
Noninterest expenses 6,791 6,526 6,172 

7,873 

338 
5,229 

Per Share Data: 
Basic earnings 
Diluted eamings 
Dividends declared 
Book value at period-end 
Shares outstanding at period-end 
Weighted average shares outstanding: 

Basic 
Diluted 

B 0.72 
0.71 

14.88 
1,461,802 

1,461,079 
1,475,068 

i 0.71 
0.69 

14.11 
1,460,802 

1,460,670 
1,503,372 

$ 1.07 
1.03 

13.41 
1,460,602 

1,460,125 
1,518,155 

i 1.32 
1.26 

12.27 
1,458,602 

1,458,602 
1,526,911 

7,017 
(8) 

282 
4,596 

Income before provision for income taxes 
Provision for income taxes 

Net income 
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of taxes 

Comprehensive income $ 

1,536 
488 

1,048 
78 

1,126 $ 

1,479 
441 

1,038 
(9) 

1,029 $ 

2,274 
714 

1,560 
92 

1,652 $ 

2,982 
1,062 

1,920 
85 

2,005 $ 

2,695 
863 

1,832 
(177) 

1,655 

i 1.26 
1.20 

10.89 
1,458,602 

1,458,361 
1,526,996 

Other Data (At Year-End): 
Assets 
Investments 
Loans 
Deposits 
Short-term borrowings 
Long-term borrowings 
Junior subordinated debentures 
Shareholders' equity 

$ 258,559 
25,643 

214,943 
219,312 

500 
10,000 

6,186 
21,750 

$ 254,562 
21,639 

211,840 
216,883 

10,000 
6,186 

20,612 

255,991 
28,952 

209,011 
219,228 

10,000 
6,186 

19,580 

$ 234,951 
30,112 

173,954 
209,378 

6,186 
17,893 

$ 207,540 
22,019 

155,341 
190,055 

15,888 

Performance Ratios: 
Return on average assets 
Retum on average shareholders' equity 
Allowance for loan losses to total loans 
Nonperforming assets to total assets 
Ratio of net charge-offs to average loans 
Average equity to average assets 
Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets 
Total capital to risk-weighted assets 

0.40% 
4.92% 
1.45% 
0.56% 
0.56% 
8.19% 

11.81% 
13.06% 

0.40% 
5.12% 
1.47% 
0.61% 
0.21% 
7.83% 

11.59% 
12.84% 

0.63% 
8.35% 
1.26% 
0.12% 
0.01% 
7.58% 

11.14% 
12.29% 

0.90% 
11.34% 

1.25% 
0.03% 

7.90% 
12.10% 
13.19% 

1.01% 
12.05% 

1.26% 

8.36% 
9.36% 

10.49% 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Emil D. Bennett 
President/Owner; Rock Creek Realty 

John N. Burdette* 
Chairman of the Board 
Principal; Offutt, Horman and 
Burdette, P.A. 

J. Denham Crum 
General Managing Partner; 
Crumland Farms, LLC 

George E. Dredden, Jr. 
Former President; GED, Inc. 

William S. Fout 
Former President/Owner 
William S. Fout, Inc. 

Helen G. Hahn 
Treasurer; Evangelical Lutheran 
Church 
Former SVP Operations at FCNB Bank 

William J. Kissner 
Vice President/Co-owner; 
Miscellaneous Metals, Inc. 

Martin S. Lapera* 
President and Chief Executive Officer 

Kenneth G. McCombs 
Vice President/Co-owner; Miscellaneous 
Metals, Inc. 

Farhad Memarsadeghi 
Chief Executive Officer; 
Admar Custom Homes, Iric. 

Raymond Raedy* 
Vice Chairman of the Board 
Investor/Business Owner 

* Titles are both Frederick County Bancorp, 
Inc. and Frederick County Bank 

FREDERICK COUNTY 
BANCORP, INC. OFFICERS 

Chairman of the Board 
John N. Burdette 

Vice Chairman & Secretary 
Raymond Raedy 

President & Chief Executive Officer 
Martin S. Lapera 

Executive Vice President & 
Chief Financial Officer 
William R. Talley Jr. 

FREDERICK COUNTY 
BANK OFFICERS 

President & Chief Executive Officer 
Martin S. Lapera 

Executive Vice President & 
Chief Financial Officer 
William R. Talley Jr. 

Senior Vice President & 
Chief Technology Officer 
Jay M. House 

Senior Vice Presidents 
Denise Guyton-Boyer 
Richard A. Davies 
Taitia L. Elliott 
Terrence P. Lee 
Fern W. Mercer 
Craig P. Russell 
Wanda S.Shade 
Crystal L. Wiles 

Vice Presidents 
Mary K. Barry 
Michael S. Burrier 
Lori C. Cromwell 
Yvonne M. Reeder 
Joseph A. Wolf 
Wendy L. Wotring 

Assistant Vice Presidents 
Barbara A. Biddinger 
Lisa D. Mulks 
Ann M. Seiss 

Branch Officer, Assistant Branch 
Manager 
Susan J. Barthlow 
Michael D. Mclntyre 
Joy L. Reichard 
Shiriey S. Shadle 

Credit Officer 
Kevin L. Kisner 

Loan Operations Officer 
Anjeannette R, Sparkman 

Senior Consumer Lending Officer 
Jewell A. Kemp 

Consumer Lending Officer 
Gail R. Boggs 

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS 

7 North Market Street 
Frederick, MD 21701 
301.620.1400 

FREDERICK COUNTY BANK 
LOCATIONS 

Patrick Center 
30 West Patrick Street 
Frederick, MD 21701 

Antietam Center 
198 Thomas Johnson Drive 
Frederick, MD 21702 

Walkersville 
200 Commerce Drive 
Walkersville, MD 21793 

Crestwood 
6910 Crestwood Boulevard 
Frederick, MD 21703 

Administrative Office 
1 North Market Street, 2nd Floor 
Frederick, MD 21701 

24-HOUR TELEPHONE 
BANKING 
877.236.1485 

INTERNET 
www.frederickcountybank.com 

CUSTOMER SERVICE 
301.620.1400 

http://www.frederickcountybank.com


FREDERICK COUNTY BANCORR INC. 
7 North Market Street 

Frederick, Maryland 21701 

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS 
To be held April 13, 2010 

To the Shareholders of Frederick County Bancorp, Inc.: 

The Annual Meeting of Shareholders of Frederick County Bancorp, Inc. will be held at: 

Dutch's Daughter 
581 Himes Avenue 

Frederick, Maryland 

on April 13, 2010 at 7:00 p.m. for the following purposes: 

(1) To elect eleven (11) directors to serve until their successors are duly elected and qualified. 

(2) To ratify the appointment of Stegman & Company as the independent pubhc accounting firm 
to perform the audit of the Company's 2010 Consolidated Financial Statements 

(3) To transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting or any adjournment 
or postponement thereof. 

Shareholders of record as of the close of business on February 5, 2010 are entitled to notice of and 
to vote at the Annual Meeting or any adjournment or postponement of the meeting. 

By Order of the Board of Directors 

FREDERICK COUNTY BANCORR INC. 

Raymond Raedy 
Secretary . 

Frederick, Maryland 
March 5, 2010 

Please sign, date and return your proxy promptly, whether or not you plan to attend the meeting 
in person. No postage is required if mailed in the United States in the enclosed envelope. If you attend 
the meeting, you may, if you desire, revoke your proxy and vote in person. If your shares are not 
registered in your name, you will need additional information from your recordholder in order to vote 
in person. 
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FREDERICK COUNTY BANCORR INC. 
7 North Market Street 
Frederick, MD 21701 

ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS 
Proxy Statement 

This proxy statement is being sent to shareholders of Frederick County Bancorp, Inc., a Maryland 
corporation (the "Company"), in connection with the soUcitation of proxies by the Board of Directors 
of the Company for use at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held at 7:00 p.m. on April 13, 
2010 (the "Meeting"), and at any adjournment or postponement of the Meeting. The purposes of the 
Meeting are: 

(1) To elect eleven (11) directors to serve until their successors are duly elected and qualified. 

(2) To ratify the appointment of Stegman & Company as the independent public accounting firm 
to perform the audit of the Company's 2010 Consolidated Financial Statements. 

(3) To transact such other business as may properly come before the Meeting or any adjournment 
or postponement of the Meeting. 

The Meeting will be held at: 

Dutch's Daughter 
581 Himes Avenue 

Frederick, Maryland 

This proxy statement and proxy card are being sent to shareholders of the Company on or about 
March 5, 2010. A copy of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009, 
which includes our audited financial statements, also accompanies this proxy statement. 

VOTING RIGHTS AND PROXIES 

Voting Rights 

Only shareholders of record at the close of business on February 5, 2010 will be entitled to notice 
of and to vote at the Meeting or any adjournment or postponement of the Meeting. On that date, 
there were 1,461,802 shares of our common stock, par value $0.01 per share, outstanding, held by 
approximately 650 shareholders of record. The common stock is the only class of the Company's stock 
of which shares are outstanding. Each share of common stock is entitled to one vote on all matters 
submitted to a vote of the shareholders. Shareholders do not have the right to cumulate votes in the 
election of directors. The presence at the Meeting, in person or by proxy, of not less than a majority of 
the total number of outstanding shares of common stock is necessary to constitute a quorum. 

Proxies 

Properly executed proxies which are received by the Company in time to be voted at the Meeting 
will be voted as specified by the shareholder giving the proxy. In the absence of specific instructions, 
proxies received will be voted FOR the election of the nominees for election as directors, and FOR 
ratification of the appointment of Stegman & Company. Management does not know of any matters 
other than those described in this proxy statement that will be brought before the Meeting. If other 
matters are properly brought before the Meeting, the persons named in the proxy intend to vote the 
shares to which the proxies relate in accordance with their best judgment. 

The judges of election appointed by the Board of Directors for the Meeting will determine the 
presence "of a quorum and will tabulate the votes cast at the Meeting. Abstentions will be treated as 
present for purposes of determining a quorum, but as unvoted for purposes of determining the 
approval of any matter submitted to the vote of shareholders. If a broker indicates that he or she does 



not have discretionary authority to vote any shares of com'mon stock on a particular matter, such shares 
will be treated as present for general quorum purposes, but will not be considered as present or voted 
with respect to that matter. As a result of changes in the rules of the New York Stock Exchange 
applicable to its member brokerage firms, we expect that brokers will not vote shares on the election of 
directors unless they receive instructions from the beneficial owners of the shares they hold. If you hold 
your shares through a bank or broker, it is extremely important that you instruct your record holder 
how to vote your shares. 

Please sign, date, mark and promptly return the enclosed proxy in the postage paid envelope 
provided for this purpose in order to assure that your shares are voted. You may revoke your proxy at 
any time before it is voted at the Meeting: 

• by granting a later proxy with respect to the same shares; 

• by sending written notice to Raymond Raedy, Secretary of the Company, at the address noted 
above, at any time prior to the proxy being voted; or 

• by voting in person at the Meeting. 

Attendance at the Meeting will not, in itself, revoke a proxy. If your shares are held in the name 
of your bank or broker, you will need additional documentation from your record holder to vote in 
person at the meeting. Please see the voting form provided by your recordholder for additional 
informafion regarding the voting of your shares. 

Many shareholders whose shares are held in an account at a brokerage firm or bank will have the 
option to submit their proxies or voting instructions electronically through the Internet or by telephone. 
Shareholders should check the voting form or instructions provided by their recordholder to see which 
options are available. Shareholders submitting proxies or voting instructions electronically should 
understand that there may be costs associated with electronic access, such as usage charges from 
Internet access providers and telephone companies that would be borne by the shareholder. To revoke 
a proxy previously submitted electronically, a shareholder may simply submit a new proxy at a later 
date before the taking of the vote at the Meeting, in which case, the later submitted proxy will be 
recorded and the earlier proxy will be revoked. 

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for the Shareholder Meeting to be 
Held on April 13, 2010. This Proxy Statement and our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year 
ended December 31, 2009 are also available online at http://www.cfpproxy.com/5525. 

http://www.cfpproxy.com/5525


VOTING SECURITIES AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS 

The following table sets forth certain information as of February 5, 2010 concerning the number 
and percentage of shares of the Company's common stock beneficially owned by its directors, nominees 
for director, and executive officers for whom compensation information is included in this proxy 
statement, and by its directors and executive officers as a group. Except as otherwise indicated, all 
shares are owned directly, the named person possesses sole voting and sole investment power with 
respect to aU such shares, and none of such shares are pledged as security. Except as indicated below, 
the Company knows of no other person or persons, other than street name nominee owners, who, 
beneficially or of record, own in excess of five percent of the Company's common stock. Further, the 
Company is not aware of any arrangement, which at a subsequent date may result in a change of 
control of the Company. 

Year First Number of Shares Percentage of Class 
Name Age Elected Director(l) Beneficially Owned(2) Beneficially Owned(3) 

Directors 

Emil D. Bennett 63 

John N. Burdette 82 

J. Denham Crum 64 

George E. Dredden, Jr 80 

William S. Fout 70 

Helen G. Hahn. 73 

William J. Kissner 69 

Martin S. Lapera 57 
9 North Market Street Frederick, 
Maryland 21701 

Kenneth G. McCombs 70 

Farhad Memarsadeghi 64 

Raymond Raedy 69 

Executive Officers 

William R. Talley, Jr 54 

All directors and executive officers as 
a group (12 persons) 

2002 

2001 

2001 

2001 

2001 

2004 

2001 

2001 

2001 

2002 

2001 

N/A 

• 37,800 

42,420(4) 

36,920(5) 

4,400(6) 

32,620(7) 

1,500 

63,220(8) 

114,728(9) 

59,171(10) 

63,600(11) 

50,457(12) 

37,994(13) 

544,830(14) 

2.59% 

2.88% 

2.51% 

0.30% 

2.21% 

0.10% 

4.29% 

7.73% 

4.02% 

4.35% 

3.42% 

2.57% 

34.63% 

(1) Includes service as a director of the Bank prior to formation of the Company. 

(2) In accordance with Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act, a person is deemed to be the beneficial 
owner, for purposes of this table, of anyshares of common stock with respect to which he or she 
has sole or shared voting and/or investment power, including any shares which he or she has the 
right to acquire within 60 days. The table includes shares owned by spouses, other immediate 
family members, in trust, shares held in retirement accounts or retirement funds for the benefit of 
the named individuals, and other forms of ownership, over which shares the persons named in the 
table possess voting and investment power. Certain shares beneficially owned by the Company's 
directors and executive officers may be held in accounts with third party firms, where such shares 
may from time to time be subject to a security interest for margin credit provided in accordance 
with such firm's policies. 

(3) Based on 1,461,802 shares outstanding as of February 5, 2010, except with respect to persons 
holding options to acquire common stock exercisable within sixty days of that date, in which event 
represents percentage of shares issued and outstanding plus the number of such options held by 



such person, and all directors and officers as a group, which represents percentage of shares 
outstanding plus the number of such options held by all such persons as a group. 

(4) The shares attributable to Mr. Burdette include 7,000 shares held in trust as to which he has 
voting and investment power. Also included in the total shares owned are options, currently 
exercisable, to purchase 11,920 shares of the Company's common stock. 

(5) The shares attributed to Mr. Crum include 16,000 shares as to which Mr. Crum shares voting and 
investment power with his wife, and 9,000 shares held in trust as to which Mr. Crum has voting 
and investment power. Also included in the total shares owned are options, currently exercisable, 
to purchase 11,920 shares of the Company's common stock. 

(6) The shares attributed to Mr. Dredden include 3,150 shares as to which Mr. Dredden shares voting 
and investment power with his wife. Also included in the total shares owned are options, currently 
exercisable, to purchase 1,250 shares of the Company's common stock. 

(7) The shares attributed to Mr. Fout include 3,500 shares as to which Mr. Fout shares voting and 
investment power with his wife and 2,000 shares owned by his wife as to which Mr. Fout disclaims 
beneficial ownership. Also included in the total shares owned are options, currently exercisable, to 
purchase 11,920 shares of the Company's common stock. 

(8) The shares attributed to Mr. Kissner include 21,000 shares held in trust as to which Mr. Kissner 
has voting and investment power and 30,000 shares owned by Mr. Kissner's wife, as to the latter of 
which Mr. Kissner disclaims beneficial ownership. Also included in the total shares owned are 
options, currently exercisable, to purchase 11,920 shares of the Compaiiy's common stock. 

(9) The shares attributed to Mr. Lapera include 51,258 shares as to which Mr. Lapera shares voting 
and investment power with his wife, 15,700 shares owned by Mr. Lapera's wife and 750 shares 
owned by Mr. Lapera's wife with their daughter, both of the latter two items as to which 
Mr. Lapera disclaims beneficial ownership. Also included in the total shares owned are options, 
currently exercisable, to purchase 21,920 shares of the Company's common stock. 

(10) The shares attributed to Mr. McCombs include 47,251 shares as to which Mr. McCombs shares 
voting and investment power with his wife. Also included in the total shares owned are options, 
currently exercisable, to purchase 11,920 shares of the Company's common stock. 

(11) The shares attributed to Mr. Memarsadeghi include 31,300 shares owned by Mr. Memarsadeghi's 
wife and 8,000 shares owned by his daughters, as to all of which Mr. Memarsadeghi disclaims 
beneficial ownership. 

(12) The shares attributed to Mr. Raedy include 31,944 shares as to which Mr. Raedy shares voting and 
investment powers with his wife and their sons and 1,614 shares owned by Mr. Raedy's wife, as to 
which Mr. Raedy disclaims beneficial ownership. Also included in the total shares owned are 
options, currently exercisable, to purchase 11,920 shares of the Company's common stock. 

(13) The shares attributed to Mr. Talley include 11,524 shares as to which Mr. Talley shares voting and 
investment power with his wife and 3,800 shares owned by Mr. Talley's wife. Also included in the 
total shares owned are options, currently exercisable, to purchase 16,920 shares of the Company's 
common stock. 

(14) Includes options; currently exercisable, to purchase an aggregate of 111,610 shares of common 
stock. . 
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PROPOSAL 1—ELECTION OF DIRECTORS 

Eleven (11) directors will be elected at the Meeting for a one-year period until the 2011 Annual 
Meeting of Shareholders and until their successors have been elected and qualified. Unless authority is 
withheld, all proxies in response to this solicitation will be voted for the election of the nominees listed 
below. Each nominee has indicated a willingness to serve if elected. However, if any nominee becomes 
unable to serve, the proxies received in response to this solicitation wiU be voted for a replacement 
nominee selected in accordance with the best judgment of the proxy holders named therein. Each of 
the nominees for election as director currently serves as a director, and has served as a director since 
the Company became the holding company for Frederick County Bank (the "Bank"), except for 
Mrs. Hahn, who became a director in July 2004. The term of service indicated for each director 
includes service as a director of the Bank before the holding company was established. 

The Board of Directors has determined that each director other than Mr. Lapera is an 
"independent director" as that term is defined in Rule 5605(a)(2) of The NASDAQ Stock Market (the 
"NASDAQ"). In making this determination, the Board of Directors was aware of and considered the 
loan and deposit relationships with directors and their related interests which the Company enters into 
in the ordinary course of its business, and the lease and consulting arrangements which are disclosed 
under "Transactions with Related Parties" in this proxy statement. 

'Vote Required and Recommendation of the Board of Directors. Nominees receiving a plurality of 
the votes cast at the Meeting in the election of directors will be elected as directors in the order of the 
number of votes received. The Board of Directors recommends that shareholders vote FOR each of the 
nominees for election to the Board of Directors. 

Nominees for Election as Directors 

Set forth below is certain information concerning the nominees for election as director of the 
Company. Except as otherwise indicated, the occupation listed has been such person's principal 
occupation for at least the last five years. 

Emil D. Bennett Mr. Bennett is currently President and owner of Rock Creek Realty, a 
full-service real estate firm headquartered in Thurmont, Maryland. Mr. Bennett is currently on the 
Board of Directors of Mt. Olivet Cemetery and Vice President of Lorelei II Condo Associates in 
Ocean City. He is very involved in the local community and the National Association of Realtors. 
Mr. Bennett's director qualifications include his tenure on the Company's board of directors since 2002, 
which includes training on an annual basis. 

John N. Burdette. Mr. Burdette is a principal in the Frederick, Maryland, law firm of Offutt, 
Horman, Burdette, P.A., where his practice concentrates on Federal tax law, estate planning, and 
probate administration. He joined Offutt, Horman, & Burdette in 1983 following retirement as a Senior 
Executive from the Internal Revenue Service. Mr. Burdette received degrees in accounting and law 
from the University of Baltimore, and is a member of the Maryland Bar. He has served as a Director 
of several tax-exempt corporations; and is a member of the Rotary Club of Frederick. 
Mr. Burdette's director qualifications include his tenure on the Company's and the Bank's board of 
directors since inception of the Bank in 2001, which includes training on an annual basis, his position 
as a prior board member of the QUADS Trust Company, in addition to his community contacts. 

/. Denham Crum. Mr. Crum is Owner/Manager of Crumland Farms, LLC, Frederick, Maryland, a 
family business, which he joined in 1968. After graduating from Frederick High School, he attended 
Frederick Community College, and received his B.S. in Dairy Science from Iowa State University. 
Mr. Crum has been involved in many farm organizations, including the Farm Bureau, Capital Milk 
Producers, Maryland Virginia Milk Producers Coop, and the Holstein Freisian Council. His club 
memberships include the Rotary Club of Frederick, Frederick Jaycees (Director), Frederick Catoctin 
Club (Director), and Frederick Elks. Mr. Crum has served on the local and corporate boards of the 
Homewood Retirement Centers and has volunteered his time with the Frederick Community 
Foundation. He is a member of the Frederick County Planning Commission. He also has served on the 
Banner School Board, was active in the PTA of Monocacy Middle and Thomas Johnson High Schools, 
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and has volunteered for many church youth activities. Mr. Crum's director qualifications include his 
tenure on the Company's and the Bank's board of directors since inception of the Bank in 2001, which 
includes training on an annual basis, in addition to his community contacts. 

George E. Dredden, Jr. Mr. Dredden is the former Owner and Publisher of The County Globe 
Newspaper. After 35 years as a Federal Government Manager, he started Sussex Group, LLC, a 
management consulting firm. He is currently Chairman of the Audit Committee for the Episcopal 
Ministries to the Aging, Inc., as well as a member of the Board of Trustees, member of the Copper 
Ridge Inc. Board of Directors, and a member of the Frederick County Office of Economic 
Development Business Development Advisory Council. He is a past President of the Chamber of 
Commerce of Frederick County, and past Secretary of the Frederick Memorial Heath Care System. 
Mr. Dredden is a member of St. John the Evangelist Catholic Church in Frederick, Maryland; he also 
is a member of the Church's Finance Committee and a member of the Frederick Rotary Club. 
Mr. Dredden's director qualifications include his tenure on the Company's and the Bank's board of 
directors since inception of the Bank in 2001, which includes training on an annual basis, his tenure on 
the First Bank of Frederick board of directors, in addition to his community contacts. 

William S. Fout Until 2007, Mr. Fout was the President of William S. Fout, Inc., Frederick, 
Maryland, a crane and rigging service, which he founded in 1973. He is a graduate of Frederick High 
School and of the Virginia Military Institute with a Bachelor of Science degree in Civil Engineering. 
Mr. Fout is a Fellow member of the American Society of Civil Engineers and is a registered engineer 
in both Maryland and Virginia. From 1969 through 1979, he served as the Frederick County Highway 
Engineer. Mr. Fout was a member of the Frederick County Planning Commission from 1983-1993, 
acting as chairman during 1993. He currently serves as President of the WSF Family LLLP, a local real 
estate investment entity. Mr. Font's director qualifications include his tenure on the Company's and the 
Bank's board of directors since inception of the Bank in 2001, which includes training on an annual 
basis, in addition to his community contacts. 

Helen G. Hahn. Mrs. Hahn has 35 years of banking experience in local community banking, 
starting her career as a courier with Frederick County National Bank (FCNB) and ultimately reaching 
the position of Senior Vice President of Operations with FCNB Bank before her retirement in 2001. 
She is currently employed as Treasurer for the Evangelical Lutheran Church in Frederick. She is also a 
member of the Board of Directors of The Loats Foundation, which provides scholarship assistance to 
students attending area colleges and universities. Mrs. Hahn's involvement in the local community 
includes many years of service on the United Way's Allocation Committees. She is a member of the 
Evangelical Lutheran Church, where she is an active participant in the music ministry of the church. 
IVlrs. Hahn resides in Frederick County. Mrs. Hahn's director qualifications include her tenure on the 
Company's and Bank's board of directors since 2004, which includes training on an annual basis, her 
banking experience as noted above, in' addition to her community contacts. 

William J. Kissner. Mr. Kissner is a 50% owner and the Vice President, Engineering of 
Miscellaneous Metals, Inc., Frederick, Maryland, a steel fabrication and erection business, which he 
co-founded in 1977. He attended the Columbia Technical School of Arlington, Virginia and the 
Washington School of Drafting, in Washington, DC. Miscellaneous Metals, Inc. employs 165 people and 
has annual sales of $22 million. Mr. Kissner's director qualifications include his tenure on the 
Company's and Bank's board of directors since inception of the Bank in 2001, which includes training 
on an annual basis, in addition to his community contacts. 

Martin S. Lapera. Mr. Lapera, a resident of Frederick County, Maryland, is President and Chief 
Executive Officer of the Company. Mr. Lapera was Executive Vice President of FCNB Corp, Frederick, 
Maryland, until its acquisition by BB&T Corporafion in January 2001, and Executive Vice President, 
Chief Operating Officer and Chief Lending Officer of FCNB Bank, its $1.6 billion subsidiary, and 
Senior Vice President and Senior Credit Officer of the Potomac region of BB&T Bank (comprised 
primarily of Frederick County), until May 2001. Prior to joining FCNB Bank in 1985, Mr. Lapera was 
Vice President of First National Bank of Maryland. Mr. Lapera received a degree in Business from 
Towson State University and an MBA from the University of Baltimore. 
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Kenneth G. McCombs. Mr. McCombs is a 50% owner and President of Miscellaneous 
Metals, Inc., Frederick, Maryland, a steel fabrication and erection business, which he co-founded in 
1977. He attended the Columbia Technical School of Arlington, Virginia and the Washington School of 
Drafting, in Washington, DC. Miscellaneous Metals, Inc. employs 165 people and has annual sales of 
$22 million. Mr. McCombs' director qualifications include his tenure on the Company's and the Bank's 
board of directors since inception of the Bank in 2001, which includes training on an annual basis, in 
addition to his community contacts. 

Farhad Memarsadeghi. Mr. Memarsadeghi is currently Chief Executive Officer and owner of 
Admar Custom Homes, Inc., President of Memar Corp. (formerly Admar Construction, Inc.) and a 
general partner in several affiliated partnerships. Mr. Memarsadeghi moved to Maryland in 1979 and 
established Admar Construction, Inc. During the past, 27 years, Mr. Memarsadeghi and his firms have 
developed several subdivisions and hundreds of residential units in and around Frederick and 
Washington Counties in Maryland. He graduated from Tehran University with a Master's Degree in 
Architecture. He is very involved in the local community, and is currently a member of the National 
Association of Home Builders. Mr. Memarsadeghi's director qualifications include his tenure on the 
Company's and Bank's board of directors since 2002, which includes training on an annual basis, in 
addition to his community contacts. 

Raymond Raedy. Mr. Raedy is the primary organizer of the Company. He is an investor and 
business owner. Since 1980, Mr. Raedy has owned several businesses. He currently is a partner in one 
pharmacy and owns a real estate investment firm. He is a graduate of the University of Notre Dame 
and the Washington College of Law at the American University. He is a member of the Maryland Bar, 
but has not engaged in the practice of law since 1983. Mr. Raedy has held positions at the American 
Enterprise Institute, the Republican National Committee, the Maryland Legislature, and the United 
States Senate in the Sergeant at Arms Office. He has been Counsel to the National Society of Public 
Accountants, the Health Insurance Association of America, the American Bankers Associations, and an 
insurance brokerage firm, Alexander & Alexander. Mr. Raedy has been a lector at his church and 
served as President of the Rotary Club of Frederick, Maryland. Mr. Raedy's director qualifications 
include his tenure on the Company's and Bank's board of directors since inception in 2001, which 
includes training on an annual basis, in addition to his community contacts. 

Executive Officers who are not Directors 

William R. Talley, Jr. Mr. Talley, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the 
Company and the Bank, was previously Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Bank. 
Prior to joining the Bank he was Comptroller and Assistant Treasurer of FCNB Corp, Frederick, 
Maryland, until its acquisition by BB&T Corporation in January 2001, and Senior Vice President and 
Comptroller of FCNB Bank, its $1.6 billion subsidiary, until the merger of FCNB Bank into BB&T 
Bank in March 2001. He received his BS in Accounting from Mount Saint Mary's College and is a 
member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is also the Treasurer and Chair 
of the Finance Committee for the Board of Trustees for the Frederick Community College Foundation, 
a member of Investment Committee of the Board of Trustees for the Record Street Home for the 
Aged, Treasurer of Rotary International District 7620 and a member of the Rotary Club of Carroll 
Creek. 

Meetings, Committees and Procedures of the Board of Directors 

Meetings. The Board of Directors of the Company met twelve times (12) during 2009. All 
members of the Board of Directors, except for Mr. Dredden, attended at least 75% of the meetings 
held by the Board of Directors and by all committees on which such member served during the 2009 
fiscal year or any portion thereof 

Audit Committee. The Board of Directors has a standing Audit Committee. The Audit Committee 
assists the Board of Directors of the Company in exercising its fiduciary responsibilities for oversight of 
audit and related matters, including corporate accounting, internal controls and regulatory comphance. 
Its duties include: monitoring the Company's internal controls and procedures; recommending the 
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selection of the independent registered public accounting firm; reviewing the scope of audits conducted 
by the independent registered public accounting firm, as well as the results of their audits; and 
reviewing policies relating to compliance with applicable banking and other laws. The Board of 
Directors has adopted a written charter for the Audit Committee, a copy of which is included as 
Attachment A to this proxy statement. The Audit Committee is currently comprised of 
Messrs. Dredden, Fout, Kissner (Chairman) and Memarsadeghi. Each of the members of the Audit 
Committee is independent, as determined under NASDAQ Rule 5605(a)(2) and Rule 5605(c)(2)(A). 
During the 2009 fiscal year, the Audit Committee met four (4) times. 

The audit committee is also responsible for the pre-approval of all non-audit services provided by 
the Company's independent registered public accounting firm. Non-audit services are only provided by 
the Company's auditors to the extent permitted by law. Pre-approval is required unless a "de minimus" 
exception is met. To qualify for the "de minimus" exception, the aggregate amount of all such services 
provided to the Company must constitute not more than five percent of the total amount of revenues 
paid by the Company to its independent registered public accounting firm during the fiscal year in 
which the non-audit services are provided; such services were not recognized by the Company at the 
time of the engagement to be non-audit services; and the non-audit services are promptly brought to 
the attention of the committee and approved prior to the completion of the audit by the committee or 
by one or more members of the committee to whom authorify to grant such approval has been 
delegated by the committee. 

The Company does not currently have a director serving on the audit committee who it believes is 
an audit committee financial expert. It is the Company's desire to have its audit committee members to 
be not only independent, within the meaning of NASDAQ Rule 5605, but also to be free of any 
financial or other relafionships with the Company which are permitted under that definition, other than 
service on the Board of Directors and committees, share ownership and ordinary course banking 
relationships. The Board of Directors does not currently have any members who would qualify as an 
audit committee financial expert,'and who-meets this additional standard. While the Company is not 
averse to having a person who qualifies as an audit committee financial expert serving on the audit 
committee, it does not intend to appoint a new director solely for this purpose if such person would 
not also have the other qualities necessary or desirable for a successful director. 

Nominating Committee. The Board of Directors has a standing Corporate Governance and 
Compensation Committee which performs the functions of the nominating committee and recommends 
nominees for election as director to the Board of Directors. The committee is currently comprised of 
Mrs. Hahn and Messrs. Bennett (Chairman), Crum and McCombs. All of the members of the 
Corporate Governance and Compensation Committee are independent, directors within the meaning of 
NASDAQ Rule 5605(a)(2). The committee, which met six (6) times in 2009, does not have a charter. 

To date, the operations and management of the Company have not required the expansion of the 
Board of Directors, other than in connection with the election of Mrs. Hahn to replace a deceased 
director, and as such, the Board has not developed a formal policy for the identification or evaluation 
of nominees. In general, if the Board determined that expansion of the Board or replacement of a 
director was necessary or appropriate, the Board expects that it would review; through candidate 
interviews with members of the Board and management, consultation with the candidate's associates 
and through other means, a candidate's honesfy, integrity, reputation in and commitment to the 
community, judgment, personality and thinking style, willingness to invest in the Company, residence, 
willingness to devote the necessary time, potential conflicts of interest, independence, understanding of 
financial statements and issues, and the willingness and ability to engage in meaningful and constructive 
discussion regarding Company issues. The Board would review any special expertise, for example, 
expertise that qualifies a person as an audit committee financial expert, and membership or influence 
in a particular geographic or business target market, or other relevant business experience. The Board 
of Directors has not established a specific diversity component in its consideration of candidates for 
director. The Company's Board has always had niembers of both sexes, and members of a variety of 
races, ethnicities and cultural backgrounds. 
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The committee will consider director candidates nominated by shareholders during such times as 
the Company is actively considering obtaining new directors. Candidates recommended by shareholders 
will be evaluated, on the same basis as candidates proposed by the Board or other sources, by 
reviewing, through candidate interviews with members of the Board and management, consultation with 
the candidate's associates and through other means, a candidate's honesty, integrity, reputation in and 
commitment to the community, judgment, personality, and thinking style, willingness to invest in the 
Company, residence, willingness to devote the necessary time, potential conflicts of interest, 
independence, understanding of financial statements and issues, and the willingness and ability to 
engage in meaningful and constructive discussion regarding Company issues. The committee would also 
review any special expertise, for example, expertise that qualifies a person as an audit committee 
financial expert, and membership or influence in a particular geographic or business target market, or 
other relevant business experience. 

The Board will consider director candidates nominated by shareholders during such times as the 
Company is actively considering obtaining new directors. Shareholders who want to suggest a candidate 
for consideration should send a letter, addressed to: 

Chairman 
Corporate Governance & Compensation Committee 
Frederick County Bancorp, Inc. 
RO. Box 1100 
Frederick, MD 21702-0100 

The letter must include the following: (1) a statement that the writer is a shareholder and is 
proposing a candidate for consideration; (2) the name and contact information for the candidate; (3) a 
statement of the candidate's business and educational experience; (4) information regarding the 
candidate's qualifications to be director; (5) information regarding any relationship or understanding 
between the proposing shareholder and the candidate; and (6) a statement that the candidate is willing 
to be considered and willing to serve as director if nominated and elected. Because of the limited 
resources of the Company and the limited occasion to seek additional directors, there is no assurance 
that: all shareholder proposed candidates will be fully considered, all candidates will be considered' 
equally, or the proponent of any candidate or the proposed candidate will be contacted by the 
Chairman, and no undertaking to do so is implied by the willingness to consider candidates proposed 
by shareholders. Nominations must be received by November 1 to be considered for director elections 
to be held the following year. To date, the Company has not paid any fee to any third party to identify 
or evaluate, or to assist it in identifying or evaluating, potential nominees. 

Compensation Committee. The Corporate Governance and Compensation Committee performs 
the function of a compensation committee. The Committee is responsible for making recommendations 
to the Board of Directors regarding executive compensation, and options and incentive compensation 
awards and plans. Final determinations regarding executive officer compensation and option and 
incentive compensation awards are made by the independent members of the Board of Directors. The 
Board of Directors sets compensation levels for directors. To date, no compensation consultant has 
been engaged to assist the Committee or the Board of Directors in connection with establishing 
executive compensation. 

The Chief Executive Officer makes recommendation to the Committee regarding the level of 
compensation of the Chief Financial Officer. The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer 
recommend performance targets for purposes of the Company's annual incentive payments. 

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation. No member of the Corporate 
Governance and Compensation Committee has served as one of our officers or employees at any time. 
None of our executive officers serve as a member of the compensation committee of any other 
company that has an executive officer serving as a member of our Board of Directors. None of our 
executive officers serve as a member of the board of directors of any other company that has an 
executive officer serving as a member of the Corporate Governance and Compensation Committee. 
Except for loans and deposit transactions in the ordinary course of business made on substantially the 
same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those for comparable transactions with 
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unaffiliated parties, and not presenting more than the normal risk of collectability or other unfavorable 
features, no member of the Corporate Governance and Compensation Committee or any of their 
related interests has any material interest in any transaction involving more than $120,000 to which the 
Company is a party. 

Board Leadership Structure and Risk Oversight Role. The role of Chairman of the Board of 
Directors and President/Chief Executive Officer of the Company are not currently held by the same 
person. The Chairman of the Board has never been an officer or employee of the Company or the 
Bank. The foregoing structure is not mandated by any provision of law or our articles of incorporation 
or bylaws, but the Board of Directors currently believes that this structure provides for an appropriate 
balance of authority between management and the Board. The Board of Directors reserves the right to 
establish a different structure in the future. 

The Board of Directors of the Company, all of the members of which are also members of the 
Board of Directors of the Bank, is actively involved in the Company's and Bank's risk oversight 
activities, through the work of numerous committees of the Company and Bank, and the policy 
approval function of the Board of Directors of the Bank. 

Shareholders Communications with Board. Any shareholder is free to communicate in writing with 
the Board of Directors on matters pertaining to the Company by addressing their comments to: 

Chairman of the Board 
Frederick County Bancorp, Inc. 
RO. Box 1100 
Frederick, MD 21702-0100 

Your letter must state you are a shareholder. The nature of the communication will determine to 
whom your letter will be forwarded. Based on the nature of the communication, there is no assurance 
that all communications will receive a response. 

Director Attendance at the Annual Meeting. It is the policy of the Company that all directors 
should attend each annual meeting of shareholders. Nine of the eleven directors in office at the time of 
the 2009 annual meeting of shareholders attended that meeting. 

Audit Committee Report . 

The Audit Committee has been appointed to assist the Board of Directors in fulfilling the Board's 
oversight responsibilities by reviewing the financial information that will be provided to the 
shareholders and others, the systems of internal controls established by management and the Board and 
the independence and performance of the Company's audit process. 

The Audit Committee has: 

(1) reviewed and discussed with management the audited financial statements included in the 
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K; 

(2) discussed with Stegman & Company, the Company's independent registered public accounting 
firm, the matters required to be discussed by Statement on Auditing Standards No. 61, as amended, as 
adopted by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board in Rule 3200T; and 

(3) has received the written disclosures and letter from Stegman & Company as required by the 
applicable rules of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board regarding the independent 
accountant's communications with the audit committee concerning independence, and has discussed 
with Stegman & Company its independence, and has received confirmation from Stegman & Company 
that they are independent of the Company in compliance with Public Company Accounting Oversight 
Board Rule 3520. 

Based on these reviews and discussions, the Audit Committee has recommended to the Board of 
Directors that the audited financial statements be included in the Company's Annual Report on 
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009. The Audit Committee has also considered whether 
the amount and nature of non-audit services provided by Stegman & Company is compatible with the 
auditor's independence. 

Members of the Audit Committee 
George E. Dredden, Jr. William S. Fout, Sr. 
William J. Kissner (Chairman) Farhad Memarsadeghi 
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION TABLES 

The following table sets forth a comprehensive overview of the compensation for Mr. Lapera, the 
President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and Mr. Talley, the Executive Vice President 
and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, the only executive officers who received total salary and 
bonuses of $100,000 or more during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009, referred to as our 
"named executive officers." 

Summary Compensation Table 

Name and Principal Position 

Martin S. Lapera, Director, 
President and Chief Executive 
Officer of the Company and the Bank 

William R. Talley, Jr., 
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial 
Officer of the Company and the Bank 

Year 

2009 
2008 

2009 
2008 

Salary 

$208,531 
$206,077 

$165,550 
$164,243 

Bonus(l) 

$ 
$ 

$ 
$ -

All Other 
Compensation ($) 

$15,679(2) 
$22,186(3) 

$ 9,336(4) 
$13,864(5) 

Total 

$224,210 
$228,189 

$174,886 
$178,093 

(1) Amounts shown as bonus compensation accrue in the year indicated and are paid in the following 
year. 

(2) Includes $2,272 401(k) matching contributions, $10,000 car allowance and $3,407 insurance 
premiums. 

(3) Includes $8,779 401(k) matching contributions, $10,000 car allowance and $3,407 insurance 
premiums. 

(4) Includes $1,809 401(k) matching contribution, $5,000 car allowance, and $2,527 insurance 
premiums. 

(5) Includes $6,336 401(k) matching contributions, $5,000 car allowance and $2,527 insurance 
premiums. 

During 2009, the Company did not grant any stock options or other equity based compensation 
awards to the named executive officers. The Company does not maintain any non-equity incentive plans 
or compensation programs (other than discretionary bonuses), and does not maintain any defined 
benefit retirement plans. While the Company maintains a deferred compensation plan under which 
named executive officers may defer receipt of compensation, no amounts have been deferred under the 
plan by any named executive officer, and as such, no executive officer received any income on any 
deferred compensation during 2009. 

Name 

Martin S. Lapera . . . 
William R. TaUey, Jr. 

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End 

Number of Securities 
Underlying 
Unexercised 

Options 
Exercisable 

21,920(1) 
16,920(1) 

Number of Securities 
Underlying 
Unexercised 

Options 
Unexercisable 

— 
— 

Equity Incentive 
Plan Awards: 

Number of Securities 
Underlying 
Unexercised 
Unearned 
Options 

— 
— 

Option 
Exercise 

Price 

$10.00 
$10.00 

Option 
Expiration 

Date 

10/18/2011 
10/18/2011 

(1) Vested 30% in 2001, 30% in 2002 and 40% in 2003. 
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The Company's Stock Option Plan does not provide for the grant of any equity based awards other 
than stock options. There were no options exercised by any of the name executive officers in 2009. 
There were no options vested during 2009. 

Base Salaty. Changes for base compensation for 2009 were effective October 1, 2009. 
Mr. Lapera's salary was increased by 2.0%, or $4,224 to $211,724. Mr. Tahey's salary was increased by 
2.0%, or $3,244 to $168,744. 

Bonuses. Bonuses are discretionary and are generally granted to named executive officers based 
on the extent to which the Bank achieves annual performance objectives as established by the Board of 
Directors. Bank performance objectives include net income and return on equity goals. Bonuses are 
accrued throughout the year and are generally paid before the end of January in the subsequent year. 

In 2009, there were no bonuses paid to the Company's named executive officers. 

Stock Options. The Company believes that the granting of options, the only form of equity based 
award permitted under the 2001 Stock Option Plan, is the most appropriate form of long-term 
compensation to executive officers, since it believes that equity interests in the Company held by 
executive officers aligns the interests of shareholders and management. This approach is designed to 
provide incentives for the creation of shareholder value over the long term since the full benefit of this 
component of the compensation package cannot be realized unless stock price appreciation occurs over 
a number of years. Stock option grants are discretionary and are limited by the terms and conditions of 
the Company's 2001 Stock Option Plan. There were no options granted in 2009 to either Mr. Lapera 
or Mr. Talley. The Company has not awarded any options to the named executive officers since 2001, 
when the 2001 Stock Option Plan was approved. The decision not to award options has primarily 
related to the thin liquidity of the Company's stock, which limit the value of the incentive represented 
by option awards, while incurring significant compensation accounting expense. 

All Other Compensation. All other compensation for the named executive officers includes 401(k) 
matching contributions, car allowances and insurance premiums. The 401(k) matching contributions for 
all eligible employees of the Company in 2008 and 2009 was 100% of the first 4% of compensation. 
However, the matching contribution for all employees was suspended as of April 1, 2009 for the 
remainder of the year. It was reinstituted on January 1, 2010. The car allowance has been based on 
amounts paid by other companies for this benefit. The insurance premiums are for short-term disability, 
long-term disability and supplemental life insurance. These amounts for Mr. Lapera during 2009 are as 
follows: $2,272 401(k) matching contributions, $10,000 car allowance and $3,407 insurance premiums. 
These amounts for Mr. Talley during 2009 are as follows: $1,809 401(k) matching contributions, $5,000 
car allowance and $2,527 insurance premiums. 

Employment Agreements and Benefit Plans 

Employment Agreements. Mr. Lapera has an employment agreement with the Company pursuant 
to which he serves as President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr. Lapera's agreement, 
as amended, runs until October 1, 2013. Under his agreement, Mr. Lapera is entitled to an annual base 
salary of $211,724 for 2010. He is also entitled to $800,000 of Company paid life insurance (at standard 
rates), and participation in all other health, welfare, benefit, stock option and bonus plans, if any, 
generally available to officers or employees of the Company. 

Mr. Talley has an employment agreement with the Company pursuant to which he serves as 
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company. Mr. Talley's agreement, as 
amended, runs until October 1, 2013. Under his agreement, Mr. Talley is entitled to an annual base 
salary of $168,744 for 2010. He is also entified to $600,000 of Company paid life insurance (at standard 
rates), and participation in all other health, welfare, benefit, stock option and bonus plans, if any, 
generally available to officers or employees of the Company. 

If either Mr. Lapera's or Mr. Talley's employment is terminated without cause for reasons other 
than death, disability or in connection with a change in control (as defined), they would be entitled to 
receive continued payment of base salary through the end of the term of their agreements, and 
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continued car allowance, life insurance and health and disability insurance benefits for the remainder of 
the term, subject to their compliance with certain non-compete provisions of the employment 
agreements. If their employment were terminated under such circumstances-as of December 31, 2009, 
their continued payments would be based on their current salaries of $211,724 and $168,744 for 
Mr. Lapera and Mr. Talley, respectively, and they would receive approximately $876,465 and $696,540, 
respectively. Under the non-compete provisions of the their agreements, following such a termination, 
Mr. Lapera and Mr. Talley have agreed that for 180 days after their last day of employment they will 
not, directly or indirectly, in any capacity render any services to a bank or savings and loan or a holding 
company of a bank or savings and loan with respect to any office, branch or other facility located 
within a thirty-five (35) mile radius of the Bank's headquarters, and will not induce or attempt to 
induce any person that has a business relationship with the Bank or any of its subsidiaries and affiliates 
to discontinue, terminate or reduce the extent of their relationship with the Bank or to take any action 
that would disrupt or otherwise be disadvantageous to any such relationship. 

In the event of termination of their employment, or material reduction in their compensation or 
position or responsibilities within 120 days after a change in control, or the voluntary termination of 
employment within the 30 day period following such 120 day period after a change in control, 
Mr. Lapera and Mr. Talley would be entitled to receive lump sum payments equal to 2.99 times their 
base salaries, plus health insurance premiums for a twenty-four month period following termination, 
subject to adjustment to avoid adverse tax consequences resulting from characterization of such amount 
for tax purposes as a "parachute payment." If Mr. Lapera and Mr. Talley were entitled to receive such 
payments as of December 31, 2009, Mr. Lapera would receive a lump sum payment of approximately 
$625,372, and Mr. Talley would be entitled to receive a lump sum payment of approximately $496,847. 

Employee Benefit Plans. The Company provides a benefit program, which includes health and 
dental insurance, life and long term and short-term disability insurance, a 401 (k) plan for substantially 
all full time employees, and an Executive and Director Deferred Compensation Plan. The Company 
also has adopted the 2001 Stock Opfion Plan. 

401 (k) Profit Sharing Plan. The Company has a Section 401(k) profit sharing plan (the "401 (k) 
Plan") covering employees meeting certain eligibility requirements as to minimum age and years of 
service. Employees may make voluntary contributions to the 401(k) Plan through payroll deductions on 
a pre-tax basis. The Company may make discretionary contributions to the 401(k) Plan based on the 
Company's earnings. The Company's contributions are subject to a vesting schedule (20 percent per 
year) requiring the completion of five years of service with the Company, before these benefits are fully 
vested. A participant's account under the 401 (k) Plan, together with investment earnings thereon, is 
normally distributable following retirement, death, disability or other termination of employment, in a 
single lump-sum payment. The Company made $30,000 in contributions to the 401 (k) Plan in 2009. The 
matching contribution for all employees was suspended as of April 1, 2009 for the remainder of the 
year. It was reinstituted on January 1, 2010. 

Deferred Compensation Plan. On January 28, 2002, the Board of Directors of the Bank approved 
the Frederick County Bank Executive and Director Deferred Compensation Plan (the "Plan"). The 
Plan was effective January 1, 2002 for certain executive employees and directors of the Bank. The 
purpose of the Plan is to (1) allow participants an opportunity to elect to defer the receipt of 
compensation ("Participant Compensation Deferral"), and (2) provide a vehicle for the Bank to credit 
amounts on a tax deferred basis for employee participants ("Employer Contribution Credit"). 
Compensation eligible for deferral include base salary, bonuses and director fees. Employer 
Contribution Credits are subject to various vesting restrictions and are available solely to Plan 
participants who are employees of the Bank. The Plan is intended to be a "top hat" plan under various 
provisions of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended. 

Each Plan participant's account will be adjusted for credited interest or increases or decreases in 
the realizable net asset value, as applicable, of the designated deemed Plan investments. Benefit 
payments under the Plan, which in the aggregate equal the participant's vested account balance, wiU be 
paid in a lump sum or in five or ten substantially equal, annual installments, commencing on the date 
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or dates selected by the Plan's participants. There were no amounts deferred by any director or named 
executive officer, or any Employer Contribution Credits awarded in 2009. 

Stock Option Plan. The Company maintains a stock option plan, adopted by shareholders at the 
2002 annual meeting, to attract, retain, and motivate key officers and directors of the Company by 
providing them with a stake in the success of the Company as measured by the value of its shares. 

The 2001 Stock Option Plan (the "Option Plan") is administered by a committee (the 
"Committee"), appointed by the Board of Directors, consisting of not less than three (3) members of 
the Board who are not employees. The Corporate Governance and Compensation Committee performs 
the functions of the Committee under the Option Plan. In the absence at any time of a duly appointed 
Committee, the Option Plan will be administered by the full Board of Directors. 

The purpose of the Option Plan is to advance the interests of the Company by providing directors 
and selected key employees of the Company with the opportunity to acquire shares of common stock. 
By encouraging such stock ownership, the Company seeks to attract, retain and motivate the best 
available personnel for positions of substantial responsibility and to provide additional incentive to 
directors and key employees of the Company and any affiliate to promote the success of the business as 
measured by the value of its shares, and to increase the commonality of interests among directors, key 
employees and other shareholders. 

Under the Option Plan, 260,000 shares of common stock may be issued upon the exercise of 
"Options" granted under the Option Plan. As of December 31, 2009, the Company had Options for the 
purchase of 129,810 shares of common stock issued and outstanding under the Option Plan. As of the 
date hereof, options to acquire 123,540 shares of common stock remain available for issuance pursuant 
to the Option Plan. 

Under the Option Plan, the Committee may grant incentive stock options ("ISOs") or 
non-incentive stock options ("Non-ISOs") to such key employees as the Committee may designate, and 
may grant Non-ISOs to directors of the Company. ISOs and Non-ISOs are collectively referred to as 
"Options." In the event of any merger, consolidation, recapitalization, reorganization, reclassification, 
stock dividend, split-up, combination of shares or similar event in which the number or kind of shares 
is changed without receipt or payment of consideration by the Company, the Committee will adjust 
both the number and kind of shares of stock as to which Options may be awarded under the Option 
Plan, the affected terms of all outstanding Options, and the aggregate number of shares of common 
stock remaining available for grant under the Option Plan. If any Option expires, becomes 
unexercisable or is forfeited for any reason without having been exercised or becoming vested in full, 
the shares of common stock subject to such Options will be available for the grant of additional 
Options unless the Option Plan has expired or otherwise been terminated. 

The exercise price of Options may not be less than 100% of the fair market value of the common 
stock on the date of grant. In the case of an optionee who owns more than 10% of the outstanding 
common stock on the date of grant, the option price may not be less than 110% of fair market value of 
the shares. As required by federal tax laws, to the extent that the aggregate fair market value 
(determined when an ISO is granted) of the common stock with respect to which ISOs are exercisable 
by an optionee for the first time during any calendar year (under all plans of the Company) exceeds 
$100,000, the Options will be treated as Non-ISOs, and not as ISOs. A Participant may, under the 
Option Plan, receive additional options notwithstanding the eariier grant of options and regardless of 
their having been exercised, expired, or surrendered. 

The Option Plan has a term of 10 years from October 18, 2001, its effective date, after which date 
no Options may be granted. The maximum term for an Option is 10 years from its date of grant, 
except that the maximum term of an ISO may not exceed five years if the optionee owns more than 
10% of the common stock on the date of grant. 

Directors' Compensation 

During 2009, the non-employee directors of the Bank received a fee of $400 for each monthly 
Board of Directors meeting and a fee of $100 for each committee meeting. The directors did not 
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receive any compensation for the Company's Board of Directors meetings. Directors may elect to defer 
receipt of director fees and bonus under the Frederick County Bank Executive and Director Deferral 
Compensation Plan, discussed above. To date, no director has deferred any amount. 

Fees 
Earned or 

Paid in All Other 
Name Cash ($) Compensation Total ($) 

Emil D. Bennett $5,700 $— $5,700 
John N. Burdette . $5,800 $— $5,800 
J. Denham Crum $5,400 $— $5,400 
George D. Dredden, Jr $4,100 $— $4,100 
Wilham S. Fout . $5,100 $— $5^00 
Helen G. Hahn $5,800 $— $5,800 
William J. Kissner . . ; $4,800 $— $4,800 
Kenneth G. McCombs $5,300 $— $5,300 
Farhad Memarsadeghi $5,800 $— $5,800 
Raymond Raedy $6,000 $— $6,000 

The fees paid for director board meetings and committee meetings are based on comparable 
amounts paid by other financial institutions in the Company's geographic market area. Bonuses, if any, 
are discretionary, and are based on the extent to which the Bank achieves annual performance 
objectives including net income and return on equity goals. The bonus pool is determined in the same 
manner as the employee plan and is distributed based on the percentage of board meetings attended by 
each director as compared to the total number of board meetings for the entire board of directors as a 
group. In 2009, no bonuses were paid to the Company's directors. 

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES 

During the past two fiscal years, the Company has had, and the Company expects to have in the 
future, banking transactions in the ordinary course of business with its directors and officers, and other 
related parties. These transactions have been made on substantially the same terms, including interest 
rates, collateral, and repayment terms, as those prevailing at the same time for comparable transactions 
with unrelated parties. The extensions of credit to these persons did not have and do not currently 
involve more than the normal risk of collectability or present other unfavorable features. At 
December 31, 2009 and 2008, loans to directors and officers and their related parties, including loans 
guaranteed by such persons, aggregated $3.40 million and $1.92 million, respectively, which represented 
approximately 15.63% and 9.33% of shareholders' equity, respectively. None of these loans or other 
extensions of credit are disclosed as nonaccrual, past due, restructured or potential problem loans. 

The Company entered into a lease in July 2003 for approximately 3,800 square feet of office space 
owned by a limited liability company of which Messrs. Burdette, Lapera and Raedy are members. The 
lease term commenced on July 10, 2003 and will expire on July 10, 2011. Under this lease, monthly 
payments for the period July 10, 2009 to July 9, 2010 are $4,978. Subsequent twelve-month periods are 
subject to a five percent increase. The lease payments for this lease were $58,315 in 2009 and $55,538 
in 2008. The Company entered into a second lease in February 2005 for approximately 2,418 square 
feet of office space with the same limited liability company. The lease term commenced on February 1, 
2005 and will expire on Januaty 31, 2015. Under this lease, the monthly payments for the period 
Febmaty 1, 2009 to Januaty 31, 2010 are $3,138. Subsequent twelve-month periods are subject to a 
three percent increase. The lease payments for this lease were $37,560 in 2009 and $36,466 in 2008. 
The Company also entered into a third lease in August 2008 for approximately 2,972 square feet of 
office space with the same limited liabiUty company. The lease term commenced on August 1, 2008 and, 
will expire on July 31, 2013. The monthly payments on this lease are $3,839 through July 2010, with 
subsequent twelve-month periods subject to a three percent increase. The lease payments for this lease 
were $46,066 in 2009, while no lease payments were required to be made in 2008. The Company 
believes that each of these leases is on terms which are at least as favorable to the Company as could 
be obtained in a transaction with an unaffiliated third party. 
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Under the Company's Corporate Governance policy, the Corporate Governance and 
Compensation Committee is required to review all related party transactions, excluding insider loans, 
which are approved by the full Board of Directors, with any interested director not participating in the 
approval process, for potential conflicts of interest. All related party transactions relationships must be 
on terms not less favorable than what would be usual and customaty in similar transactions between 
unrelated persons dealing at arms' length. To the extent such transactions are ongoing business 
relationships with the Company, such transactions are reviewed annually. Related party transactions are 
those involving the Company and the Bank which are required to be disclosed pursuant to SEC 
Regulation S-K, Item 404. 

The Company maintains written policies and procedures to strictly control all loans to insiders in 
accordance with Federal law (Regulation O). Insiders include any executive officer, director, or 
principal stockholder and entities which such persons control. All loans and commitments to make 
loans to such persons by the Bank were made in the normal course of business on substantially the 
same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable 
transactions with unrelated persons and do not involve more than a normal risk of collectability or 
present other unfavorable features. 

COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 16(a) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires the Company's directors and 
executive officers, and persons who own more than ten percent of the common stock, to file reports of 
ownership and changes in ownership on Forms 3, 4 and 5 with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission, and to provide the Company with copies of all Forms.3, 4, and 5 they file. 

Based solely upon the Company's review of the copies of the forms which it has received, and 
written representations from the Company's directors and executive officers, the Company is not aware 
of any failure of any such person to comply with the requirements of Section 16(a), except that 
Messrs. McCombs and Raedy each had one Form 4, reporting one transaction, that was not filed in a 
timely manner. 

PROPOSAL 2—RATIFICATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF 
INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors has recommended, and the Board of Directors 
has selected, Stegman & Company as the independent registered public accounting firm to audit the 
financial statements of the Company for the current fiscal year. Stegman & Company audited the 
Company's financial statements for 2009, and the Company has been advised by Stegman & Company 
that neither that firm nor any of its associates has any relationship with the Company, other than the 
usual relationship that exists between independent public accountants and clients. Representatives of 
Stegman & Company, are expected to be present at the Meeting and will have an opportunity to make 
a statement if they so desire and to respond to appropriate questions. Services provided to the 
Company and its subsidiaries by Stegman & Company in 2009 are described under "Fees of 
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm" below. Additional information regarding the Audit 
Committee is provided in the Report of the Audit Committee. 

The Board of Directors recommends that shareholders vote FOR the ratification of Stegman & 
Company as the Company's independent registered public accounting firm. The affirmative vote of a 
majority of votes validly cast on the proposal is required to approve the ratification of the appointment 
of the independent registered public accounting firm. 

Fees of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm. The following table presents fees for 
professional services rendered by Stegman & Company for the audit of Frederick County 
Bancorp, Inc.'s annual consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 
2008 and fees billed for other services rendered by Stegman & Company. Except as set forth below. 
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Stegman & Company did not bill the Company for any other product or services during the years 
presented. 

2009 2008 

Audit Fees(l) . $65,926 $63,112 
Audit-Related Fees(2) — — 
Tax Services(3) 5,200 5,375 

(1) Audit fees consist of fees for professional services rendered for the audit of Frederick 
County Bancorp, Inc.'s consolidated financial statements and review of consolidated 
financial statements included in Frederick County Bancorp, Inc.'s quarterly reports and 
services normally provided by the independent auditor in connection with statutoty and 
regulatoty filings or engagements. 

(2) Audit-related fees are fees for professional services rendered for technical accounting 
consulting and research. 

(3) Tax services fees consist of compliance fees for the preparation of federal and state tax 
returns. 

None of the engagements of Stegman & Company to provide services other than audit services 
was made pursuant to the "de minimus" exception to the pre-approval requirement contained in the 
rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the Company's audit committee charter. 

COSTS OF SOLICITATION 

The cost of the proxy solicitation is being borne by the Company. In addition to the use of the 
mail, proxies may be solicited personally or by telephone, by officers, regular employees or directors of 
the Company, who wih not be compensated for any such services. 

Brokerage firms, fiduciaries and other custodians who forward soliciting material to the beneficial 
owners of shares of common stock held of record by them will be reimbursed for their reasonable 
expenses incurred in forwarding such material. 

FORM 10-K ANNUAL REPORT 

The Company will provide to any shareholder solicited hereby, without charge, a copy of its 
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009 filed with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission, upon written request. Requests should be directed to William R. Talley, Jr., 
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, Frederick County Bancorp, Inc., P.O. Box 1100, 
Frederick, Maryland 21702-0100. 

SHAREHOLDER PROPOSALS 

All shareholder proposals intended to be presented at the 2011 Annual Meeting of Shareholders 
must be received by the Company at the Company's principal office in writing not later than 
November 5, 2010 for inclusion in the Company's proxy statement and form of proxy relating to that 
meeting. Any such proposals shall be subject to the requirements of the proxy rules adopted under the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The Company must receive written notice of any shareholder proposal 
or nomination to be acted upon at the next annual meeting, for which inclusion in the Company's 
proxy materials is not sought, not less than 30 days or more than 60 days prior to the 2011 Annual 
Meeting of Shareholders, which will be held on or about April 12, 2011. 
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OTHER BUSINESS 

The Board of Directors knows of no matters to be presented for action at the meeting other than 
those mentioned above. However, if any other matters properly come before the meeting, it is intended 
that the persons named in the accompanying proxy will vote on such other matters in accordance with 
their best judgment. 

By Order of the Board of Directors 

FREDERICK COUNTY BANCORR INC. 

/ '^^d^yk^^.^.rty^'i^ \ \ O d > - d A ^ 

March 5, 2010 Raymond Raedy, Secretary 
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Attachment A 

AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER 

I. PURPOSE 

The primaty function of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board of Directors in fulfilling its 
oversight responsibilities by reviewing: the financial reports and information provided to shareholders 
and regulatoty agencies; the systems of internal controls regarding accounting, legal and compliance 
that management and the Board have established; and the corporation's audit processes in general. The 
Audit Committee's primaty duties and responsibilities are to: 

• Serve as an independent and objective party to monitor the corporate financial reporting process 
and internal control system. 

• Review and evaluate the audit efforts of the independent accountants. 

• Provide an open avenue of communication between the independent accountants, senior 
management, and the Board of Directors. 

In accordance with Matyland Financial Institutions Annotated Code Section 1-205, the Board of 
Directors has designated the Audit Committee as a compliance review committee. Under this law, "any 
documents prepared for or created by compliance review committees are confidential and not 
discoverable or admissible in any civil action arising out of matters evaluated by the Audit Committee". 

While the Audit Committee has the review, oversight, and reporting responsibilities set forth in 
this charter, it does not have responsibility for planning or conducting audits or for determining that 
the financial statements are complete and accurate and are in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. Those are responsibilities of management and the independent accountants, 
rather than the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee also is not responsible for ensuring 
compliance with laws or regulations, or for resolving disagreements, if any, between management and 
the independent accountants. 

II. MEMBERSHIP 

The Audit Committee shall consist of three or more non-executive (outside) directors, determined 
to be independent by the Board, and appointed by the Board on an annual basis. Each of the directors 
appointed shall be independent and free from any relationship that, in the opinion of the Board, would 
interfere with the exercise of his or her independent judgment as a member of the Audit Committee. • 
In determining the independence of members of the Audit Committee, the Board shall consider, at a 
minimum, the then current standards of independence established by The NASDAQ Stock Market and 
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. All members shall be independent directors within the 
meaning of NASDAQ Rule 5605(a)(2), and a majority shall be independent for purposes of audit 
committee service within the meaning of NASDAQ Rule 5605(c)(2)(A). All Audit Committee members 
shall have (1) the ability to read and understand fundamental financial statements, including a 
Company's balance sheet, income statement, cash flow statement, and key performance indicators: 
(2) the ability to understand key business and financial risks, related controls and control processes. At 
least one member of the Audit Committee shall have accounting or related financial management 
expertise. The Audit Committee members shall appoint the Committee chairperson. 

III. MEETINGS 

The Audit Committee shall meet at least quarterly, or more frequently as it deems necessary or as 
the Board may direct. In conjunction with its scheduled meetings, the Audit Committee will meet with 
the independent accountants and management on a quarterly basis to review corporate financial 
statements. The Audit Committee will take such action to protect the confidential nature of all matters 
discussed. The Audit Committee may ask members of management or others to attend meetings to 
provide pertinent information as deemed necessaty. The engaged independent accountants may also 
have a representative in attendance at all meetings to foster open communication and enhance the 
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annual audit. The Audit Committee is advised by the independent auditors and the Company's outside 
counsel, and also may, but is not required to, engage separate counsel or other advisors to the Audit 
Committee. The Audit Committee may rely on these advisors regarding the application, contents, and 
meaning of auditing and accounting standards, laws, and regulations. The Audit Committee may rely on 
the independent auditors to identify the matters required to be discussed and disclosed by the 
independent auditors. 

IV RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES 

To fulfill its responsibihties and duties, the Audit Committee shall: 

1. Provide an open avenue of communication between the independent accountant and the 
board of directors. 

2. Review and update the Audit Committee charter annually. 

3. Recommend to the Board of Directors the selection of the independent accountants, 
considering independence and effectiveness, including recommending to the Board of 
Directors whether the engagement of the independent accountants should be continued or 
terminated, and approve the fees and other compensation to be paid to the independent 
accountants. On an annual basis, the Audit Committee should receive from the independent 
accountants the written disclosures and letter required to be provided, review, and discuss with 
the accountants all significant relationships the accountants have with the Company to 
determine the accountants' independence. 

4. Inquire of management and the independent accountant about significant risks or exposures 
and assess the steps management has taken to minimize such risk to the Company. 

5. Consider and review with the independent accountant: 

a. The adequacy of the Company's internal controls including computerized information 
system controls and securify. 

b. Any significant findings and recommendations of the independent accountant together 
with management's responses thereto. 

c. Any difficulties encountered in the course of their audits, including any restrictions on the 
scope of their work or access to required information. 

d. Any changes required in the planned scope of their audit plan. 

6. Consider and review with management and the director of internal audit: 

a. Significant findings during the year and management's responses thereto. 

b. Any difficulties encountered in the course of their audits, including any restrictions on the 
scope of their work or access to required information. 

c. Any changes required in the planned scope of their audit plan. 

d. The internal audit department budget and staffing. 

7. Consider and review with management and the independent auditors the scope of services 
required by the audit, major risk factors, significant accounting policies, audit conclusions 
regarding significant accounting estimates, and the compliance of the audit with the audit 
procedures required by Section lOA of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 relating to 
detection of illegal acts, identification of related party transactions, and evaluation of the 
Company as a going concern. 

8. The Committee will oversee the compliance with lead (or coordinating) and review partner 
and other rotation requirements by the independent auditor. . 

9. The Committee shall not approve any non-audit service engagement where the provision of 
such service by the independent accountants is prohibited by applicable law, the regulations of 
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the Securities Exchange Commission, or the listing standards of any market or exchange upon 
which the Company's securities are listed or eligible for tradirig, and the independent auditor 
shall not provide any such prohibited service. 

10. The Committee shall pre-approve any permitted non-audit services. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, pre-approval is not required with respect to the provision of non-audit services if: 

a. the aggregate amount of all such non-audit services provided to the Company constitutes 
not more than five percent of the total amount of revenues paid by the Company to its 
independent auditors during the fiscal year in which the non-audit services are provided; 

b. such services were not recognized by the Company at the time of the engagement to be 
non-audit services; and 

c. the non-audit services are promptly brought to the attention of the Committee and 
approved by the Committee, or by one or more members of the Committee to whom 
authorify to grant such approval has been delegated, prior to the completion of the audit. 

The Committee may delegate the authority to grant such pre-approvals to one or more 
Committee members designated by the Committee, provided that any matters so pre-approved 
shall be presented to the full Committee at its next regular meeting. 

11. Review policies and procedures with respect to officers' expense accounts and perquisites, 
including their use of corporate assets, and consider the results of any review of those areas 
by the internal auditor or independent accountant. 

12. Review legal and regulatoty matters that may have a material impact on the financial 
statements, related Company compliance policies, and programs and reports received from 
regulators. 

13. Review with management and the independent accountant at the completion of the annual 
examination: 

a. The Company's annual financial statements and related footnotes. 

b. The independent accountant's audit of the financial statements and their report thereon. 

c. Any significant changes required in the independent accountant's audit plan. 

d. Any serious difficulties or disputes with management encountered during the course of 
the audit. 

e. Other matters related to the conduct of the audit, which are to be communicated to the 
Audit Committee under generally accepted auditing standards. 

14. Review filings with the SEC and other published documents containing the Company's 
financial statements and consider whether the information contained in these documents is 
consistent with the information contained in the financial statements. Review with financial 
management and the independent accountants the 10-Q prior to its filing or release of 
earnings. 

15. Prepare a report for inclusion in the proxy statement that describes the Audit Committee's 
composition and responsibilities, and how they were discharged, including a statement 
regarding their review and discussion of the annual financial statements, review of the 
independence of the independent accountants, and discussions with the independent 
accountants, and a statement that based on the foregoing, the Audit Committee recommended 
that the annual financial statements be included in the Company's annual report on 
Form 10-K. 

16. Report Audit Committee actions to the Board of Directors with such recommendations, as the 
Audit Committee may deem appropriate. Detailed minutes of each Audit Committee meeting 
will be provided to the Board of Directors for review, discussion, and approval. 
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17. The Audit Committee shall have the power to conduct or authorize investigations into any 
matters within the Committee's scope of responsibihties. The Audit Committee shall have 
access to all Company records and personnel in performing their responsibilities. 

18. The Committee will put in place a procedure to provide for the confidential and/or 
anonymous submission of concerns about the Bank's accounting, internal accounting controls, 
or auditing matters by employees. 

19. The Audit Committee will perform such other functions as assigned by law, regulation, the 
listing standards of any market or exchange upon which the Company's securities are listed or 
eligible for trading, the Company's charter or bylaws, or the Board of Directors. 
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UNITED STATES 
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 

WASHINGTON, DC 20549 

FORM 10-K 
[X] Annual Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange 

Act of 1934 
For the year ended December 31, 2009 

D Transition Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange 
Act of 1934 

For the transition period from to 

Commission File Number: 000-50407 

FREDERICK COUNTY BANCORP, INC. 
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter) 

Maryland 20-0049496 
(State of other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer 
incorporation or organization) . Identification No.) 

7 North Market Street, Frederick, Maryland 21701 

(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code) 

(Registrant's telephone number, including area code): 301.620.1400 

Securities registered under Section 12(b) of the Exchange Act: None. 

Securities registered under Section 12(g) of the Act: Common Stock, par value $0.01 per share 
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the 

Securities Act. Yes D No [x] 

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or 
Section 15(d) of the Act. Yes D No [x] 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant; (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 
or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period 
that the registrant was required to file such reports; and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for 
the past 90 days. Yes [x] No D 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate 
Web site, if any, evety Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of 
Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months or for such shorter period that the 
registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes [x] No D 

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K 
(§229.405 of this chapter) is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant's 
knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this 
Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. D 

Indicate by check mark whether registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a 
non-accelerated filer or a smaller reporting company. See definitions of large accelerated filer, accelerated 
filer and smaller reporting company in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. 

Large accelerated filer D Accelerated filer O Non-accelerated filer D Smaller reporting company [X] 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the 
Exchange Act). Yes D No |x] 

The aggregate market value of the outstanding Common Stock held by nonaffiliates as of June 30, 2009 
was approximately $12.4 million. As of Februaty 1, 2010, the number of outstanding shares of the Common 
Stock, $0.01 par value, of Frederick County Bancorp, Inc. was 1,461,802. 

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE 

Portions of the Company's definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders, to be 
held on April 13, 2010 are incorporated by reference in Part III hereof. 
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Form 10-K Cross Reference of Material Incorporated by Reference 

The following shows the location in this Annual Report on Form 10-K or the Company's Proxy 
Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on April 13, 2010, of the information 
required to be disclosed by the United States Securities and Exchange Commission Form 10-K. 
References to pages only are to pages in this report. 

PARTI Item 1. 

Item lA. 

Item IB. 

Item 2. 

Item 3. 

Item 4. 

PART II Item 5. 

Item 6. 

Item 7. 

Item 7A. 

Item 8. 

Item 9. 

Item 9A(T) 

Item 9B. 

Business. See "Business" at Page 85. 

Risk Factors. No disclosure required as the Company is a smaller reporting 
company. 

Unresolved Staff Comments. None. 

Properties. See "Properties" at Page 88. 

Legal Proceedings. From time to time the Company is a participant in 
various legal proceedings incidental to its business. In the opinion of 
management, the liabilities (if any) resulting from such legal proceeding will 
not have a material effect on the financial position of the Company. 

Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders. No matter was 
submitted to a vote of the security holders of the Company during the 
fourth quarter of 2009. 

Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and 
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities. See "Market for Common Stock 
and Dividends" at Page 95. _ 

Selected Financial Data. See "Five-Year Summaty of Financial 
Information" at Page 32. 

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results 
of Operations. See "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial 
Condition and Results of Operations" at Page 33. 

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk. See "Market 
Risk, Liquidity and Interest Rate Sensitivity" at page 38. 

Financial Statements and Supplementary Data. See Consolidated Financial 
Statements and Notes thereto at Page 53. 

Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and 
Financial Disclosure. None. 

Controls and Procedures. See "Managenient's Report on Internal Control 
over Financial Reporting" at page 51 and "Disclosure Controls and 
Procedures" at Page 52. 

Other Information. None. 
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PART III Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers, and Corporate Governance. The information 
required by this Item is incorporated by reference to, the material appearing 
under the captions "Election of Directors" and "Compliance with 
Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934" in the Proxy 
Statement. 

The Company has adopted a code of ethics that applies to its Chief 
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer. A copy of the code of ethics 
will be provided to any person, without charge, upon written request 
directed to William R. Talley, Jr., EVP & CFO, Frederick County 
Bancorp, Inc., 7 North Market Street, Frederick, MD 21701. 

There have been no material changes in the procedures by which 
shareholders may recommend nominees to the Company's Board of 
Directors since the proxy statement for the 2009 annual meeting of 
shareholders. 

Item 11. Executive Compensation. The information required by this Item is 
incorporated by reference to the material appearing under the caption 
"Executive Compensation" in the Proxy Statement. 

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and 
Related Stockholder Matters. See "Securities Authorized for Issuance 
Under Equity Compensation Plans" under the heading "Market for 
Common Stock and Dividends" at Page 95. The other information required 
by this Item is incorporated by reference to the material appearing under 
the captions "Voting Securities and Principal Holders" in the Proxy 
Statement. 

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director 
Independence. The information required by this Item is incorporated by 
reference to the material appearing under the caption "Election of 
Directors" and "Transactions with Related Parties" in the Proxy Statement. 
See also Item 10 to this Annual Report on Form 10-K. 

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services. The information required by this 
Item is incorporated by reference to the material appearing under the 
caption "Ratification of the Appointment of Independent Registered Public 
Accounting Firm" in the Proxy Statement. 

PART rv Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules. See "Exhibits and Financial 
Statement Schedules" at Page 100. 
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FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

The following table sets forth certain selected financial data concerning the Company, and is 
qualified in its entirety by the detailed information and consolidated financial statements, including 
notes thereto, included elsewhere herein. 

Years Ended December 31, 

Summary of Operating Results: 
Total interest income 
Total interest expense 

Net interest income 
Provision for loan losses 

Net interest income after provision for loan 
losses 

Security gains (losses) 
(Loss) gain on sale of foreclosed properties 
Gains from insurance proceeds 
Other noninterest income (excluding gains 

and losses) 
Noninterest expenses 

Income before provision for income taxes . 
Provision for income taxes 

Net income 
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of 

taxes 

Comprehensive income 

Per Share Data: 
Basic earnings .' 
Diluted earnings 
Dividends declared 
Book value at period-end . 
Shares outstanding at period-end 
Weighted average shares outstanding: 

Basic 
Diluted 

Other Data (At Year-End): 
Assets 
Investments 
Loans 
Deposits 
Short-term borrowings 
Long-term borrowings 
Junior subordinated debentures 
Shareholders' equity 

Performance Ratios: 
Return on average assets 
Return on average shareholders' equity . . . 
Allowance for loan losses to total loans , . . 
Nonperforming assets to total assets 
Ratio of net charge-offs to average loans . . 
Average equity to average assets 
Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets 
Total capital to risk-weighted assets 

2009 2008 2007 2006 
(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts) 

$ 14,001 
5,274 

8,727 
1,175 

7,552 
235 
(37) 

577' 
6,791 

1,536 
488 

1,048 

78 

$ 1,126 

$ 0.72 
0.71 

14.88 
1,461,802 

1,461,079 
1,475,068 

$ 258,559 
25,643 

214,943 
219,312 

500 
10,000 
6,186 

21,750 

0.40% 
4.92% 
1.45% 
0.56% 
0.56% 
8.19% 

11.81% 
13.06% 

$ 15,480 
7,116 

8,364 
935 

7,429 
26 
15 
— 

535 
6,526 

1,479 
441 

1,038 

(9) 

$ 1,029 

$ 0.71 
0.69 

14.11 
1,460,802 

1,460,670 
1,503,372 

$ 254,562 
21,639 

211,840 
216,883 

— . 
10,000 
6,186 

20,612 

0.40% 
5.12% 
1.47% 
0.61% 
0.21% 
7.83% 

11.59% 
12.84% 

$ 16,247 
7,977 

8,270 
491 

7,779 
27 
— 

230 

410 
6,172 

2,274 
714 

1,560 

92 

$ 1,652 

$ 1.07 
1.03 

13.41 
1,460,602 

1,460,125 
1,518,155 

$ 255,991 
28,952 • 

209,011 
219,228 

— 
10,000 
6,186 

19,580 

0.63% 
8.35% 
1.26% 
0.12% 
0.01% 
7.58% 

n .14% 
12.29% 

$ 13,735 3 
5,649 

8,086 
213 

, ~ 7,873 
— 
— 
— 

338 
5,229 

2,982 
1,062 

1,920 

85 

$ 2,005 3 

2005 

i 10,719 
3,252 

7,467 
450 

7,017 
(8) 
— 
— 

282 
4,596 

2,695 
863 

1,832 

(177) 

> 1,655 

$, 1.32 $ 1.26 
1.26 

12.27 
1,458,602 

1,458,602 
1,526,911 

$ 234,951 i 
• 30,112 

173,954 
209,378 

— 
— 

6,186 
17,893 

0.90% 
11.34% 

1.25% 
0.03%,, 

— 
7.90% 

12.10% 
13.19% 

1.20 

10.89 
1,458,602 

1,458,361 
1,526,996 

i 207,540 
22,019 

155,341 
190,055 

— 
— 
— 

15,888 

1.01% 
12-.05% 

1.26% 
— 
— 

8.36% 
9.36% 

10.49% 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

This report contains forward looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities 
Litigation Reform Act of 1995, including statements relating to the Company's beliefs, expectations, 
anticipations and plans regarding, among other things, general economic trends, interest rates, product 
expansions and other matters. In some cases, forward looking statements can be identified by use of 
words such as "may," "will," "anticipates," "believes," "expects," "plans," "estimates," "potential," 
"continue," "could," "should," and similar words or phrases. These statements are based upon current 
and anticipated economic conditions, nationally and in the Company's market, interest rates and 
interest rate policy, competitive factors, and other conditions which by their nature, are not susceptible 
to accurate forecast, and are subject to significant uncertainties, such as federal monetaty policy, 
inflation, employment, profitability and consumer confidence levels, both nationally and in the 
Company's market area, the health of the real estate and construction market in the Company's market 
area, the Company's ability to develop and market new products and to enter new markets, competitive 
challenges in the Company's market, legislative changes and other factors, and as such, there can be no 
assurance that future events will develop in accordance with the forward looking statements contained 
herein. 

General 

Frederick County Bancorp, Inc. (the "Bancorp"), the parent company for its wholly-owned 
subsidiaty Frederick County Bank (the "Bank" and together with Bancorp, the "Company"), was 
organized in September 2003. The Bank was incorporated under the laws of the state of Matyland in 
August 2000 and commenced banking operations in October 2001. The Bank provides its customers 
with various banking services. The Bank offers various loan and deposit products to their customers. 
The Bank's customers include individuals and commercial enterprises within its principal market area 
consisting of Frederick County, Matyland. The Company operates out of four banking offices located in 
the City of Frederick and Walkersville, Matyland. The Company also has a subsidiaty trust, estabhshed 
to issue trust preferred securities, and two subsidiaries established to hold foreclosed properties. The 
two subsidiaries established to hold foreclosed properties are known as FCB Holdings, Inc (a direct 
subsidiaty of Bancorp) and FCB Hagerstown, LLC (an indirect subsidiaty of Bancorp). See Note 8 to 
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2009 (the "consolidated 
financial statements") for additional disclosures related to the subsidiaty trust. 

The preparation of financial stateriients requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the reporting period. These estimates and assumptions are based on information available as of 
the date of the financial statements and could differ from actual results. 

Critical Accounting Policies 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Application 
of these principles requires management to make estimates, assumptions, and judgments that affect the 
amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. These estimates, assumptions, 
and judgments are based on information available as of the date of the financial statements; 
accordingly, as this information changes, the financial statements could reflect different estimates, 
assumptions, and judgments. Certain policies inherently have a greater reliance on the use of estimates, 
assumptions, and judgments and, as such, have a greater possibility of producing results that could be 
materially different than originally reported. Estimates, assumptions, and judgments are necessaty when 
assets and liabilities are required to be recorded at fair value, when a decline in the value of an asset 
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not carried on the financial statements at fair value warrants an impairment write-down or valuation 
reserve to be established, or when an asset or liability needs to be recorded contingent upon a future 
event. Cartying assets and liabilities at fair value inherently results in more financial statement 
volatility. The fair values and the information used to record valuation adjustinents for certain assets 
and liabilities are based either on quoted market prices or are provided by other third-party sources, 
when available. The estimates used in management's assessment of the adequacy of the allowance for 
loan losses require that management make assumptions about matters that are uncerfain at the time of 
estimation. Differences in these assumptions and differences between the estimated and actual losses 
could have a material effect. For discussions related to the critical accounting policies of the Company, 
refer to the sections in this Management's Discussion and Analysis entitled "Income Taxes," and 
"Allowance for Loan Losses." 

Overview 

The following paragraphs provide an overview of the financial condition and results of operations 
of the Company. This discussion is intended to assist the readers in their analysis of the accompanying 
financial statements and notes thereto. 

During 2009, the economy in Frederick County remained slow, as was the economy for rest of the 
United States and many countries throughout the world. Unemployment rose and businesses, as well as 
consumers, felt the effects of the downturn. The effects of this downturn will have an effect on the 
loans that the Company has made and will make in the future. However, it is felt the local economy 
may be somewhat insulated from the full impact that may be felt in other parts of the countty, because 
of the local presence of a federal government medical research installation that has seen government 
funds continue to flow into Frederick County. 

Net income was $1.05 million, $1.04 million and $1.56 million for the years ended December 31, 
2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. Basic and diluted earnings per share for 2009 were $0.72 and $0.71, 
respectively; 2008 were $0.71 and $0.69, respectively; and for 2007 were $1.07 and $1.03, respectively. 

Return on average assets and return on average shareholders' equity are key measures of earnings 
performance. Return on average assets iheasures the ability of a bank to utilize its assets in generating 
income. The Company experienced a return on average assets of 0.40%, 0.40%, and 0.63% for the 
years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. Additionally, the Company experienced a 
return on average shareholders' equity of 4.92%, 5.12%, and 8.35% for the years ended December 31, 
2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. 

During the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company maintained a relatively stable level of 
total assets in order to maintain the Company's and the Bank's capital ratios above those required for 
well capitalized status. With the current slow economy, the Company feels it is prudent at this time to 
maintain higher capital ratios. At December 31, 2009, assets stood at $258.56 million, as compared to 
$254.56 million at December 31, 2008 and $255.99 million at December 31, 2007. Gross loans increased 
$3.10 million, or 1.5%, in 2009, to end the period at $214.94 million compared to $211.84 million at 
December 31, 2008 and $209.01 million at December 31, 2007. The Company's deposit strategy during 
2009 was to reduce the dependence on higher cost certificates of deposit. During 2009, certificates of 
deposit declined approximately $21.16 million, whereas total deposits increased to $219.31 million at 
December 31, 2009, up from $216.88 million at December 31, 2008, and about the same at 
$219.23 million at December 31, 2007. During 2008, the investment portfolio was used to increase the 
liquidity position of the Company, decreasing to $21.64 million at December 31, 2008 from 
$28.95 million at December 31, 2007, while during 2009, the strategy was to utilize some of the excess 
liquidity to purchase investment securities; thereby, increasing the investment portfolio by $4.00 million 
to $25.64 million at December 31, 2009. 

34 



Distribution of Assets, Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity; Interest Rates and Interest Differential 

The "Comparative Statement Analysis" on the next page shows average balances of asset and 
liability categories, interest income and interest paid, and average yields and rates for the periods 
indicated. 

Net Interest Income 

Net interest income is generated from the Company's lending and investment activities, and is the 
most significant component of the Company's earnings. Net interest income is the difference between 
interest and rate-related fee income on earning assets (primarily loans and investment securities) and 
the interest paid on the funds (primarily deposits) supporting them. The Company primarily utilizes 
deposits to fund loans and investments, with a small amount of additional funding from junior 
subordinated debentures and short-term and long-term borrowings. In future periods it may utilize a 
higher level of short-term and long-term borrowings, including borrowings from the Federal Home 
Loan Bank, federal funds Unes with correspondent banks and repurchase agreements, to fund 
operations, depending on economic conditions, deposit availability and pricing, interest rates and other 
factors. 

The taxable-equivalent interest income of $14.21 million was $1.50 milhon lower in 2009, and the 
$15.71 million in 2008 was $790,000 lower than the amount recognized in 2007. The decrease in 
interest income in 2009 and 2008 was primarily due to the reduced yields earned on the loan portfolio 
which decreased to 6.26% in 2009 from 6.64% in 2008 and from 7.31% in 2007. The primaty factor in 
the changes in interest income was changes'in the federal funds target rate discussed below. 

The interest expense decreased from $7.98 million in 2007 to $7.12 million in 2008 and to 
$5.27 million in 2009. The primaty factor in the decreased interest expense in 2008 and 2009 was the 
reduction of the rates paid on the interest-bearing liabilities, as a result of actions of the Federal 
Reserve. Average interest bearing liabilities increased 4.4% in 2008, from $194.37 million in 2007 to 
$202.97 million in 2008, but decreased 0.6% to $201.76 million in 2009. The average rate paid on these 
liabilities decreased from 4.10% to 3.50% from 2007 to 2008, and continued to decline to 2.61% during 
2009. The Company feels that the rates paid on these liabilities may continue to decrease in the future 
as the certificates of deposit mature and reprice, but not at as steep of a decline as experienced so far. 
However, as a result of competitive factors, local market conditions and customer preferences, there 
can be no assurance that deposit rates will decrease to the same extent as the federal funds rate as 
certificates of deposit mature. 

During 2009, the loan yields and the rates paid on interest bearing liabilities decreased due to the 
decrease of the federal funds rate maintained by the Federal Reserve, and the decreased reliance on 
higher rate funding sources, including certificates of deposits, which dropped to 60.5% of average 
interest-bearing liabilities in 2009 from 64.2% in 2008 and 68.5% in 2007. In September 2007, the 
Federal Reserve began to ease the federal funds rate down to 4.25% as of December 31, 2007, and has 
further reduced the rate down to a range of 0% to 0.25% as of December 31, 2008 and has maintained 
this level during 2009. 

The Company's net interest margin (net interest income as a percent of average interest-earning 
assets) was 3.51%, 3.44% and 3.58%, and the net interest spread (the spread between yields on average 
interest-earning assets and rates paid on average interest-bearing liabilities) was 2.97%, 2.78% and 
2.83% for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respecfively. The Company anticipates 
the net interest margin to improve gradually over the next year. 
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Comparative Statement Analysis 

Years Ended December 31, 

2009 2008 2007 

Average Interest 
daily income/ Average 

balance expense yield/rate 

Assets 
Interest-earning assets: 
Federal funds sold $ 1,102 
Interest-bearing deposits in ottier 

banks 21,568 
Investment securities(l): 

Taxable 15,613 
Tax-exempt(2) 5,850 

Loans(3) 210,224 

Total interest-earning assets . . 254,357 

Noninterest-earning assets . . . . . . 5,637 

Total assets $259,994 

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity 
Interest-bearing liabilities 

NOW accounts $ 13,296 
Savings accounts 4,398 
Money market accounts 45,713 
Certificates of deposit $100,000 

or more 50,483 
Certificates of deposit less than 

$100,000 71,497 
Short-term borrowings 184 
Long-term borrowings 10,000 
Junior subordinated debentures . 6,186 

Total interest-bearing liabihties . . . 201,757 

Noninterest-bearing d e p o s i t s . . . . . 36,134 
Noninterest-bearing liabihties . . . . 804 

Total liabilities 238,695 

Shareholders' equity 21,299 

Total liabilities and 
shareholders' equity $259,994 

Net interest income 

Net interest spread' 

Net interest margin 

$ 8,936 

Average Interest 
daily income/ Average 

balance expense yield/rate 

(dollars in thousands) 

Average Interest 
daily income/ Average 

balance expense yield/rate 

2 

48 

639 
362 

13,159 

0.18% 

0.22% 

4.09% 
6.19% 
6.26% 

$ 8,204 

3,673 

17,396 
8,492 

211,806 

$ 193 

56 

850 
520 

14,095 

2.35% 

1.52% 

4.87% 
6.11% 
6.64% 

$ 8,400 

4,066 

20,749 
9,822 

195,040 

$ 439 

211 

997 
598 

14,259 

5.23% 

5.19% 

4.81% 
6.09% 
7.31% 

14,210 5.59% 249,571 15,714 6.28% 238,077 16,504 6.93% 

9,522 8,591 

$259,093 $246,668 

27 
7 

537 

1,628 

2,201 
8 

462 
404 

0.20% 
0.16% 
1.17% 

3.22% 

3.08% 
4.35% 
4.62% 
6.53% 

$ 11,490 
3,966 

40,234 

58,214 

72,133 
749 

10,000 
6,186 

37 
20 

752 

2,440 

2,981 
18 

464 
404 

0.32% 
0.50% 
1.86% 

4.18% 

4.12% 
2.40% 
4.63% 
6.51% 

$ 12,308 
3,095 

34,614 

64,855 

68,244 
31 

5,041 
6,186 

22 " 
15 

966 

3,121 

3,213 
2 

233 
405 

0.18% 
0.48% 
2.79% 

4.81% 

4.71% 
6.45% 
4.62% 
6.55% 

5,274 2.61% 202,972 

35,009 
827 

238,808 

20,285 

$259,093 

7,116 

$ 8,598 

3.50% 194,374 ,7,977 4.10% 

32,809 
796 

227,979 

18,689 

$246,668 

$ 8,527 

2,98%. 

3.51% 

2.78% 

3.44%. 

2.83% 

3.58% 

(1) Yields on securities available-for-sale have been calculated on the basis of historical cost and do not give effect to changes 
in the fair value of those securities, which is reflected as a component of shareholders' equity. 

(2) Presented on a taxable-equivalent basis using the statutory federal income tax rate of 34%. Taxable-equivalent adjustments 
of $123,000 in 2009, $177,000 in 2008, and $203,000 in 2007 are included in the calculation of the tax-exempt investment 
securities interest income. 

(3) Presented on a taxable-equivalent basis using the statutory federal income tax rate of 34%. Taxable-equivalent adjustments 
of $86,000 in 2009, $57,000 in 2008, $54,000 in 2007 are included in the calculation of the loan interest income. Loans 
placed on nonaccrual status are included in average balances. Net loan fees included in interest income totaled $28,000 in 
2009, $24,000 in 2008, and $15,000 in 2007. 
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RateA^olume Analysis 

The foUowing table indicates the changes in interest income and interest expense that are 
attributable to changes in average volume and average rates, in comparison with the same period in the 
preceding year. The change in interest due to the combined rate-volume variance has been allocated 
entirely to the change in rate. 

2009 compared to 2008 2008 compared to 2007 

Interest Income 
Interest-earning assets: 

Federal funds sold 
Interest-bearing deposits in other banks , 
Investment securities: 

Taxable 
Tax-exempt 

Loans 

Total interest income (248) 

Interest Expense 
Interest-bearing habilities: 

NOW accounts 6 
Savings accounts 2 
Money market accounts 102 
Certificates of deposit $100,000 or more . (323) 
Certificates of deposit less than $100,000 . (26) 
Short-term borrowings (14) 
Long-term borrowings — 
Junior subordinated debentures . . . . . . . . —• 

Total interest expense (253) 

Net interest income $ 5 

Increase (decrease) 
due to 

Volume 

$ (167) 
272 

(87) 
(161) 
(105) 

Rate 

$ (24) 
(280) 

(124) 
3 

(831) 

Net 
increase 

(decrease) 

(dollars in 

$ (191) 
(8) 

(211) 
(158) 
(936) 

Increase (decrease) 
due to 

Volume 

thousands) 

$ (10) 
(20) 

(161) 
(81) 

1,226 

Rate 

$ (236) 
(135) 

14 
3 

(1,390) 

Net 

(decrease) 

$ (246) 
(155) 

(147) 
(78) 

(164) 

(1,256) (1,504) 954 (1,744) (790) 

(16) 
(15) 

(317) 
(489) 
(754) 

4 
(2) 
— 

(10) 
(13) 

(215) 
(812) 
(780) 

(10) 
(2) 
— 

(1) 
4 

157 
(320) 
183 
46 

. 229 
— 

16 
1 

(371) 
(361) 
(415) 

(30) 
2 

(1) 

15 
5 

(214) 
(681) 
(232) 

16 
231 

(1) 
(1,589) (1,842) 298 (1,159) (861) 

f 333 $ 338 $ 656 $ (585) $ 71 

Noninterest Income 

Noninterest income was $775,000 in 2009, $576,000 in 2008 and $667,000 in 2007, attributable 
primarily to service fees on deposit accounts and ATM interchange fees. Included in the noninterest 
income are securities gains of $235,000 in 2009 and $26,000 in 2008. Also included in noninterest 
income for 2009 is a loss of $37,000 on the sale of foreclosed property, and in 2008, a gain of $15,000 
on the sale of foreclosed property. 

Noninterest Expenses 

Noninterest expenses were $6.79 million in 2009, $6.53 million in 2008 and $6.17 million in 2007. 
See Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements for a schedule showing a detailed breakdown of 
the Company's noninterest expenses. The changes in noninterest expenses for 2009 are principally 
related to the increase in FDIC insurance premiums of $326,000, including a special assessment of 
$115,000, which was partially offset by reduced personnel expenses mainly related to the elimination of 
the 401(k) employer contribufion in April 2009. 
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Income Taxes 

The Company incurred $488,000, $441,000 and $714,000 of income tax expenses in 2009, 2008 and 
2007. The effective tax rates are 31.77% for 2009, 29.82% for 2008 and 31.40% for 2007. The decrease 
in the effective tax rate in 2008 from 2007 is due to the lower pre-tax income and the larger amount of 
tax-exempt interest income as a percentage of pre-tax income. The increase in the income tax rate for 
2009 was due to a Jower amount of tax-exempt interest income as a percentage of pre-tax income. 

Market Risk, Liquidity and Interest Rate Sensitivity 

Asset/liability management involves the funding and investment strategies necessaty to maintain an 
appropriate balance between interest sensitive assets and liabilities. It also involves providing adequate 
liquidity while sustaining stable growth in net interest income. Regular review and analysis of deposit 
and loan trends, cash flows in various categories of loans, and monitoring of interest spread 
relationships are vital to this process. , 

The conduct of our banking business requires that we maintain adequate liquidity to meet changes 
in the composition and volume of assets and liabilities due to seasonal, cyclical or other reasons. 
Liquidity describes the ability of the Company to meet financial obligations that arise during the 
normal course of business. Liquidity is primarily needed to meet the borrowing and deposit withdrawal 
requirements of the customers of the Company, as well as for rneeting current and future planned 
expenditures. This liquidity is typically provided by the funds received through customer deposits, 
investment maturities, loan repayments, borrowings, and income. Management considers the current 
liquidity position to be adequate to meet the needs of the Company and its customers. i 

The Company seeks to limit the risks associated with interest rate fluctuations by managing the 
balance between interest sensitive assets and liabilities. Managing to mitigate interest rate risk is, 
however, not an exact science. Not only does the interval until repricing of interest rates on assets and 
liabilities change from day to day as the assets and liabilities change, but for some assets and liabihties, 
contractual maturity and the actual maturity experienced are not the same. Similarly, NOW and money 
market accounts, by contract, may be withdrawn in their entirety upon demand and savings deposits 
may be withdrawn on seven days notice; While these contracts are extremely short, it is the Company's 
belief that these accounts turn over at the rate of five percent (5%) per year. The Company therefore 
treats them as having maturities ratably over all periods. If all of the Company's NOW, money market, 
and savings accounts were treated as repricing in one year or less, the Company would have a 
cumulative negative gap at one year or less of $(59.0) million. 

Interest rate sensitivity is an important factor in the management of the composition and maturity 
configurations of the Company's earning assets and funding sources. An Asset/Liability Committee 
manages the interest rate sensitivity position in order to maintain an appropriate balance between the 
maturity and repricing characteristics of assets and liabilities that is consistent with the Company's 
liquidity analysis, growth, and capital adequacy goals. It is the objective of the Asset/Liability 
Committee to maximize net interest margins during periods of both volatile and stable interest rates, to 
attain earnings growth, and to maintain sufficient liquidity to satisfy depositors' requirements and meet 
the funding needs of the Company's loan production. 

The following table, "Interest Rate Sensitivity Gap Analysis," summarizes, as of December 31, 
2009, the anticipated maturities or repricing of the Company's interest-earning assets and interest-
bearing liabilities, the Company's interest rate sensitivity gap (interest-earning assets less interest-
bearing liabilities), the Company's cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap, and the Company's 
cumulative interest sensitivity gap ratio (cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap divided by total assets). 
A negative gap for any time period means that more interest-bearing liabilities will reprice or mature 
during that time period than interest-earning assets. During periods of rising interest rates, a negative 
gap position would generally decrease earnings, and during periods of declining interest rates, a 
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negative gap position would generally increase earnings. The converse would be true for a positive gap 
position. Therefore, a positive gap for any time period means that more interest-earning assets will 
reprice or mature during that time period than interest-bearing liabilities. During periods of rising 
interest rates, a positive gap position would generally increase earnings, and during periods of declining 
interest rates, a positive gap position would generally decrease earnings. 

It is important to note that the following table repi^esents the static gap position for interest 
sensitive assets and liabilities at December 31, 2009. The table does not give effect to prepayments or 
extensions of loans as a result of changes in general market interest rates. Moreover, it does not 
account for timing differences that occur during periods of repricing. For example, changes to deposit 
rates traditionally tend to lag in a rising rate environment and lead in a falling rate environment, 
although this will not always be the case. Nor does it account for the effects of competition on pricing 
of deposits and loans. For example, under current market conditions, market rates paid on deposits 
may not be able to adjust by the full amount of downward adjustments in the federal funds target rate, 
while rates on loans will tend to adjust by the full amount, subject to certain limitations. During 2009, 
the Company began to place interest rate floors on its commercial floating rate loans. 

Interest Rate Sensitivity Gap Analysis 
December 31, 2009 

Expected Repricing or Maturity Date 

Assets 
Federal funds sold 
Interest-bearing deposits in other banks . . . 
Investment securities(l) 
Loans 

Total interest-earning assets 

Liabilities 
Savings and NOW Accounts 
Money Market Accounts 
Certificates of Deposit 
Short-term borrowings 
Long-term borrowings 
Junior subordinated debentures 

Total interest-bearing liabilities 

Interest rate sensitivity gap 

Cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap 

Cumulative gap ratio as a percentage of total 
assets 

Within 
One Year 

$ 938 
9,729 
1,657 

79,905 

92,229 

860 
2,744 

73,667 
500 

5,000 
— 

82,771 

$ 9,458 

$ 9,458 

3.66% 

One to 
Three Years 

(dolla 

$ -
— 

3,796 
84,824 

88,620 

1,720 
5,489 

29,382 
— 

5,000 
6,186 

47,777 

$40,843 

$50,301 

19.45% 

Three to 
Five Years 

rs in thousan 

$ — 
— 

2,641 
33,214 

35,855 

1,720 
5,489 
5,977 

— 
— 
— 

13,186 

$22,669 

$72,970 

28.22% 

After 
Five Years 

ds) 

$ -
— 

15,683 
17,000 

32,683 

12,901 
41,164 

— 
— 
— 
— 

54,065 

$(21,382) 

$ 51,588 

19.95% 

Total 

$ 938 
9,729 

23,777 
214,943 

249,387 

17,201 
54,886 

109,026 
500 

10,000 
6,186 

197,799 

$ 51,588 

(1) Excludes equity securities. 
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In addition to the Interest Rate Sensitivity Gap Analysis, the Company also uses an earnings 
simulation model on a quarterly basis to closely monitor interest sensitivity and to expose its balance 
sheet and income statement to different scenarios. The model is based on period end Company data 
and adjusted by assumptions as to growth patterns, noninterest income and noninterest expense and 
interest rate sensitivity, based on historical data, for both assets and liabilities projected for a one-year 
period. The model is then subjected to a "shock test" assuming a sudden interest rate increase of 200 
basis points or a decrease of 200 basis points, but not below zero. The results show that with a 200 
basis point rise in interest rates, the Company's net interest income would decline by 1.92%. However, 
a decrease in interest rates of 200 basis points was not considered to be feasible since this would imply 
that the Federal funds rate would fall below zero. -

Certain shortcomings are inherent in this method of analysis. For example, although certain assets 
and liabilities may have similar maturities or repricing periods, they may react in different degrees to 
changes in market interest rates. Also, the interest rates on certain types of assets and liabilities may 
fluctuate in advance of changes in market interest rates, while interest rates on other types may lag 
behind changes in market rates. Additionally, certain assets, such as adjustable-rate mortgage loans, 
have features that restrict changes in interest rates on a short-term basis and over the life of the loan. 
Further, in the event of a change in interest rates, prepayment and early withdrawal levels could 
deviate significantly.from those assumed. Finally, the ability of many borrowers to service their debt 
may decrease in the event of a significant interest rate increase. 

Investment Portfolio 

The investment portfolio is used as a source of interest income, credit risk diversification and 
liquidity, as well as to manage rate sensitivity and provide collateral for secured public funds, 
repurchase agreements and other short-term borrowings. Management has historically emphasized 
investments with a weighted-average life of seven years or less to provide greater flexibility in managing 
the balance sheet in changing interest rate environments. At December 31, 2009, U.S. Treasuty and 
other U.S. government agencies and corporations had a weighted-average life of 3.25 years, while the 
mortgage-backed debt securities had a weighted-average life of 6.50 years, and the municipal securities 
had a weighted-average life of 8.17 years, giving the total investment portfolio a weighted-average life 
of 6.73 years. The average tax-equivalent yield earned on the investment portfolio for 2009, 2008 and 
2007 was 4.66%, 5.29%, 5.22%, respectively. The mortgage-backed securities portfolio does not include 
any subprime or Alt-A type investments, which would carty a higher degree of risk. The municipal 
securities portfolio includes three (3) bonds aggregating $611,000, with an aggregated unrealized loss of 
$7,000, that are no longer rated by S&P or Moody's. These bonds have enhanced credit insurance from 
various insurance companies, the credit ratings of which have been downgraded. The Company feels 
comfortable with the exposure to these bonds at this time. 

The Company had no investments that were obligations of the issuer, or payable from or secured 
by a source of revenue or taxing authority of the issuer, whose aggregate book value exceeded 10% of 
shareholders' equity at December 31, 2009. 

The following tables set forth certain information regarding the Company's investment portfolio at 
the dates indicated. 
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Available-for-Sale Portfolio 

December 31, 

2009 2008 2007 

Estimated Weighted Estimated Weighted Estimated Weighted 
Amortized Fair Average Amortized Fair Average Amortized Fair Average 

Cost Value Yield Cost Value Yield Cost Value Yield 

(dollars in thousands) 
U.S. Treasury and other U.S. 

government agencies and 
. corporations: 

Due within one year $ 490 $ 493 4.46% $ — $ — — $ 1,495 $ 1,494 5.09% 
Due after one year through five 

years . 1,391 1,415 4.03% 2,283 2,302 4.81% 3,549 3,549 4.96% 
Due after five years through ten 

years 497 526 5.00% 645 650 5.00% 718 703 4.99% 
States and pohticat subdivisions: 

Due after one year through five 
years — — _ _ _ _ ' 200 194 4.64% 

Due after five years through ten 
years . 910 909 5.47% 405 392 5.25% 3,186 3,197 5.57% 

Due after ten years 6,935 6,942 5.90% 5,281 5,094 5.93% 6,435 6,406 5.94% 
Mortgage-backed debt securities . 13,478 13,492 3.63% 11,178 11,302 5.11% 11,666 11,669 4.77% 
Equity securities 300 300 —% 300 300 — 300 300 — 

$24,001 $24,077 4.38% $20,092 $20,040 5.21% $27,549 $27,512 5.13% 

Loan Portfolio 

The Company makes real estate construction and land development, real estate mortgage, 
commercial and industrial, and consumer loans. The real estate mortgage loans are generally secured 
by the property and have a maximum loan to value ratio at origination of 75% and generally a term of 
one to five years. The Company does not make it a practice of establishing an interest reserve account 
as part of the loan funding amount. The commercial and industrial loans consist of secured and 
unsecured loans. The unsecured commercial loans are made based on the financial strength of the 
borrower and usually require personal guarantees from the principals of the business. The collateral for 
the secured commercial loans may be equipment, accounts receivable, marketable securities or deposits 
in the Bank. These loans typically have a maximum loan to value ratio at origination of 75% and a 
term of one to five years. The consumer loan categoty consists of secured and unsecured loans. The 
unsecured consumer loans are made based on the financial strength of the individual borrower. The 
collateral for secured consumer loans may be marketable securities, automobiles, recreational vehicles 
or deposits in the Bank. The usual term for these loans is three to five years. 

41 



The following table sets forth the distribution of the Company's loan portfolio at the dates 
indicated by categoty of loan and the percentage of loans in each categoty to total loans. 

December 31, 

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 

(dollars in thousands) 
Real estate—construction and land development . $ 15,726 7% $ 17,049 8% $ 28,077 13% $ 30,183 17% $ 29,140 19% 

Real estate—^mortgage loans: •'•-• 
Secured by 1 to 4 family residential 

properties 36,369 17% 36,986 17% 38,414 18% 34,194 -20% 31,128 20% 
Secured by multi-family (5 or more) 

residential properties . 12,348 
Secured by commercial properties . 106,378 
Secured by farm land 6,995 

Total real estate—mortgage loans . . . . . . 162,090 

Loans to farmers . . 46 
Commercial and industrial loans 35,351 
Loans to individuals for household, family and 

other personal expenditures 1,730 

Total loans $214,943 
Less allowance for loan losses (3,127) 

Net lo^ns .~ $211,816 

6% 
49% 

3% 

75% 

—: 
17% 

1% 

100% 

8,856 
105,637 

6,747 

158,226 

48 
34,779 

1,738 

211,840 
(3,120) 

$208,720 

4% 
51% 

3% 

•75% 

— 
16% 

1% 

100% 

5,926 
101,920 

5,570 

151,830 

50 
27,281 

1,773 

209,011 
(2,640) 

$206,371 

3% 
49% 
3 % 

73% 

— 
13% 

1% 

100% 

4,640 
73,582 
4,302 

116,718 

— 
24,806 

2,247 

173,954 
(2,166) 

$171,788 

3% 
42% 

2% 

•67% 

— 
14% 

2% 

100% 

3,942 
60,087 
2,836 

97,993 

756 
25,140 

2,312 

155,341 
(1,953) 

$153,388 

3% 
39% 

2% 

64% 

— 
16% 

1% 

100% 

As of December 31, 2009, the real estate loan portfolio constituted 82% of the total loan portfolio. 
While this exceeds the 10% threshold for determining a concentration of credit risk within an industty, 
we do not consider this to be a concentration with adverse risk characteristics given the diversity of 
borrowers within the real estate portfolio and other sources of repayment. An industty for this purpose 
is defined as a group of counterparties that are engaged in similar activities and have similar economic 
characteristics that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by 
changes in economic or other conditions. The loan portfolio does not include concentrations of credit 
risk in loan products that permit the deferral of principal payments or payments that are smaller than 
normal interest accruals (negative amortization); loans with high loan-to-value ratios; and loans, such as 
option adjustable-rate mortgages, that may expose the borrower to future increases in repayments that 
are in excess of increases that would result solely from increases in market interest rates. The Company 
has $8.66 million and $7.73 miUion in outstanding balances of interest-only home equity lines of credit 
at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. 

During 2009, the balance of loans in the construction and land development categoty was reduced 
due to the completion of several major projects that were subsequently moved to the commercial and 
multi-family mortgage categories, along with the Company increasing the credit standards on these 
types of loans. Over the past three years, the Company intentionally limited the origination of real 
estate construction and land development loans, raising credit standards, as management believed the 
market for projects being financed was becoming overheated. 

Under guidance by the federal banking regulators, banks which have concentrations in 
construction, land development or commercial real estate loans (other than loans for majority owner 
occupied properties) would be expected to maintain higher levels of risk management and, potentially, 
higher levels of capital. It is possible that we may be required to maintain higher levels of capital than 
we would otherwise be expected to maintain as a result of our levels of construction, development and 
commercial real estate loans, which may require us to obtain additional capital. The Company monitors 
the level of construction and land development, and non-owner occupied commercial real estate loans 
in relation to its total risk-weighted capital on at least a quarterly basis. The banking regulators have 
established guidance limits of 100% and 300% of total risk-weighted capital for construction and land 
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development, and non-owner occupied commercial real estate loans, respectively. These ratios as of 
December 31, 2009 were 63.17% for construction and land development loans and 218.84% for 
non-owner occupied cominercial real estate loans. While our level of loans in these areas is below the 
percentages established in the regulatoty guidance, there can be no assurance that we will not be 
required to maintain higher Jevels of capital as a result of our concentration of loans. 

Maturity and Interest Rate Sensitivity of Loans 

The following table presents the maturities or repricing periods of loans outstanding at 
December 31, 2009. 

Maturing in 
After 1 through 

One year or less 5 years After 5 years 
Fixed Variable Fixed Variable Fixed Variable 

Interest Interest Interest Interest Interest Interest 
Rates Rates Rates Rates Rates Rates Total 

(dollars in thousands) 
Real estate-construction and land 

development $ 8,470 $ 1,462 $ 5,794 $ — $ — $ — $ 15,726 

Real estate-mortgage 29,252 17,971 99,656 907 12,898 1,405 162,089 

Loans to farmers 46 — — — — — 46 

Commercial and industrial loans 14,298 7,398 11,088 — 2,567 — 35,351 

Loans to individuals for household, family 
and other personal expenditures . . . . . . 504 504 593 — 130 — 1,731 

Total ; . $52,570 $27,335 $117,131 $907 $15,595 $1,405 $214,943 

Allowance for Loan Losses 

The Company makes provisions for loan losses in amounts deemed necessaty to maintain the 
allowance for loan losses at an appropriate level. The provision for loan losses is determined based 
upon management's estimate of the amount required to maintain an adequate allowance for loan losses 
reflective of the risks in the Company's loan portfolio. The Company's provision for loan losses in 2009, 
2008 and 2007.were $1.18 million, $935;000 and $491,000, respectively. The increase in the provision for 
loan losses in 2009 compared to 2008 and 2007 is primarily due to the increase in net charge-offs 
incurred in 2009 of $1.17 million as compared to $455,000 in 2008 and $17,000 in 2007, in addition to 
the loan portfolio growth in 2008. During 2009, average loans remained relatively constant at 
$210.22 million, while average loans increased by $16.77 million during 2008. At December 31, 2009, 
the allowance for loan losses was $3.12 miOion or 1.45% of total loans. 

The Company prepares a quarterly analysis of the allowance for loan losses, with the objective of 
quanfifying portfolio risk into a dollar amount of inherent losses. The determinafion of the allowance 
for loan losses is based on eight qualitative factors and one quantitative factor for each categoty and 
type of loan along with any specific allowance for adversely classified loans within each categoty. Each 
factor is assigned a percentage weight and that total weight is applied to each loan categoty. Factors 
are different for each categoty. Qualitative factors include: levels and trends in delinquencies and 
nonaccrual loans; trends in volumes and terms of loans; effects of any changes in lending policies, the 
experience, abihty and depth of management; national and local economic trends and conditions; 
concentrations of credit; quality of the Company's loan review system; and regulatoty requirements. 
The total allowance required thus changes as the percentage weight assigned to each factor is increased 
or decreased due to the particular circumstances, as the various types and categories of loans change as 
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a percentage of total loans and as specific allowances are required due to increases in adversely 
classified loans. See Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements for additional information 
regarding the determination of the provision and allowance for loan losses. 

The Company follows the guidance of the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") 
Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") Topic 450 Contingencies and ASC Topic 310 Receivables. This 
guidance requires that losses be accrued when they are probable of occurring and estimable and 
requires that impaired loans, within its scope, be measured based on the present value of expected 
future cash flows discounted at the loan's effective interest rate, except that as a practical expedient, a 
creditor may ineasure impairment based on a loan's observable market price, or the fair value of the 
collateral if the loan is coUateral dependent. This guidance excludes smaller balance and homogeneous 
loans, which are collectively evaluated for impairment, from impairment reporting. Therefore, the 
Company has designated consumer and residential mortgage loans to be excluded for this purpose. 
From the remaining loan portfolio, loans rated as doubtful or worse, classified as nonaccrual, and 
troubled debt restructurings may be evaluated for impairment. Slow payment on a loan is considered, 
by the Company, to only be a minimum delay. 

Loans are evaluated for nonaccrual status when principal or interest is delinquent for 90 days or 
more and are placed on nonaccrual status when a loan is specifically determined to be impaired. Any 
unpaid interest previously accrued on those loans is reversed from income. Any interest payments 
subsequently received are recognized as income unless, in management's opinion, a potential for loss 
remains. Interest payments received on loans, where management believes a potential for loss remains, 
are applied as a reduction of the loan principal balance. 

Management believes that the allowance for loan losses is adequate. There can be no assurance, 
however, that adjustments to the provision for loan losses will not be required in the future. Changes in 
the economic assumptions underlying management's estimates and judgments; adverse developments in 
the economy, on a national basis or in the Company's market area; or changes in the circumstances of 
particular borrowers are criteria that could change and make adjustments to the provision for loan 
losses necessaty. 
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The following table reflects activity in the allowance for loan losses for the periods indicated. 
December 31, 

2009 2008 2007 2006 

Average total loans outstanding during year . . 

Balance at beginning of year 

Recoveries of loans previously charged-off— 
commercial and industrial 

Loans charged-off—real estate construction . . 
Loans charged-off—commercial real estate . . 
Loans charged-off—residential real estate . . . 
Loans charged-off—commercial and industrial 
Loans charged-off—consumer 

Net charge-offs 

Provision charged to operating expenses . . . . 

Balance at end of year 

Ratios of net charge-offs to average loans . . . 

$210,224 

$ 3,120 

4 
(90) 

(596) 

(474) 
(12) 

(1,168) 

1,175 

$ 3,127 

0.56% 

(dollars in thousands) 

$211,806 $195,040 $162,562 

L 

$ 

2,640 

10 

(76) 
(6) 

(378) 
(5) 

(455) 

935 

3,120 

0.21% 

L 

$ 

2,166 

(17) 

(17) 

491 

2,640 

0.01% 

$ 1,953 

— 

— 

213 

$ 2,166 

0.00' 

2005 

$145,488 

$ 1,503 

450 

$ 1,953 

0.00% 

Problem Assets 

The following table reflects the Company's problem assets at the dates indicated. Except as 
reflected in the table, there were no other interest-bearing assets at December 31, 2009 classifiable as 
nonaccrual, 90 days past due, restructured or problem assets, and no loans which were currently 
performing in accordance with their terms, but as to which information known to management caused 
it to have serious doubts about the ability of the borrower to comply with the loan as currently written. 

December 31, 

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 

(dollars in thousands) 

Nonperforming loans: 
Nonaccrual—real estate construction $ 103 $ — $ — $ — $ — 
Nonaccrual—real estate mortgage 840 1,103 309 — — 
Nonaccrual—commercial and industrial . — 94 — 36 8 
Nonaccrual—consumer. — — 1 24 — 

Total nonperforming loans $ 943 $1,197 $ 310 $ 60 $ _8 

Foreclosed properties: 
Foreclosed properties—residential real estate . . 495 363 — ^ -^ 

Total foreclosed properties 495 363 — — ^ 

Total nonperforming assets $1,438 $1,560 $ 310 $ 60 $ 8 
Nonperforming assets to total loans and foreclosed 

properties at period end 0.67% 0.74% ,0.15% 0.03% 0.01% 
Nonperforming assets to total assets at period end 0.56% 0.61% 0.12% 0.03% 0.00% 
Allowance for loan losses to nonperforming loans 

at period end 331.60% 260.65% 851.61% 3,610.00% 24,412.50% 
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The allocation of the aUowance, presented in the following table, is based primarily on the factors 
discussed above in evaluating the adequacy of the allowance as a whole. Since all of those factors are 
subject to change, the allocation is not necessarily indicative of the categoty of future loan losses, and 
does not restrict the use of the allowance to absorb losses in any categoty. 

Allocation of Allowance for Loan Losses 

Real estate-construction and land development 
Real estate-mortgage 2,296 
Commercial and industrial loans 
Loans to individuals for household, family and 

other personal expenditures 

2009 

$ 195 
2,296 

617 

19 

$3,127 

%of 
Loans 

7% 
75% 
17% 

1% 

100% 

2008 

$ 333 
2,278 

472 

37 

$3,120 

December 31, 

%of 
Loans 2007 

(dollars in 
8% $ 240 

75% 1,774 
16% 532 

1% 94 

100% $2,640 

%of 
Loans 2006 

thousands) 
13% $ 218 
73% 1,509 
13% 400 

1% 39 

100% $2,166 

%of 
Loans 

17% 
67% 
14% 

2% 

100% 

2006 

$ 318 
1,171 

408 

56 

$1,953 

%of 
Loans 

19% 
• 64% 

16% 

1% 

100% 

Deposits 

The principal sources of funds for the Company are core deposits (demand deposits, interest-
bearing transaction accounts, money market accounts, savings deposits and certificates of deposit) from 
the Company's market area. The Company's deposit base includes transaction accounts, time and 
savings accounts and other accounts that customers use for cash management purposes and which 
provide the Company with a source of fee income and cross-marketing opportunities as well as a 
low-cost source of funds. Time and savings accounts, including money market deposit accounts, also 
provide a relatively stable low-cost source of funding. • 

Approximately 49.7% and 60.0% of the Company's deposits at December 31, 2009 and 2008 are 
made up of time deposits, which are generally the most expensive form of deposit because of their 
fixed rate and term. Time deposits in denominations of $100,000 or more can be more volatile and 
more expensive than time deposits of less than $100,000. However, because the Bank focuses on 
relationship banking, and most of these deposits are obtained from the local community, historical 
experience has been that large time deposits have not been more volatile or significantly more volatile 
or expensive than smaller denomination certificates. The Company does not have any brokered deposits 
as of December 31, 2009, 2008 or 2007. 

The following tables provide a summaty of the Company's deposit base at the dates indicated and 
the maturity distribution of certificates of deposit of $100,000 or more as of December 31, 2009, 2008, 
and 2007. 
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Average Deposits and Average Rate 

Noninterest-bearing demand deposits 
Interest-bearing demand deposits: 

NOW accounts 
Money market accounts . . . . . . . . 
Savings accounts 
Certificates of deposit: 

$100,000 or more 
Less than $100,000 

Total average deposits 

2009 

Average 
Daily 

Balance 

$ 36,134 

13,296 
45,713 

4,398 

50,483 
71,497 

$221,521 

Average 
Rate 

— 

0.20% 
1.17% 
0.16% 

3.22% 
3.08% 

3.31% 

December 31, 

2008 

Average 
Daily 

Balance 

(dollars in 

$ 35,009 

11,490 
40,234 
3,966 

58,214 
72,133 ' 

$221,046 

Average 
Rate 

thousands) 

— 

0.32% 
1.86% 
0.50% 

4.18% 
4.12% 

3.32% 

2007 

Average 
Daily 

Balance 

$ 32,809 . 

12,308 
34,614 
3,095 

64,855 
68,244 

$215,925 

Average 
Rate 

— 

0.18% 
2.79% 
0.48% 

4.81% 
4.71% 

3.40% 

Maturities of Certificates of Deposit—$100,000 or More 

December 31, 

2009 2008 2007 

(dollars in thousands) 

Maturing in: 
3 months or less $13,247 $10,992 $12,924 
Over 3 months through 6 months 5,049 7,989 13,804 
Over 6 months through 12 months 9,128 25,471 " 18,087 
Over 12 months 15,328 13,383 15,741 

$42,752 $57,835 $60,556 

Borrowings 

For liquidify purposes and for customer convenience, the Company also utilizes short-term 
borrowings, which includes federal funds lines of credit to purchase overnight funds from correspondent 
banks and an unsecured line of credit for Bancorp. The Company also offers retail repurchase 
agreements, which are securities sold under an agreement to repurchase, which is considered to be a 
short-term borrowing. There were no retail repurchase agreements outstanding at December 31, 2009, 
2008 or 2007. The following table set forth certain information regarding the Company's short-term 
borrowings at the dates indicated. 

Short-Term Borrowings 

2009 2008 2007 

(dollars in thousands) 

Total outstanding at year-end . $500 $ — $ — 
Average amount outstanding during the year $184 $ 749 $ 31 
Maximum amount outstanding at any month-eUd $500 $4,000 $450 
Weighted-average interest rate at year-end 4.25% — — 
Weighted-average interest rate during the year 4.35% 2.40% 6.45% 
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The short-term borrowings at December 31, 2009 consist of an unsecured revolving line of credit 
borrowing arrangement from an unaffiliated financial institution in the amount of $500,000 at a floating 
interest rate equal to the Wall Street Journal prime rate plus 0.50%, subject to a minimum rate of 
4.25% that matures on July 22, 2010. The Company's unused lines of credit for short-term borrowings 
totaled $7.50 million and $7.00 million at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. These include an 
unsecured line of credit from an unaffiliated financial institution for Bancorp in the amounts of 
$3.50 miUion and $3.00 million as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, and an unsecured 
federal funds line of credit from an unaffiliated financial institution for the Bank in the amount of 
$4.00 million at December 31, 2009 and 2008. 

Long-Term Borrowings 

At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company had $10.00 million in borrowings under its credit 
facility from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta ("FHLB"). There are two advances in the 
amounts of $5.00 miUion each, each bearing interest at a rate of 4.56%, one (1) having a maturity of 
April 27, 2012 and the other is a convertible advance with a maturity of September 4, 2012, unless 
called on September 4, 2010, by the FHLB. Outstanding advances are secured by collateral consisting 
of a blanket lien on qualifying loans in the Bank's residential mortgage loan portfolio. 

Trust Preferred Securities/Junior Subordinated Debentures 

In December 2006, Bancorp completed the private placement of an aggregate of $6.00 million of 
trust preferred securities through FCBI Statutoty Trust I (the "Trust"), a newly formed trust subsidiaty 
organized under Connecticut law, of which Bancorp owns all $186,000 of the common securities. The 
principal asset of the Trust is $6,186 million of Bancorp's junior subordinated debentures. The junior 
subordinated debentures bear interest at a fixed rate of 6.5375% until December 15, 2011, at which 
time the interest rate becomes a variable rate, adjusted quarterly, equal to 163 basis points over three-
month LIBOR. The junior subordinated debentures mature on December 15, 2036, and may be 
redeemed at par, at Bancorp's option, on any interest payment date commencing December 15, 2011. 
The securities are redeemable prior to December 15, 2011, at a premium ranging up to 103.525% of 
the principal amount thereof, upon the occurrence of certain regulatoty or legal events. The obligations 
of Bancorp with respect to the Trust's preferred securities constitute a full and unconditional guarantee 
by Bancorp of Trust's obligations with respect to the trust preferred securities to the extent set forth in 
the related guarantee. Subject to certain exceptions and limitations, Bancorp may elect from time to 
time to defer interest payments on the junior subordinated debentures, resulting in a deferral of 
distribution payments on the related trust securities. The proceeds from this issuance were used to 
repay a $450,000 short-term debt obligafion that matured in Januaty 2007, capital injections of 
$4.50 million into the Bank, and the remaining proceeds were used to supplement the Company's 
capital for continued growth and other general corporate purposes. The trust preferred securities may 
be included in Tier 1 capital for regulatoty capital adequacy purposes up to 25% of Tier 1 capital, net 
of goodwUl, after its inclusion. The portion of the trust preferred securities not qualifying as Tier 1 
capital may be included as part of total qualifying capital in Tier 2 capital, subject to limitation. At 
December 31, 2009, all of the trust preferred securities qualified as Tier 1 capital. 

Capital Resources 

The ability of the Company to grow is dependent on the availabilify of capital with which to meet 
regiilatoty capital requirements, discussed below. To the extent the Company is successful it may need 
to acquire additional capital through the sale of additional common stock, other qualifying equify 
instruments, subordinated debt or other qualifying capital instruments. There can be no assurance that 
additional capital wiU be available to the Company on a timely basis or on attractive terms. On 
December 15, 2006, the Company completed the issuance of $6.00 million of trust preferred securities. 
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as discussed above that can be recognized as capital for regulatoty purposes. The Company has an 
unsecured revolving line of credit borrowing arrangement with an unaffiliated financial institution in 
the aniount of $4.00 million with a $500,000 outstanding balance as of December 31, 2009, but no 
outstanding balance as of December 31, 2008. This facUity matures on July 22, 2010, has a floating 
interest rate equal to the Wall Street Journal prime rate plus 0.50%, subject to a minimum rate of 
4.25%, and requires monthly interest payments only. The purpose of this facility is to provide capital to 
the Bank, as needed. The Company does not anticipate any issues with the renewal of this credit 
facility. 

The Bank is subject to various regulatoty capital requirements administered by the federal banking 
agencies. The Company will be subject to additional requirements when its assets exceed $500 million, 
it has publicly issued debt or it engages in certain highly leveraged activities. Failure to meet minimum 
capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory—and possibly additional discretionaty—actions by 
regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Company's consolidated 
financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatoty framework for prompt 
corrective action, the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of 
the Bank's assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatoty 
accounting practices. The Bank's capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative 
judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors. 

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to 
maintain minimum amounts and ratios of total and Tier 1 capital (as defined in the regulations) to 
risk-weighted assets (as defined), and Tier 1 capital (as defined) to average assets (as defined). 
Management believes that the Bank met aU capital adequacy requirements to which it is subject as of 
December 31, 2009 and that the Company would meet such requirements if applicable. See Note 13 to 
the consolidated financial statements for a table depicting compliance with regulatoty capital 
requirements. 

As of December 31, 2009, the most recent notification from the regulatoty agency categorized the 
Bank as well capitalized under the regulatoty framework for prompt corrective action. To be 
categorized as well capitalized the Bank must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based, and 
Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forth in the table in Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements. 
There are no conditions or events since that notification which rnanagement believes have changed the 
Bank's categoty. 

On June 26, 2007, the Company authorized the repurchase of up to 146,000 shares of its common 
stock, for an aggregate expenditure of not more than $4.50 million, through June 30, 2012, or earlier 
termination of the program by the Board of Directors. Repurchases, if any, by the Company pursuant 
to this authorization are expected to enable the Company to repurchase its shares at an attractive price, 
and to provide a source of liquidity for the Company's shares. As of December 31, 2009, there have 
been no shares repurchased by the Company. 

The Company announced on Januaty 27, 2009 that it has decided not to participate in the U.S. 
Treasuty Department's TARP Capital Purchase Program. The Treasuty Department recently primarily 
approved an investment in the Company of up to $7,016 mUlion in new capital under the TARP 
Program. The Capital Purchase Program has only been made avaUable to sound financial institutions 
meeting or exceeding strict qualifying criteria. 

The Bank's capital ratios significantly exceed the regulatoty requirements for weU capitalized 
banks, with its ratios of 12.80% and 11.55% for Total Risk-Based Capital and Tier 1 Capital, 
respectively, compared to the regulatoty minimums of 10.00% and 6.00%. Management of the 
Company believes that its level of existing capital is adequate to support continued successful 
implementation of the Company's business plan without the need for government capital assistance, 
since participation in the Capital Purchase Program also includes certain long-term restrictions and 
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costs, as weU as continuing to carty negative public perceptions. In light of regulatoty pressures on 
substantially all banks, and the Company's desire, to maintain capital levels in excess of the minimum 
requirements for well capitalized status, the Company has relatively little room for asset growth without 
an additional capital infusion, through borrowing or through the issuance of additional capital stock. 

Inflation 

The effect of changing prices on financial institutions is typically different than on non-banking 
companies since virtually all of a bank's assets and liabilities are monetaty in nature. In particular, 
interest rates are significantly affected by inflation, but neither the timing nor magnitude of the changes 
are directly related to price level indices; therefore, the Company can best counter inflation over the 
long term by managing net interest income and controlling net increases in noninterest income and 
expenses. 

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 

With the exception of the Company's obligations in connection with its trust preferred securities 
and in connection with its irrevocable letters of credit and loan commitments, the Company has no 
other off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a current or future 
effect on the Company's financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, 
results of operafions, liquidity, capital expenditures, or capital resources, that is material to investors. 
For additional information on off-balance sheet arrangements, please see "Note 1—Nature of 
Operations and Significant Accounting Policies—Recent Accounting Pronouncements," "Note 9— 
Leasing Arrangements," "Note 16—Transactions with Related Parties;—Lease Agreement" and 
"Note 17—Commitment and Contingencies" to the consolidated financial statements. 
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MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 

Management of Frederick County Bancorp, Inc. is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
adequate internal control over financial reporting. The Company's internal control over financial 
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the rehability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The Company's internal 
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records, that in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transacfions and 
disposition of the Company's assets; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 
necessary to permit the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in 
accordance with the authorizations of Company's management and directors; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or 
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material impact on the financial statements. The 
internal control system contains monitoring mechanisms, and appropriate actions taken to correct 
identified deficiencies. The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors (the "Committee"), is 
comprised entirely of outside directors who are independent of management. The Committee is 
responsible for the appointment and compensation of the independent auditors and makes decisions 
regarding the appointment or removal of members of the internal audit function. The Committee 
meets periodically with management, the independent registered public accounting firm, and the 
internal auditors to ensure that they are carrying out their responsibilities. The Committee is also 
responsible for performing an oversight role by reviewing and monitoring the financial, accounting, and 
auditing procedures of the Company in addition to reviewing the Company's financial reports. The 
independent registered public accounting firm and the internal auditors have full and unlimited access 
to the Audit Committee, with or without the presence of management, to discuss the adequacy of 
internal control over financial reporting, and any other matters which they believe should be brought to 
the attention of the Audit Committee. 

There are inherent limitations in the effectiveness of any internal control system, including the 
possibility of human error and the circumvention or overriding of internal controls. Accordingly, even 
effective internal control over financial reporting can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to 
financial statement preparation. In addition, because of changes in conditions and circumstances, the 
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting may vaty over time and controls may become 
inadequate, and the degree of compliance with the pohcies and procedures may deteriorate, over time. 

Under the supervision and with the participation of management, including the Chief Executive 
Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, the Company conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of 
the internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in "Internal Control-Integrated 
Framework" promulgated by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission, 
commonly referred to as the "COSO" criteria. Based on this evaluation under the "COSO" criteria, 
management concluded that the Company's internal control over financial reporting was effective as of 
December 31, 2009. Management's assessment concluded that there were no material weaknesses 
within the Company's internal control over financial reporting. 

There was no change in the Company's internal control over financial reporting that occurred 
during the fourth quarter of 2009 that has materially affected or is likely to materially affect, the 
Company's internal control over financial reporting. 

This annual report does not include an attestation report of the Company's registered public 
accounting firm regarding internal control over financial reporting. Management's report was not 
subject to attestation by the Company's registered public accounting firm pursuant to temporaty rules 
of the Securities and Exchange Commission that permit the Company to provide only management's 
report in this annual report. 
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DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 

The Company's management, under the supervision and with the participation of the Chief 
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated, as of the last day of the period covered by 
this report, the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company's disclosure controls and -
procedures, as defined in Rule 13a-15 under the Securhies Exchange Act of 1934. Based on that 
evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company's 
disclosure controls and procedures were effective. 
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n STEGMAN 
l ^ H & C O M P A N Y 
C E R T I F I E D P U B L I C A C C O U N T A N T S A N D 
M A N A G E M E N T C O N S U L T A N T S S I N C E 1915 

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors 
Frederick County Bancorp, Inc. 
Frederick, Matyland 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Frederick County Bancorp, Inc. 
and Subsidiaries (the "Company") as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the related consolidated 
statements of income, changes in shareholders' equity and cash flows for the years then ended. These 
consohdated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our 
responsibUity is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting 
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The 
Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over 
financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a 
basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our 
opinion. 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of Frederick County Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of 
December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then 
ended, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 

^ - ' J ^ t x ^ j m a / i f C^n^joan (J 

Baltimore, Matyland 
Februaty 24, 2010 
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Frederick County Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Balance Sheets 

December 31, 

2009 2008 

(dollars in thousands) 

Assets 
Cash and due from banks '. $ 1,447 $ 808 
Federal funds sold 938 1,091 
Interest-bearing deposits in other banks 9,729 14,156 

Cash and cash equivalents , 12,114 16,055 

Investment securities available-for-sale—at fair value 24,077 20,040 
Restricted stock ; 1,566 1,599 
Loans , 214,943 211,840 
Less: Allowance for loan losses (3,127) (3,120) 

Net loans 211,816 208,720 

Bank premises and equipment 4,997 5,221 
Accrued interest and other assets 3,989 2,927 

Total assets , . . $258,559 $254,562 

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity 
LiabUities 
Deposits: , 

Noninterest-bearing deposits . . . .- $ 38,199 $ 32,740 
Interest-bearing deposits 181,113 184,143 

Total deposits 219,312 216,883 

Short-term borrowings '. 500 — 
Long-term borrowings 10,000 10,000 
Junior subordinated debentures 6,186 6,186 
Accrued interest and other liabUities 811 881 

Total liabilities 236,809 233,950 

Commitments and Contingencies (Notes 9, 16, and 17) 

Shareholders' Equity 
Common stock, per share par value $0.01; 10,000,000 shares authorized; 

1,461,802 and 1,460,802 shares issued and outstanding, respectively 15 15 
Additional paid-in capital 14,702 14,690 
Retained earnings '. 6,987 5,939 
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 46 (32) 

Total shareholders' equity 21,750 20,612 

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $258,559 $254,562 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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Frederick County Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Statements of Income 

Years Ended December 31, 

2009 2008 

(dollars in thousands, 
except per share amounts) 

Interest income: 
Interest and fees on loans $ 13,073 
Interest and dividends on investment securities: 

Taxable 
Tax exempt 
Dividends 

Interest on federal funds sold 
Other interest income 

Total interest income 

Interest expense: 
Interest on deposits • • • • 
Interest on short-term borrowings 
Interest on long-term borrowings 
Interest on junior subordinated debentures 

Total interest expense 

Net interest income 

Provision for loan losses 

Net interest income after provision for loan losses 

Noninterest income: 
Securities gains 
(Loss) gain on sale of foreclosed properties 
Service fees , 
Other operating income 

Total noninterest income 

Noninterest expenses: 
Salaries and employee benefits • 
Occupancy and equipment expenses ^ 
Other operating expenses 

Total noninterest expenses 

Income before provision for income taxes 
Provision for income taxes 

Net income . 

Basic earnings per share 

Diluted earnings per share 

Basic weighted average number of shares outstanding 

Diluted weighted average nurnber of shares outstanding 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

$ 14,038 

590 
239 
49 
2 
48 

14,001 

4,400 
8 

462 
404 

5,274 

8,727 
1,175 

7,552 

235 
(37) 
371 
206 

775 

3,729 
1,288 
1,774 

6,791 

1,536 
488 

$ 1,048 

$ 0.72 

$ 0.71 

1,461,079 

1,475,068 

769 
343 
81 
193 
56 

15,480 

6,230 
18 
464 
404 

7,116 

8,364 
935 

7,429 

26 
15 
272 
263 

576 

3,802 
1,224 
1,500 

6,526 

1,479 
441 

$ 1,038 

$ 0.71 

$ 0.69 

1,460,670 

1,503,372 
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Frederick County Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders' Equity 

Years Ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 

Accumulated 
Additional Other Total 

Shares Common Paid-in Retained Comprehensive Shareholders' 
Outstanding Stock Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Equity 

(dollars in thousands) 

Balance, Januaty 1, 2008 1,460,602 $15 $14,687 $4,901 $ (23) $19,580 
Comprehensive income: 
Net income , 1,038 1,038 
Reclassification adjustment for 

(gains) losses realized, net of 
income taxes of $10 (16) (16) 

Changes in net unrealized gains 
(losses) on securities available for 
sale, net of income taxes of $4 . . 7 '!_ 

Total comprehensive income . . . . 1,029 
Shares issued under stock option 

transactions 200 2 2 
Excess tax benefit from equity-

based awards 1 1 

Balance, December 31, 2008 1,460,802 15 14,690 5,939 (32) 20,612 
Comprehensive income: 
Net income 1,048 1,048 
Reclassification adjustment for 

(gains) losses realized, net of 
income taxes of $93 . (142) (142) 

Changes in net unrealized gains 
(losses) on securities available for 
sale, net of income tax benefits 
of $144 . . . 220 220 

Total comprehensive income . . . . 
Shares issued under stock option 

transactions 1,000 
Compensation expense from stock 

option transactions 

Balance, December 31, 2009 1,461,802 $15 

10 

2 

$14,702 $6,987 $ 46 

1,126 

10 

2 

. $21,750 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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Frederick County Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

Years Ended 
December 31 

2009 2008 

(doUars in thousands) 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Net income .' . $ 1,048 $ 1,038 

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating 
activities: 
Depreciation and amortization 320 334 
Deferred income taxes (benefits) 58 (216) 
Provision for loan losses 1,175 935 
Securities gains (235) (26) 
Net premium amortization on investment securities 55 — 
Loss (gain) on sale of foreclosed property 37 (15) 
Provision for foreclosed properties — 25 
(Increase) decrease in accrued interest and other assets (1,005) 60 
Decrease in accrued interest and other liabilities (100) (116) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 1,353 2,019 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Purchases of investment securities available-for-sale (16,802) (3,053) 
Proceeds from sales of investment securities available-for-sale 8,453 5,040 
Proceeds from maturities, prepayments and calls of investment securities 

avaUable-for-sale • 4,620 5,496 
Redemptions (purchases) of restricted stock 33 (159) 
Net increase in loans (4,925) (3,734) 
Purchases of bank premises and equipment '. (96) (43) 
Proceeds from sale of foreclosed properties 484 465 

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (8,233) 4,012 

Cash flows from financing activities: 
Net increase (decrease) in NOW, money market accounts, savings accounts and 

noninterest-bearing deposits 23,585 (760) 
Net decrease in time deposits (21,156) (1,585) 
Proceeds from short-term borrowings 500 —• 
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 10 2 
Excess tax benefit from equity-based awards — 1 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 2,939 (2,342) 

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (3,941) 3,689 
Cash and cash equivalents—^beginning of year 16,055 12,366 

Cash and cash equivalents—end of year ; $ 12,114 $16,055 

Supplemental cash flow disclosure: 

Interest paid $ 5,370 $J7,180 

Income taxes paid $ 380 $ 589 

Transfer of loans to foreclosed properties $ 654 $ — 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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FREDERICK COUNTY BANCORR INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 1. Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies: 

Frederick County Bancorp, Inc. (the "Bancorp"), the parent company for its wholly-owned 
subsidiary Frederick County Bank (the "Bank" and together with Bancorp, the "Company"), was 
organized in September 2003. The Bank was incorporated under the laws of the State of Matyland in 
August 2000 and commenced banking operations in October 2001. The Bank provides its customers 
with various banking services. The Bank offers various loan and deposit products to their customers. 
The Bank's customers include individuals and commercial enterprises within its principal market area 
consisting of Frederick County, Matyland. The Company also has a subsidiaty trust, established to issue 
trust preferred securities, and two subsidiaries established to hold foreclosed properties. The two 
subsidiaries established to hold foreclosed properties are known as FCB Holdings, Inc (a direct 
subsidiaty of Bancorp) and FCB Hagerstown, LLC (an indirect subsidiaty of Bancorp). See Note 8 for 
additional disclosures for the subsidiaty trust. 

Additionally, the Bank maintains correspondent banking relationships and transacts daily federal 
funds sales on an unsecured basis with regional correspondent banks. Note 3 discusses the types of 
securities the Bank invests in. Note 4 discusses the types of lending that the Bank engages in. The 
Bank does not have any significant concentrations to any one industty or customer. 

The accounting and reporting policies and practices of the Company conform with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The following is a summaty of the 
Company's significant accounting policies: 

The Company has evaluated subsequent events for potential recognition and/or disclosure through 
Februaty 24, 2010, the date the consolidated financial statements were included in this Form 10-K. 

Principles of consolidation: 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and the 
Bank. 

The Company also has an investment in FCBI Statutoty Trust I, a statutoty trust that is not 
consolidated in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification ASC Topic 810 Consolidation. See 
Note 8. 

In consolidation, all significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated. 

Use of estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates. 

Comprehensive income: 

Accounting principles generally require that recognized revenue, expenses, gains, and losses be 
included in net income. Certain changes in assets and liabUities, such as unrealized gains and losses on 
available-for-sale securities, are reported as a separate component of the equity section of the balance 
sheet. Such items, along with net income, are components of comprehensive income. 
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Presentation of cash flows: 

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, amounts 
due from banks (including cash items in process of clearing) and interest-bearing deposits in banks with 
an original maturity of 90 days or less, and federal funds sold. Generally, federal funds are sold for 
one-day periods. 

Investment securities: 

Securities classified as held-to-maturity are those debt securities the Company has both the intent 
and ability to hold to maturity regardless of changes in market conditions, liquidity needs or changes in 
general economic conditions. These securities are carried at cost, adjusted for amortization of premium 
and accretion of discount, computed using the interest method, over their contractual lives. 

Securities classified as avaUable-for-sale are equity securities with readily determinable fair values 
and those debt securities that the Company intends to hold for an indefinite period of time but not 
necessarily to maturity. Any decision to sell a security classified as available-for-sale would be based on 
various factors, including significant movement in interest rates, changes in the maturity mix of the 
Company's assets and liabilities, liquidity needs, regulatoty capital considerations, and other similar 
factors. These securities are carried at estimated fair value based on information provided by a third 
party pricing service with any unrealized gains or losses excluded from net income and reported in 
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), which is reported as a separate component of 
shareholders' equity, net of the related deferred tax effect. 

Dividend and interest income, including amortization of premium and accretion of discount arising 
at acquisition, from all categories of investment securities are included in interest income in the 
statements of income. 

Gains and losses realized on sales of investment securities, determined using the adjusted cost 
basis of the specific securities sold, are included in noninterest income in the consolidated statements 
of income. Additionally, declines in the estimated fair value of individual investment securities below 
their cost that are other-than-temporaty are reflected as realized losses in the statements of income. 
Factors affecting the determination of whether an other-than-temporaty impairment has occurred 
include a downgrading of the security by a rating agency, a significant deterioration in the financial 
condition of the issuer, or that management would not have the intent and ability to hold a security for 
a period of time sufficient to aUow for any anticipated recovety in fair value. 

Restricted stock is stock from the Federal Home Loan Bank ("FHLB") of Atlanta, the Federal 
Reserve Bank and the Atlantic Central Banker's Bank, which are restricted as to their marketability. 
Because no ready market exists for these investments and they have no quoted market value, the 
Bank's investment in these stocks are carried at cost. 

Loans and allowance for loan losses: 

Loans are carried at the amount of unpaid principal, adjusted for deferred loan fees and 
origination costs. Interest on loans is accrued based on the principal amounts outstanding. 
Nonrefundable loan fees and related direct costs are deferred and the net amount is amortized to 
income as a yield adjustment over the life of the loan using the interest method. When principal or 
interest is delinquent for ninety days or more, the Company evaluates the loan for nonaccrual status. 
After a loan is placed on nonaccrual status, all interest previously accrued but not collected is reversed 
against current period interest income. Subsequent collections of interest payments on nonaccrual loans 
are recognized as interest income unless ultimate collectability of the loan is in doubt. Cash collections 
on loans where ultimate collectability remains in doubt are applied as reductions of the loan principal 
balance and no interest income is recognized until the principal balance has been collected. 
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The allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to have occurred through a 
provision for loan losses charged to earnings. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when 
management believes the uncoUectibUity of a loan balance is confirmed. Subsequent recoveries, if any, 
are credited to the allowance. The allowance is based on two basic principles of accounting: (i) ASC 
Topic 450 Contingencies, which requires that losses be accrued when they are probable of occurring and 
estimable and (ii) ASC Topic 310 Receivables, which requires that losses be accrued based on the 
differences between the loan balance and either the value of collateral, if such loans are considered to 
be collateral dependent and in the process of collection, or the present value of future cash flows, or 
the loan's value as observable in the secondaty market. A loan is considered impaired when, based on 
current information and events, it is probable that the Company wiU be unable to collect the scheduled 
payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. 
Factors considered by management in determining impairment include payment status, collateral value 
and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due. Loans that ~ 
experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired. 
Management determines the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case 
basis, taking into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and borrower, including 
the length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower's prior payment record, and the amount 
of the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed. 

The Company's allowance for loan losses has three basic components: the specific aUowance, the 
formula aUowance and the pooled allowance. Each of these components is determined based upon 
estimates that can and do change when the actual events occur. As a result of the uncertainties 
inherent in the estimation process, management's estimate of loan losses and the related allowance 
could change in the near term. 

The specific allowance component is used to individually establish an allowance for loans identified 
for impairment testing. When impairment is identified, a specific reserve may be established based on 
the Company's calculation of the estimated loss embedded in the individual loan. Impairment testing 
includes consideration of the borrower's overall financial condition, resources and payment record, 
support available from financial guarantors and the fair market value of collateral. These factors are 
combined to estimate the probability and severity of inherent losses. Large groups of smaUer balance, 
homogeneous loans are collectively evaluated for impairment. Accordingly, the Company does not 
separately evaluate individual consumer and residential loans for impairment. 

The formula allowance component is used for estimating the loss on internally risk rated loans 
exclusive of those identified as impaired. The loans meefing the Company's internal criteria for 
classification, such as special mention, substandard, doubtful and loss, as well as impaired loans, are 
segregated from performing loans within the portfolio. These internally classified loans are then 
grouped by loan type (commercial, commercial real estate, commercial construction, residential real 
estate, residential construction or installment). Each loan type is assigned an allowance factor based on 
management's estimate of the associated risk, complexity and size of the individual loans within the 
particular loan categoty. Classified loans are assigned a higher allowance factor than non-classified 
loans due to management's concerns regarding coUectabUity or management's knowledge of particular 
elements surrounding the borrower. Allowance factors increase with the worsening of the internal risk 
rating. 

The pooled formula component is used to estimate the losses inherent in the pools of 
non-classified loans. These loans are then also segregated by loan type and allowance factors are 
assigned by management based on delinquencies, loss history, trends in volume and terms of loans, 
effects of changes in lending policy, the experience and depth of management, national and local 
economic trends, concentrations of credit, results of the loan review system and the effect of external 
factors (i.e. competition and regulatoty requirements). The allowance factors assigned differ by loan 
fype. 
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Allowance factors and overall size of the allowance may change from period to period based on 
management's assessment of the above-described factors and the relative weights given to each factor. 
In addition, various regulatoty agencies periodically review the allowance for loan losses. These 
agencies may require the Bank to make additions to the allowance for loan losses based on their 
judgments of coUectibUity based on information avaUable to them at the time of their examination. 

Bank premises and equipment: 

Bank premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. 
The provision for depreciation is computed using straight-line and accelerated methods based on the 
estimated useful lives of the assets, which range from 5 to 10 years for bank equipment and 39 years 
for bank buildings. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lesser of the terms of the leases or 
their estimated useful lives. Expenditures for improvements, which extend the life of an asset, are 
capitalized and depreciated over the asset's remaining useful life. Gains or losses realized on the 
disposition of properties and equipment are reflected in the statements of income. Expenditures for 
repairs and maintenance are charged to operating expenses as incurred. 

Foreclosed properties: 

Foreclosed properties include properties that have been acquired in complete or partial satisfaction 
of a debt. These properties are initially recorded at fair value on the date of acquisition. Any write
downs at the time of acquisition are charged to the allowance for loan losses. Subsequent to 
acquisition, a valuation aUowance is established, if necessaty, to report these assets at the lower of 
(a) fair value minus estimated costs to sell or (b) cost. Gains and losses realized on the sale, and any 
adjustments resulting from periodic re-evaluation of this property are included in noninterest income or 
expense, as appropriate. Net costs of maintaining and operating the properties are expensed as 
incurred. 

Stock-based compensation plan: 

The Company maintains an Employee Stock Option Plan, which is described more fully in 
Note 10, and provides for grants of incentive and non-incentive stock options. This plan has been 
presented to and approved by the Company's shareholders. 

Compensation cost for all stock-based awards is measured at fair value on date of grant and 
recognized over the service period for awards expected to vest. Such value is recognized as expense 
over the service period, net of estimated forfeitures. The estimation of stock awards that wUl ultimately 
vest requires judgment, and to the extent actual results or updated estimates differ from our current 
estimates, such amounts will be recorded as a cumulative adjustment in the period estimates are 
revised. We consider many factors when estimating expected forfeitures, including types of awards, 
employee class, and historical experience. 

Income taxes: 

Provisions for income taxes are based on taxes payable or refundable for the current year and 
deferred taxes on temporaty differences between the amount of taxable income and pretax financial 
income and between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their reported amounts in the financial 
statements. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are included in the financial statements at currently 
enacted income tax rates applicable to the period in which the deferred tax assets and liabUities are 
expected to be realized or settled. As changes in tax laws or rates are enacted, deferred tax assets and 
liabilities are adjusted through the provision for income taxes. In addition, deferred tax assets are 
reduced by a valuation aUowance when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that 
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some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. We recognize interest and penalties 
related to income tax matters in income tax expense. 

Fair value measurements: 

The Company follows the guidance of ASC Topic 825 Financial Instruments and ASC Topic 820 
Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures. This guidance permUs entUies to measure many financial 
instruments and certain other items at fair value. The objective is to improve financial reporting by 
providing entities with the opportunity to mitigate volatility in reported earnings caused by measuring 
related assets and liabilities differently without having to apply complex hedge accounfing provisions. 
This guidance clarifies that fair value is an exit price, representing the amount that would be received 
to sell and asset or paid to transfer a liabUity in an orderly transaction between market participants. 
Under this guidance, fair value measurements are not adjusted for transaction costs. This guidance 
establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair 
value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for 
identical assets or liabUities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs 
(Level 3 measurements). 

Per share amounts: 

Earnings per share ("EPS") are disclosed as basic and diluted. Basic EPS is generally computed by 
dividing net income by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the period, 
whereas dUuted EPS essentially reflects the potendal dilution in basic EPS, determined using the 
treasuty stock method, that could occur if other contracts to issue common stock were exercised. 

Years Ended December 31, 

Net income 

Basic earnings per share . 

Diluted earnings per share 

Basic weighted average number of shares outstanding . . . . 
Effect of dilutive securities—stock options 

Diluted weighted average number of shares outstanding . . . 

Transfers of financial assets: 

The Company accounts for transfers and servicing of financial assets in accordance with ASC Topic 
860 Transfers and Servicing. Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales only when control 
over the assets has been surrendered. Control over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered 
when (1) the assets have been isolated from the Company, (2) the transferee obtains the right (free of 
conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to pledge or exchange the transferred 
assets, and (3) the Company does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets through an 
agreement to repurchase them before their maturity. 

Valuation of long-lived assets: 

The Company accounts for the valuation of long-lived assets under ASC Topic 360 Property, Plant 
and Equipment. This guidance requires that long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangible assets 
be reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the cartying 
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2009 2008 

(dollars in thousands, 
except per share amounts) 

$ ' 1,048 

$ 0.72 

$ 0.71 

1,461,079 
13,989 

1,475,068 

$ 1,038 

$ 0.71 

$ 0.69 

1,460,670 
42,702 

1,503,372 



amount of an asset may not be recoverable. RecoverabiUty of the long-lived asset is measured by a 
comparison of the cartying amount of the asset to future undiscounted net cash flows expected to be 
generated by the asset. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is 
measured by the amount by which the cartying amount of the assets exceeds the estimated fair value of 
the assets. Assets to be disposed of are reportable at the lower of the cartying amount or fair value, 
less costs to seU. • 

Segment reporting: 

ASC Topic 280 Segment Reporting, requires that an enterprise report selected information about 
operating segments in its financial reports issued to its shareholders. Based on the analysis performed 
by the Company, management has determined that the Company only has one operating segment, 
which is commercial banking. The chief operating decision-makers use consolidated results to make 
operating and strategic decisions, and therefore, are not required to disclose any additional segment 
information. 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued new guidance under ASC Topic 805 
Business Combinations. This guidance is for business combinations which the acquisition date is on or 
after December 15, 2008. These business combinations use "acquisition accounting" which recognizes 
and measures the goodwUl acquired in the business combination and defines a bargain purchase, and 
requires the acquirer to recognize that excess as a gain attributable to the acquirer. The Company 
adopted this new guidance effective March 31, 2009, and adoption did not have a material impact on 
the Company's consohdated financial statements. 

The FASB issued new guidance under ASC Topic 810 Consolidation for guidance which establishes 
accounting and reporting standards for the noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary and for the 
deconsolidation of a subsidiaty. It clarifies that a noncontrolling interest in a subsidiaty is an ownership 
interest in the consolidated entity that should be reported as equity in the consolidated financial 
statement, but separate from the parent's equity. This guidance is effective for fiscal years, and interim 
periods within those fiscal years, beginning on or after December 15, 2008. Management adopted this 
guidance effective March 31, 2009, and adoption did not have a material impact on the Company's 
consolidated financial condition or results of operations. 

The FASB issued new guidance under ASC Topic 815 Derivatives and Hedging for guidance 
regarding disclosures for derivatives. This guidance requires qualitative disclosures about objectives and 
strategies for using derivative, quantitative disclosures about fair value amounts of and gains and losses 
on derivative instruments, and disclosures about credit-risk-related contingent features in derivative 
agreements. This guidance is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim 
periods beginning after November 15, 2008. Adoption of this new guidance, effective Januaty 1, 2009, 
did not have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements. 

The FASB issued new guidance under ASC Topic 260 Eamings per Share for guidance regarding 
earnings per share which requires companies to treat unvested share-based payment awards that have 
non-forfeitable rights to dividend or dividend equivalents as a separate class of securities in calculating 
earnings per share. This guidance is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim 
periods beginning after December 15, 2008, and requires a company to retrospectively adjust its 
earnings per share data. The Company adopted this guidance effective March 31, 2009, and adoption 
did not have a material effect on consolidated results of operations or earnings per share. 

The FASB issued new guidance under ASC Topic 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosure for 
guidance regarding the application of fair value accounting to address concerns regarding 
(1) determining whether a market is not active and a transaction is not orderly, (2) recognition and 
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presentation of other-than-temporaty impairments and (3) interim disclosures of fair values of financial 
instruments. The Company adopted this guidance effective September 30, 2009, and adoption did not 
have a material effect on consolidated results of operations. 

The FASB issued new guidance under ASC Topic 855 Subsequent Events for guidance regarding 
subsequent events. The objective of this guidance is to establish general standards of accounting for 
and disclosure of events that occur after the balance sheet date, but before financial statements are 
issued or are available to be issued. The Company adopted this guidance effective September 30, 2009, 
and adoption did not have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial condition or 
results of operations. 

The FASB issued new guidance under ASC Topic 860 Transfers and Servicing for guidance on the 
transfer and servicing of financial assets. This guidance eliminates the concept of a "qualifying special-
purpose entify" from the original accounting guidance and removes the exception from applying FASB 
guidance on consolidation of variable interest entities, to qualifying special-purpose entities. This 
guidance is effective at the beginning of a reporting entify's first fiscal year that begins after 
November 15, 2009. The Company does not anticipate that its adoption would have a material impact 
on the Company's consolidated financial condition or results of operations. 

The FASB issued new guidance under ASC Topic 810 Consolidation for guidance on the 
consolidation of variable interest entities. This amends the original guidance, to require an enterprise to 
perform an analysis to determine whether the enterprise's variable interest or interests give it a 
controlling financial interest in a variable interest entify (VIE). This analysis identifies the primaty 
beneficiaty of a VIE as the enterprise that has both (a) the power to direct the activities of a VIE that 
most significantly impact the entity's economic performance, and (b) the obligation to absorb losses of 
the entity that could potentially be significant to the VIE. Additionally,'this new guidance requires an 
enterprise to assess whether it has an implicit financial responsibility to ensure that a VIE operates as 
designed when determining it has the power to direct the activities of the VIE that most significantly 
impact the entity's economic performance. It is effective at the beginning of a company's first fiscal 
year that begins after November 15, 2009. The Company does not anticipate that its adoption would 
have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial condition or results of operations. 

Note 2. Compensating Balances: 

Compensating balance arrangements exist with various correspondent banks. These noninterest-
bearing deposits are maintained in lieu of cash payments for standard bank services. The required 
balances amounted to $750,000 and $60,000 at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. In addition, 
for the reserve maintenance period in effect at December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company was 
required to maintain balances of $350,000 with the Federal Reserve Bank. 
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Note 3. Investments: 

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of securities classified as available-for-sale at 
December 31, 2009 and 2008 are as foUows: 

Available-for-sale 

December 31, 2009 

Amortized 
December 31, 2008 Cost 

U.S. Treasuty and other U.S. government agencies 
and corporations: 
Due within one year $ 490 
Due after one year through five years 1,391 
Due after five years through ten years 497 

2,378 

States and political subdivisions: 
Due after five years through ten years 910 
Due after ten years 6,935 

7,845 

Mortgage-backed debt securities ; . . . . . 13,478 
Equity securities 300 

$24,001 

Amortized 
December 31, 2008 Cost 

U.S. Treasuty and other U.S. government agencies 
and corporations: 
Due after one year through five years 
Due after five years through ten years 

States and political subdivisions: 
Due after five years through ten years 
Due after ten years 

Mortgage-backed debt securities 
Equity securities 

Gross 
Unrealized 

Gains 

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses 

(dollars in thousands) 

(dollars in thousands) 

Estimated 
Fair 

Value 

$ 3 
29 
29 
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2 
35 

37 

83 
— 

$181 

Gross 
Unrealized 

Gains 

$ -
5 

— 

5 

3 
28 

3 1 > 

69 
— • 

$105 

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses 

$ 493 
1,415 

526 

2,434 

909 
6,942 

7,851 

13,492 
300 

$24,077 

Estimated 
Fair 

Value 

$ 2,283 
645 

2,928 

405 
5,281 

5,686 

11,178 
300 

$20,092 

$ 20 
5 

25 

15 

15 

166 

$206 

$ 1 

1 

13 
202 

215 

42 

$258 

$ 2,302 
650 

2,952 

392 
5,094 

5,486 

11,302 
300 

$20,040 
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Information pertaining to securities with gross unrealized losses, aggregated by investment categoty 
and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous loss position, are as follows: 

December 31, 2009 

U.S. Treasuty and other U.S. 
government agencies and 
corporations . 

State and political subdivisions . . . . . 
Mortgage-backed debt securities . . . 

Total temporarily impaired securities . 

Continuous unrealized 
losses existing for 

less than 12 months 

Fair Unrealized 
Value Losses 

$ 870 $ 5 
4,112 28 
7,233 69 

$12,215 $102 

Continuous unrealized 
losses existing for 

12 months and greater 

Fair Unrealized 
Value Losses 

$ -
152 

$152 

$ -
3 

$ 3 

Total 

Fair 
Value 

$ 870 
4,264 
7,233 

$12,367 

Unrealized 
Losses 

$ 5 
31 
69 

$105 

As of December 31, 2009, management does not have the intent to sell any of the securities in the 
above table and believes that it is more likely than not that the Company will not have to sell any such 
securities before maturity or recovety of their amortized cost. 

Continuous unrealized 
losses existing for 

less than 12 months 

Continuous unrealized 
losses existing for 

12 months and greater Total 

December 31, 2008 

U.S. Treasuty and other U.S. 
government agencies and 
corporations 

State and political subdivisions . . . . , 
Mortgage-backed debt securities . . . 

Total temporarily impaired securities 

Fair 
Value 

S 942 
3,299 
2,448 

Unrealized 
Losses 

S 1 
204 
42 

Fair 
Value 

Unrealized 
Losses 

$6,689 $247 

(dollars in thousands) 

$ — $— 
192 11 

$192 $11 

Fair 
Value 

$ 942 
3,491 
2,448 

. $6,881 

Unrealized 
Losses 

$ 1 
215 
42 

$258 

The bonds in an unrealized loss position at December 31, 2009 were temporarily impaired due to 
the cirrrent interest rate environment and not increased credit risk. All securities owned by the 
Company are payable at par at maturity. Of the temporarily impaired securities, one (1) is a U.S. 
Government agency issued bond (the Federal Home Loan Bank) rated AAA by Standard and Poor's, 
seven (7) are government sponsored enterprise issued bonds (Federal National Mortgage Association, 
Government National Mortgage Association and Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation) rated 
AAA by Standard and Poor's, and eleven (11) municipal bonds rated by Standard and Poor's or 
Moody's are as follows: two (2) rated AAA, one (1) rated A-I-, four (4) rated Al, one (1) rated A3, 
and three (3) not rated. 

Included in the investment portfolio at December 31, 2009 and 2008 are securities carried at 
$939,000 and $4,331,000, respectively, which are pledged for public fund deposits, to secure repurchase 
agreements and for other purposes as required and permitted by law. 

Gross gains of $235,000 and $26,000 in 2009 and 2008, respectively, were realized from sales of 
investment securities available-for-sale. 
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Restricted Stock 

The following table shows the amounts of restricted stock as of December 31, 2009 and 2008: 

2009 2008 

(dollars in thousands) 

Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta $ 952 $1,000 
Federal Reserve Bank 574 559 
Atlantic Central Bankers Bank 40 40 

$1,566 $1,599 

Note 4, Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses: 

Loans consist of the following at December 31, 2009 and 2008: 

2009 2008 

(dollars in thousands) 

Real estate loans: 
Construction and land development $ 15,726 $ 17,049 

Realestate—mortgage loans: 
Secured by 1 to 4 family residential properties 36,369 36,986 
Secured by multi-family (5 or more) residential properties . . . . 12,348 8,856 
Secured by commercial properties 106,378 105,637 
Secured by farm land 6,995 6,747 

Total real estate—mortgage loans 162,090 158,226 

Loans to farmers 46 48 
Commercial and industrial loans 35,351 34,779 
Loans to individuals for household, family and other personal 

expenditures 1,730 1,738 

Total loans " 214,943 211,840 
Less aUowance for loan losses (3,127) (3,120)' 

Net loans $211,816 $208,720 

Transactions in the aUowance for loan losses for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 are 
summarized as follows: 

2009 2008 

(dollars in thousands) 

Balance at beginning of year $3,120 $2,640 
Provision charged to operating expenses 1,175 935 
Recoveries of loans previously charged-off 4 10 

4,299 3,585 
Loans charged-off (1,172) (465) 

Balance at end of year $3,127 $3,120 
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Information concerning the Company's recorded impaired loans and related interest income as of 
December 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows: 

, 2009 2008 

(dollars in 
thousands) 

Impaired loans with related allowance $4,982 $2,297 
Specific allocation of allowance $ 600 $ 631 
Impaired loans with no related allowance $7,968 $ — 

At December 31, 2009 and 2008, nonaccrual loans are $943,000 and $1,197,000, respectively. The 
Company did not have any loans that were 90 days or more past due that were still accruing interest as 
of December 31, 2009 or 2008. 

2009 2008 

(dollars in thousands) 

Average recorded investment in impaired loans $11,754 $1,197 
Interest income recognized on nonaccrual impaired loans based on 

cash payments received $ — $ 72 

Interest income on impaired loans other than nonaccrual loans is recognized on an accrual basis. 
Interest income on nonaccrual loans is recognized only as collected. Interest income forgone on 
nonaccrual loans at December 31, 2009 and 2008 amounted to $78,000 and $26,000, respectively. 

Note 5. Bank Premises and Equipment: 

Bank premises and equipment consisted of the following at December 31, 2009 and 2008: 

2009 2008 

(dollars in thousands) 

Land $ 1,924 $ 1,924 
Buildings 2,277 2,287 
Furniture and equipment 2,025 2,019 
Leasehold improvements 446 442 

6,672 6,672 
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (1,675) (1,451) 

$ 4,997 $ 5,221 

Depreciation and amortization charged to operations amounted to $320,000 in 2009 and $334,000 
ins in 2008 

Note 6. Deposits: 

Certificates of deposit and other time deposits issued in denominations of $100,000 or more 
totaled $42,752,000 and $57,835,000 at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectivefy, and are included in 
interest-bearing deposits in the balance sheet. 
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At December 31, 2009, the maturity distribution of certificates of deposit are as follows: 
Certificates 

Maturing in: of Deposit 

(dollars in 
thousands) 

2010 $ 73,667 
2011 26,725 
2012 2,657 
2013 496 
2014 5,482 

$109,027 

Interest on deposUs for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 consists of the following: 

2009 2008 

(dollars in thousands) 

NOW accounts $ 27 $ 37 
Savings accounts 7 20 
Money market accounts . 537 752 
Certificates of deposit $100,000 and over 2,201 2,440 
Certificates of deposit under $100,000 . ' . 1,628 2,981 

$4,400 $6,230 

Note 7. Borrowings: 

During 2009 and 2008, the Company had no sales of securities under agreements to repurchase the 
same securities. 

Short-term borrowings: 

2009 2008 

(dollars in thousands) 

Total outstanding at year-end $500 $ — 
Average amount outstanding during the year $184 $ 749 
Maximum amount outstanding at any month-end. $500 $4,000 
Weighted-average interest rate at year-end 4.25% — 
Weighted-average interest rate during the year 4.35% 2.40% 

The Company's unused lines of credit for short-term borrowings totaled $7,500,000 and $7,000,000 
at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. These include an unsecured line of credit from an 
unaffiliated financial institution for Bancorp in the amounts of $3,500,000 and $3,000,000 as of 
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, and an unsecured federal funds line of credit from an 
unaffiliated financial institution for the Bank in the amount of $4,000,000 at December 31, 2009 and 
2008. 

Long-Term Borrowings • 

The Company has a secured line of credit with the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta 
("FHLB") in the amount of $18,000,000, which is secured by a blanket lien on its 1-4 family residential 
mortgage loan portfolio and certain commercial real estate loans. At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the 
Company had $10,000,000 in borrowings under this credit facUity from the FHLB. There are two 
convertible advances in the amounts of $5,000,000 each, which are both at a rate of 4.56%, with 
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maturity dates of April 27, 2012 and September 4, 2012, unless called earlier on September 4, 2010, by 
the FHLB. 

Note 8. IVust preferred securities/junior subordinated debentures: 

In December 2006, Bancorp completed the private placement of an aggregate of $6,000,000 of 
trust preferred securities through FCBI Statutoty Trust I (the "Trust"), a newly formed trust subsidiaty 
organized under Connecticut law, of which Bancorp owns all of the common securities of $186,000. The 
principal asset of the Trust is a similar amount of Bancorp's junior subordinated debentures. The junior 
subordinated debentures bear interest at a fixed rate of 6.5375% until December 15, 2011, at which 
time the interest rate becomes a variable rate, adjusted quarterly, equal to 163 basis points over three-
month LIBOR. The junior subordinated debentures mature on December 15, 2036, and may be 
redeemed at par, at Bancorp's option, on any interest payment date commencing December 15, 2011. 
The securities are redeemable prior to December 15, 2011, at a premium ranging up to 103.525% of 
the principal amount thereof, upon the occurrence of certain regulatoty or legal events. The obligations 
of Bancorp with respect to the Trust's preferred securities constUute a full and unconditional guarantee 
by Bancorp of Trust's obUgations with respect to the trust preferred securities to the extent set forth in 
the related guarantee. Subject to certain exceptions and limitations, Bancorp may elect from time to 
time to defer interest payments on the junior subordinated debentures, resulting in a deferral of 
distribution payments on the related trust preferred securities. If the Company defers interest payments 
on the junior subordinated debentures, or otherwise is in default of the obligations, the Company 
would be prohibited from making dividend payments to its shareholders. 

The trust preferred securities may be included in Tier 1 capital for regulatoty capital adequacy 
purposes up to 25% of Tier 1 capital, net of goodwiU after its inclusion. The portion of the trust 
preferred securities not qualifying as Tier 1 capital may be included as part of total qualifying capital in 
Tier 2 capital, subject to limitation. 

Note 9. Leasing Arrangements: 

The Company leases branch and administrative office facilities under noncancellable operating 
lease arrangements whose maturify dates extend to July 2013. These leases contain options, which 
enable the Company to renew the leases at fair rental value for periods of 5 to 10 years. In addition to 
minimum rentals, certain leases have escalation clauses based upon various price indices and include 
provisions for additional payments to cover taxes, insurance and maintenance. See Note 16 for a 
discussion of the terms of a lease agreement with related parties. The total minimum rental 
commitment, including renewal periods under these leases at December 31, 2009 is outlined below: 

Years ending December 31 Total 
(dollars in 
thousands) 

2010 • $ 301 
2011 . 284 
2012 258 
2013 267 
2014 . 275 
Later years 1,491 

$2,876 

Rent expense included in occupancy and equipment expenses amounted to $387,000 in 2009 and 
$336,000 in 2008. 
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Note 10. Employee Benefit Plans: 

401(k) profit sharing plan: 

The Company has a Section 401(k) profit sharing plan covering employees meeting certain 
eligibility requirements as to minimum age and years of service. Employees may make voluntaty 
contributions to the Plan through payroll deductions on a pre-tax basis. The Company has the 
discretion to make matching contributions of 100% of the employee's contributions up to 4% of the 
employee's salaty. In 2009 and 2008, the Company made matching contributions of 100%. In AprU 
2009, the Company suspended the matching contribution for the remainder of 2009. A participant's 
account under the Plan, together with investment earnings thereon, is normally distributable, following 
retirement, death, disabUify or other termination of employment, in a single lump-sum payment. 

The Company expensed contribufions to the Plan in the amounts of $30,000 in 2009 and $115,000 
in 2008. 

Deferred compensation plan: 

On Januaty 28, 2002, the Board of Directors of the Bank approved the Frederick County Bank 
Executive and Director Deferred Compensation Plan (the "Plan"). The Plan was effective Januaty 1, 
2002 for certain executive employees and directors of the Bank. The purpose of the Plan is to (1) allow 
participants an opportunity to elect to defer the receipt of compensation ("Participant Coinpensation 
Deferral"), and (2) provide a vehicle for the Bank to credit amounts on a tax deferred basis for 
employee participants ("Employer Contribution Credit"). The Employer Contribution Credits are 
subject to various vesting restrictions and are available solely to Plan participants who are employees of 
the Bank. The Plan is intended to be a "top hat" plan under various provisions of the Employee 
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended. 

Each Plan participant's account wUl be adjusted for credited interest or increases or decreases in 
the realizable.net asset value, as applicable, of the designated deemed Plan investments. Benefit 
payments under the Plan, which in the aggregate equal the participant's vested account balance, will be 
paid in a lump sum or in five or ten substantially equal, annual installments, commencing on the date 
or dates selected by the Plan's participants. 

No amounts have been deferred or were expensed under this Plan in the accompanying 
consolidated statements of income for 2009 or 2008. 

Stock-based compensation plan: 

The 2001 Plan provides that 260,000 shares of the Company's common stock will be reserved for 
the granting of both incentive stock options (ISO) and non-incentive stock options (NQSO) to purchase 
these shares. At December 31, 2009, there are 123,540 shares remaining that are reserved for future 
grants under this plan. The exercise price per share shall not be less than the fair market value of a 
share of common stock on the date on which such opfions were granted, subject to adjustments for the 
effects of any stock splits or stock dividends, and may be exercised not later than ten years after the 
grant date. 
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127,810 

1,000 

3,000 

129,810 

127,710 

$10.00 

10.00 

10.75 

$10.02 

$10.01 

The foUowing is a summaty of transactions in the Plan during the years ended December 31, 2009 
and 2008. 

Options Issued Weighted-Average 
And Outstanding Exercise Price 

Balance at December 31, 2007 128,010 $10.00 

Exercised 200 10.00 
Terminated — — 
Granted — —• 

Balance at December 31, 2008 

Exercised 
Terminated 
Granted 

Balance at December 31, 2009 

Exercisable at December 31, 2009 

As noted in the table above, there were 3,000 options granted in 2009 and no options granted in 
2008. All prior grants were fully vested and exercisable as of December 31, 2007. The Company 
recognizes the cost of employee services received in exchange for an award of equity investment based 
on the grant-date fair value of the award. That cost wUl be recognized over the vesting period of the 
award. Stock-based compensation expense related to stock options for the year ended December 31, 
2009 was $3,000. As of December 31, 2009, there was $6,000 of total unrecognized compensation cost 
related to non-vested stock options that will be expensed over the next two years. 

The weighted-average fair value of options granted in the year ended December 31, 2009 was 
$2.97 and was estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model with the 
foUowing weighted-average assumptions. 

December 31, 2009 

Risk free interest rate of return 3.85% 
Expected option life (months) 120 
Expected volatility • 25% 
Expected dividends 2.50% 

The risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasuty yield curve in effect at the time of the 
grant. The expected life is based on historical exercise experience. The expected volatility is based on 
historic volatility. The dividend yield assumption is based on the Company's expectation of dividend 
payouts. 

The 129,810 options outstanding as of December 31, 2009, have an aggregate intrinsic value, which 
is the amount that the market value of the underlying stock exceeds the exercise price of the option, of 
$97,000. The aggregate intrinsic value of the options exercised in 2009 and 2008 amounted to $1,000 
and $2,000, respectively. 
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At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the 129,810 and 127,810 opfions issued and outstanding, 
respectively, had exercise prices and weighted-average remaining contractual lives as follows: 

December 31, 2009 2008 

Exercisable options: 
Options outstanding 127,710 127,810 
Weighted-average exercise price $ 10.01 $ 10.00 
Weighted-average remaining contractual life (months) 23 34 

Unexercisable options: 
Options outstanding 2,100 — 
Weighted-average exercise price $ 10.75 — 
Weighted-average remaining contractual life (months) 120 — 

Note 11. Income Taxes: 

Significant components of the Company's deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 31, 2009 
and 2008 were as follows: 

2009 2008 

(dollars in thousands) 

Deferred tax assets: 
Allowance for loan losses $1,115 $1,190 
Unrealized loss on securities available-for-sale — 21 
Other 46 35 

Total deferred tax assets 1,161 1,246 

Deferred tax liabUities: 
Unrealized gain on securities available-for-sale (30) — 
Depreciation (92) (99) 

Total deferred tax liabUities . (122) (99) 

Net deferred tax assets $1,039 $1,147 

A reconcUiation of the statutoty income tax to the provision for income taxes included in the 
consolidated statements of income for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 is as follows: 

2009 2008 

(dollars in thousands) 

Income before income tax $1,536 $1,479 
Tax rate 34% 34% 

Income tax at statutoty rate 522 503 
Increases (decreases) in tax resulting from: 

Tax exempt interest income (126) (135) 
State income taxes, net of federal income tax benefit 92 62 
Other —-, 11 

Provision for income taxes $ 488 $ 441 
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Significant components of the provision for income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2009 
and 2008 are as follows: 

2009 2008 

(dollars in thousands) 

Taxes currently payable: 
Federal $306 $ 485 
State J 2 5 172 

431 • 657 

Deferred tax expense (benefit): 
Federal 45 (146) 
State _ J 2 (70) 

57 (216) 

- Total $488 $ 441 

Note 12. Noninterest Expenses: 

Noninterest expenses included in the consolidated statements of income for the years ended 
December 31, 2009 and 2008 include the following: 

2009 2008 

• (dollars in thousands) 

Salaries $3,260 $3,296 
Deferred personnel costs . . . ., (74) (105) 
Payroll taxes 233 234 
Employee insurance 239 220 
Other employee benefits 71 157 
Depreciation 321 334 
Rent, net 387 331 
Utilifies 104 100 
Repairs and maintenance 234 223 
ATM expenses 104 103 
Other occupancy and equipment expenses 138 133 
Postage and supplies 64 67 
Data processing 411 365 
Advertising and promotion 175 266 
Provision for foreclosed properties — 25 
FDIC Insurance 486 160 
Legal 31 18 
Insurance 48 55 
Consulting . 30 13 
Courier 16 19 
AudU fees , 76 187 
Other , 437 325 

• $6,791 $6,526 
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Note 13. Shareholders' Equity: 

Restrictions on dividends: 

The amount of dividends that the Bank can pay to Bancorp wUhout approval from the Federal 
Reserve Board is limited to its net profits for the current year plus its retained net profits for the 
preceding two years. Under Matyland law, dividends may be paid without approval from the 
Department of Financial Institutions only out of undivided profits. At December 31, 2009, the Bank 
was limited from paying dividends to Bancorp in excess of $4,368,000, and by the requirement to meet 
certain capital ratios. The Bank did not pay any dividends to Bancorp in 2009 or 2008. 

Restrictions on lending from subsidiaty to parent: 

Federal law imposes certain restrictions limiting the ability of the Bank to transfer funds to 
Bancorp in the forms of loans or advances. Section 23A of the Federal Reserve Act prohibits the Bank 
from making loans or advances to Bancorp in excess of 10 percent of its capital stock and surplus, as 
defined therein. There were no loans or advances outstanding at December 31, 2009 and 2008. 

Capital: 

The Bank is, and when the Company's assets exceed $500,000,000, it has public debt or it engages 
in certain highly leverage activities, the Company wUl be, subject to various regulatoty capital 
requirements administered by the federal banking agencies. FaUure to meet minimum capital 
requirements can initiate certain mandatoty—and possibly additional discretionaty—actions by 
regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Company's financial 
statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatoty framework for prompt corrective 
action, the Company and the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative 
measures of the Company's and the Bank's assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items as 
calculated under regulatoty accounting practices. The Company's and the Bank's capital amounts and 
classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk 
weightings, and other factors. Prompt corrective action provisions are not applicable to bank holding 
companies. . 

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company 
and the Bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios of total and Tier 1 capital (as defined in the 
regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as defined), and Tier 1 capital (as defined) to average assets (as 
defined). Management believes that the Company and the Bank met all capital adequacy requirements 
to which they are subject as of December 31, 2009 and 2008. 

As of December 31, 2009, the most recent notification from the regulatoty agencies categorized 
the Bank as weU capitalized under the regulatoty framework for prompt corrective action. To be 
categorized as well capitalized the Bank must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based, and 
Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forth in the table. There are no conditions or events since that notification 
which management believes have changed the Bank's eategoty. 
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The Company's and the Bank's actual capital amounts and ratios at December 31, 2009 and 2008 
are presented in the following tables: 

Actual 

As of December 31, 2009 Amount 

Total Capital 
(to Risk-Weighted Assets): 
Company $30,636 
Bank $29,907 

Tier 1 Caphal 
(to Risk-Weighted Assets): 
Company $27,704 
Bank $26,987 

Tier 1 Capital 
(to Average Assets): 
Company $27,704 
Bank $26,987 

Ratio 

13.06% 
12.80% 

11.81% 
11.55% 

10.53% 
10.24% 

Actual 

As of December 31, 2008 Amount 

Total Capital 
(to Risk-Weighted Assets): 
Company $29,517 
Bank $28,504 

Tier 1 CapUal 
(to Risk-Weighted Assets): 
Company $26,644 
Bank $25,637 

Tier 1 CapUal 
(to Average Assets): 
Company $26,644 
Bank $25,637 

Ratio 

12.84% 
12.43% 

11.59% 
11.18% 

10.31% 
9.94% 

For Capital 
Adequacy Purposes 

Amount Ratio 

Minimum To Be Well 
Capitalized Under 
Prompt Corrective 
Action Provisions 

Amount Ratio 

(dollars in thousands) 

$18,767 , 8.00% N/A N/A 
$18,688 8.00% $23,360 10.00% 

$ 9,384 4.00% N/A N/A 
$ 9,344 4.00% $14,016 6.00% 

$10,522 4.00% N/A N/A 
$10,545 4.00% $13,181 5.00% 

For Capital 
Adequacy Purposes 

Ratio 

Minimum To Be Well 
Capitalized Under 
Prompt Corrective 
Action Provisions 

Amount 

(dollars in thousands) 

Amount Ratio 

$18,387 8.00% N/A N/A 
$18,348 8.00% $22,936 10.00% 

$ 9,194 4.00% N/A N/A 
$ 9,174 4.00% $13,761 6.00% 

$10,338 4.00% N/A N/A 
$10,319 4.00% $12,899 5.00% 

Note 14. Fair Value Measurements: 

The FASB issued new guidance under ASC Topic 825 Financial Instruments. This Statement 
permits entities to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value. The 
objective is to improve financial reporting by providing entUies with the opportunity to mUigate 
volatility in reported earnings caused by measuring related assets and liabilities differently without 
having to apply complex hedge accounting provisions. The election to use the fair value option is 
available when an entity first recognizes a financial asset or financial liability or upon entering into a 
Company commitment. Subsequent changes must be recorded in earnings. The Company adopted this 
guidance as of Januaty 1, 2008 and it did not have a material impact on its financial position or results 
of operations. 
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Simultaneously with the adoption of ASC Topic 825, the Company adopted ASC Topic 820 Fair 
Value Measurements and Disclosures, effective Januaty 1, 2008. This guidance clarifies that fair value is 
an exit price, representing the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a 
liabUity in an orderly transaction between market participants. Under this guidance, fair value 
measurements are not adjusted for transaction costs. This guidance establishes a fair value hierarchy 
that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the 
highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 
measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels 
of the fair value hierarchy under this guidance are described below. 

Level 1 Valuations for assets and liabUities traded in active exchange markets. Valuations are 
obtained from readily avaUable pricing sources for market transactions involving identical 
assets or liabilities. 

Level 2 Valuations for assets and liabihties traded in less active dealer or broker markets. 
Valuations are obtained from third party pricing services for identical or comparable assets 
or liabUities which use observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices 
for sihiilar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in active markets that are not active; or other 
inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for 
substantially the full term of the assets or liabUities. 

Level 3 Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are 
significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities. 

A financial instrument's level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input 
that is significant to the fair value measurement. 

The types of instruments valued based on quoted market prices in active markets include most 
U.S. government and agency securities, liquid mortgage products, active listed equities and most money 
market securities. Such instruments are generally classified within Level 1 or Level 2 of the fair value 
hierarchy. As required by this guidance, the Company does not adjust the quoted price for such 
instruments. 

The types of instruments valued based on quoted prices in markets that are not active, broker or 
dealer quotations, or alternative pricing sources with reasonable levels of price transparency include 
most investment-grade and high-yield corporate bonds, less liquid mortgage products, less liquid 
equities, state, municipal and provincial obligations, and certain physical commodities. Such instruments 
are generally classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. 

Level 3 is for positions that are not traded in active markets or are subject to transfer restrictions, 
valuations are adjusted to reflect illiquidity and/or non-transferability, and such adjustments are 
generally based on avaUable market evidence. In the absence of such evidence, management's best 
estimate is used. 

Impaired loans are evaluated and valued at the time the loan is identified as impaired, at the 
lower of cost or market value. Market value is measured based on the value of the collateral securing -
these loans and is classified at a Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. CoUateral may be real estate 
and/or business assets including equipment, inventoty and/or accounts receivable. The value of real 
estate collateral is determined based on appraisal by qualified licensed appraisers hired by the 
Company. The value of business equipment, inventoty and accounts receivable coUateral is based on 
the net book value on the business' financial statements and, if necessaty, discounted based on 
management's review and analysis. Appraised and reported values may be discounted based on 
management's historical knowledge, changes in market conditions from the time of valuation, and/or 
management's expertise and knowledge of the client and client's business. Impaired loans are reviewed 
and evaluated on at least a quarterly basis for additional impairment and adjusted accordingly, based 
on the same factors identified above. 
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The following table sets forth the Company's financial assets and liabilities that were accounted for 
or disclosed at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2009. 

Securities avaUable for sale 

Carrying Value 
(Fair Value) 

$24,077 

Quoted Prices 
(Level 1) 

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

(Level 2) 

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
(Level 3) 

(dollars in thousands) 

$ _ $24,077 

The following table sets forth the Company's financial assets and liabUities that were accounted for 
or disclosed at fair value on a nonrecurring basis as of December 31, 2009. 

Other real estate owned 
Impaired loans 

Carrying Value 
(Fair Value) 

$ 495 
$12,950 

Quoted Prices 
(Level 1) 

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

(Level 2) 

(dollars in thousands) 

$-

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
(Level 3) 

$ 495 
$12,950 

The following table provides a reconciliation of all assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring 
basis using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) for the year ended December 31, 2009. 

Foreclosed Impaired 
Properties Loans 

(dollars in thousands) 

Balance at December 31, 2008 $363 $ 2,297 

Total net gains (losses) for the year included in: 
Gain on sale of foreclosed properties (37) — 
Other comprehensive gain (loss) — — 

Purchases and sales, net — — 
Net transfers in (out) 169 10,653 

Balance at December 31, 2009 $495 $12,950 
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Note 15. Fair Value of Financial Instruments: 

In accordance with the disclosure requirements of ASC Topic 825 Financial Instmments, the 
estimated fair values of the Company's financial instruments are as follows: 

December 31, 2009 December 31, 2008 

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair 

Amount Value Amount Value 

(dollars in thousands) 

Financial Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 12,114 $ 12,114 $ 16,055 $ 16,055 
Investment securities available-for-sale 24,077 24,077 20,040 20,040 
Restricted stock 1,566 1,566 1,599 1,599 
Net loans 211,816 212,777 208,720 207,678 
Accrued interest receivable 871 871 821 821 

Financial Liabilities 
Deposits $219,312 $224,694 $216,883 $223,718 
Short-term borrowings 500 500 — — 
Long-term borrowings 10,000 10,695 10,000 10,914 
Junior subordinated debentures . 6,186 5,960 6,186 6,048 
Accrued interest payable 194 194 290 290 

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value disclosures for 
financial instruments as of December 31, 2009 and 2008: 

Cash and cash equivalents: 

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents is estimated to approximate the cartying amounts. 

Investment securities and restricted stock: 

Fair values are based on quoted market prices, except for certain restricted stocks where fair value 
equals par value because of certain redemption restrictions. 

Loans: 

Fair values are estimated for portfolios of loans with similar financial characteristics. Each portfolio 
is further segmented into fixed and adjustable rate interest terms by performing and non-performing 
categories. 

The fair value of performing loans is calculated by discounting estimated cash flows using current 
rates at which similar loans would be made to borrowers with simUar credit ratings and for the same 
remaining maturities. The estimated cash flows do not anticipate prepayments. 

Management has made estimates of fair value discount rates that it believes to be reasonable. 
However, because there is no market for many of these financial instruments, management has no basis 
to determine whether the fair value presented for loans would be indicative of the value negotiated in 
an actual sale. 

Deposits: 

The fair value of deposits with no stated maturity, such as noninterest-bearing demand deposits, 
savings, NOW accounts and money market accounts, is equal to the amount payable on demand at the 
reporting date (that is, their cartying amounts). The fair value of certificates of deposit is based on the 
discounted value of contractual cash flows. The discount rate is estimated using the rates currently 
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offered for deposits of similar remaining maturities. The fair value estimates do not include the benefit 
that results from the low-cost funding provided by the deposit liabUities compared to the cost of 
borrowing funds in the market. 

Short-term borrowings: 

The fair value of short-term borrowings is determined using rates currently avaUable to the 
Company for debt with similar terms and remaining maturities. 

Long-term borrowings: 

The fair value of the long-term borrowings is determined using rates currently avaUable to the 
Company for debt with similar terms and remaining maturities. 

Junior subordinated debentures: 

The junior subordinated debentures are unsecured obligations of the Company and are 
subordinate and junior in right of payment to all present and future senior indebtedness of the 
Company. The Company has entered into a guarantee, which together with its obligations under the 
junior subordinated debentures and the declaration of trust governing the Trust provides a full and 
unconditional guarantee of the Trust's preferred securities. The fair value of junior subordinated 
debentures is determined using rates currently avaUable to the Company for debt with similar terms 
and remaining maturities. See Note 8 for additional disclosures. 

Accrued Interest: 

The cartying amounts of accrued interest approximate fair value. 

Note 16. Transactions with Related Parties: 

Loans: 

In the normal course of banking business, loans are made to officers and directors of the 
Company, as well as to their affiliates. Such loans are made in the ordinaty course of business with 
substantially the same terms (including interest rates and collateral) as those prevailing at the time for 
comparable transactions with other persons. They do not involve more than normal risk of coUectabUity 
or present other unfavorable features. An analysis of the activity during 2009 and 2008 is as follows: 

(dollars in 
thousands) 

Balance, December 31, 2007 $1,782 

New loans . 426 

Repayments (285) 

Balance, December 31, 2008 1,923 

New loans 1,684 
Repayments (207) 

Balance, December 31, 2009 $3,400 

Lease, agreement: 

The Company entered into a lease in July 2003 for approximately 3,800 square feet of office space 
owned by a limited liabUity company consisting of three shareholders/directors. The lease term 
commenced on July 10, 2003 and wUl expire on July 10, 2011. Under this lease, monthly payments for 
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the period July 10, 2009 to July 9, 2010 are $4,978. Subsequent twelve-month periods are subject to a 
five percent increase. 

The Company entered into a lease in Februaty 2005 for approximately 2,418 square feet of office 
space with the same limited liability company mentioned above. The lease term commenced on 
Februaty 1, 2005 and will expire on Januaty 31, 2015. Under this lease, monthly payments for the 
period Februaty 1, 2009 to Januaty 31, 2010 are $3,138. Subsequent twelve-month periods are subject 
to a five percent increase. 

The Company also entered into a lease in August 2008 for approximately 2,972 square feet of 
office space with the same limited liability company mentioned above. The lease term commenced on 
August 1, 2008 and wUl expire on July 31, 2013. Under this lease, monthly payments through July 2010 
are $3,839 with subsequent twelve-month periods subject to a three percent increase. 

Note 17. Commitments and Contingencies: 

Financial instruments: 

In the normal course of business, there are outstanding commitments, contingent liabUities and 
other financial instruments that are not reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements. These include commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit, which are some 
of the instruments used by the Company to meet the financing needs of its customers. These 
instruments involve, to vatying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the 
amounts recognized in the balance sheet. 

The Company's exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other parties to the 
financial instrument for these commitments is represented by the contractual amounts of those 
instruments. The Company uses the same credit policies in making commitments as it does for 
on-balance sheet instruments. These commitments as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 were as follows: 

2009 2008 

Contractual Contractual 
Amount Amount 

(dollars in thousands) 

Financial instruments whose notional or contract amounts 
represent credit risk: 
Commitments to extend credit $32,123 $29,751 • 
Standby letters of credit 2,732 3,707 

Total $34,855 $33,458 

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no 
violation of any condition established in the contract. Certain commitments have fixed expiration dates, 
or other termination clauses, and may require payment of a fee. Many of the commitments are 
expected to expire without being drawn upon; accordingly, the total commitment amounts do not 
necessarily represent future cash requirements. The Company evaluates each customer's 
creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral or other security obtained, if deemed 
necessaty by the Company upon extension of credit, is based on management's credit evaluation. 
Collateral held varies but may include deposits held in financial institutions; U.S. Treasuty securities; 
other marketable securities; accounts receivable; inventoty; property and equipment; personal 
residences; income-producing commercial properties and land under development. Personal guarantees 
are also obtained to provide added security for certain commitments. 

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the 
performance of a customer to a third party. Those guarantees are primarily issued to guarantee the 
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installation of real property improvements and similar transactions. The credit risk involved in issuing 
letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to customers. The 
Company holds collateral and obtains personal guarantees supporting those commitments for which 
collateral or other security is deemed necessaty. 

Note IS. Frederick County Bancorp, Inc. (Parent Company) Condensed Financial Information: 

Balance Sheets 

Years Ended 
December 31, 

2009 2008 

(dollars in thousands) 

Assets 
Cash $ 294 $ 724 
Receivable from subsidiaries .' 74 77 
Investment securities available-for-sale-at-fair value 300 300 
Investment in banking subsidiaty 27,033 25,605 
Investment in other subsidiaty 851 186 

Total assets $28,552 $26,892 

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity 
Payable to subsidiaries $ 2 $ — 
Short-term borrowings 500 — 
Junior subordinated debentures 6,186 6,186 
Other liabUifies 114 94 

Total liabihties 6,802 6,280 

Common stock 15 15 
Additional paid-in capital 14,702 14,690 
Retained earnings 6,987 5,939 
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 46 (32) 

Total shareholders' equity 21,750 20,612 

Total liabUities and shareholders' equity $28,552 $26,892 
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Statements of Income 

Years Ended 
December 31 

2009 2008 

(dollars in thousands) 

Dividend income $ 12 $ 12 

Interest income 9 41 

Total income 21 53 

Expenses: 
Interest on short-term borrowings 8 — 
Interest on junior subordinated debentures 404 404 
Other 61 51 

Total expenses 473 455 

Loss before provision for income taxes and equity in undistributed earnings of 
subsidiaries (452) (402) 

Provision for income tax benefits (154) (137) 

Loss before equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries (298) (265) 
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries 1,346 1,303 

Net income $1,048 $1,038 
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statements of Cash Flows 

Years Ended 
December 31, 

2008 2007 

(dollars in thousands) 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Net income $ 1,048 $ 1,038 

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash (used in) provided by 
operating activities: 
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries (1,346) (1,303) 
Decrease (increase) in receivable from subsidiaries 3 (20) 
Increase in payable to subsidiaries 2 — 
Increase in other liabUities 23 51 

Net cash used in operating activities (270) (234) 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Investment in banking subsidiary — (500) 
Investment in other subsidiaty (670) — 

Net cash used in financing activities (670) (500) 

Cash flows from financing activities: 
Proceeds from short-term borrowings 500 — 
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 10 2 
Excess tax benefit from equity-based awards — 1 

Net cash provided by provided by financing activities 510 3 

Net decrease in cash (430) (731) 
Beginning cash 724 1,455 

Ending cash $ 294 $ 724 
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BUSINESS 

General 

Frederick County Bancorp, Inc. (the "Bancorp"), the parent company for its wholly-owned 
subsidiaty Frederick County Bank (the "Bank" and together with Bancorp, the "Company"), was 
organized in September 2003. The Bank was incorporated under the laws of the State of Matyland in 
August 2000 and commenced banking operations in October 2001. The Bank, headquartered in 
Frederick, Matyland, currently operates out of its main office and three branch offices. The Bank was 
organized by. successful members of the business community in Frederick, Matyland and an experienced 
senior management team to operate as a local business bank alternative to the superregional financial 
institutions, which dominate its primaty market area. The primaty service area of the Bank is Frederick 
County, Matyland, with a secondaty market area in the surrounding counties of CarroU, Howard, 
Montgomety and Washington. The Bank's mission is to serve the needs of the business and professional 
community of Frederick County by building long-term relationships. The Bank seeks to focus on 
relationship banking, providing each customer with a number of services, familiarizing itself with, and 
addressing itself to, customer needs. The Bank also seeks to become an integral part of the community, 
a responsible citizen and make decisions based on what is good for the community. The Bank operates 
out of its main office in Frederick, Matyland, two branch offices in Frederick, Matyland and a branch 
office in Walkersville, Matyland. 

The Bancorp also has a direct subsidiaty called FCBI Statutoty Trust I. In addition, Bancorp has a 
direct subsidiaty called FCB Holdings, Inc. and an indirect subsidiaty called FCB Hagerstown, LLC, 
both of which are for the purpose of holding and managing problem loans and foreclosed real estate. 
See Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements for additional disclosures for FCBI Statutoty 
Trust I. 

Description of Services 

The Bank offers full commercial banking services to its business and professional clients. The Bank 
primarily emphasizes providing commercial banking services to corporations, partnerships, smaU and 
medium-sized businesses and sole proprietorships, as well as to non-profit organizations and 
associations and investors living or working in Frederick County. The Bank also provides residential 
mortgage loans and a full line of retail services to accommodate the individual needs of corporate 
customers and residents of the community served by the Bank. 

The Bank's commercial loan portfolio consists of term loans, lines of credit and owner occupied 
commercial real estate loans provided to primarily locally based borrowers. Traditional installment loans 
and personal lines of credit are avaUable on a selective basis. 

Services offered to our customers include, but are not limited to, the foUowing:: 

• Commercial loans for business purposes to business owners and investors for plant and 
equipment, personal lines of credit, working capital, real estate renovation, and other sound 
business purposes; 

• Commercial real estate loans on income producing properties with an emphasis on adequate 
debt service coverage and hquidity. Other criteria include satisfactoty loan to value ratios as 
determined by valuations from recognized appraisers. Loans wiU be made primarily at variable 
rates, with fixed rates in the one to five year range, with maturities normally no longer than five 
to ten years; 

• SBA guaranteed loans; 
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• Cash Management services, including sweep accounts, repurchase agreements, account 
reconciliation, credit card depositoty. Automated Clearing House origination, wire transfers, 
night depositoty; 

• Merchant credit card services for the deposit and immediate credit of sales drafts from retail 
merchants and professionals such as doctors and attorneys; 

• Commercial depositoty services including interest bearing sweep accounts; 

• Business checking accounts, and payroll service through outside payroll processors; 

• Other commercial services based on the individual needs of the customer including direct data 
services, reconciliation of accounts, night depositoty, safe deposit boxes, and business services; 

• On-line data communication with Bank customers; 

• ATM services; 

• Equity loans on real estate, home improvement loans, and overdraft checking privileges against 
preauthorized lines of credit; 

• Residential mortgage loans; and 

• Retail depositoty services including personal checking accounts, NOW accounts, regular savings 
accounts, money market savings accounts, certificates of deposit, and IRA accounts. 

The Bank also provides courier services for deposits and other banking services, to better serve 
customers who are not conveniently located near the Bank's offices. 

The direct lending activities in which the Bank engages each carries the risk that the borrowers will 
be unable to perform on their obligations. As such, interest rate policies ofthe Federal Reserve Board 
and general economic conditions, nationally and in the Bank's primaty market area have a significant 
impact on the Bank and the Bank's results of operations. To the extent that economic conditions 
deteriorate, business and individual borrowers may be less able to meet their obligations to the Bank in 
full, in a timely manner, resulting in decreased earnings or losses to the Bank. To the extent that loans 
are secured by real estate, adverse conditions in the real estate market may reduce the borrower's 
ability to generate the necessaty cash flow for repayment of the loan, and reduce the Bank's ability to 
collect the full amount of the loan upon a default. To the extent the Bank makes fixed rate loans, 
general increases in interest rates wiU tend to reduce the Bank's spread as the interest rates the Bank 
must pay for deposits increase while interest income is flat. Economic conditions and interest rates may 
also adversely affect the value of property pledged as security for loans. 

Whenever appropriate and avaUable, the Bank seeks Federal and State loan guarantees, such as 
the Small Business Administration's "7A" and "504" loan programs to reduce risks. The Bank generally 
requires personal guarantees on aU loans; approval of exceptions to this policy is documented. All 
borrowers are required to forward annual corporate, partnership and personal financial statements to 
comply with bank policy and enforced through the loan covenants documentation for each transaction. 
Interest rate risks to the Bank are mitigated by using either floating interest rates or by fixing rates for 
a short period of time. 

Consistent with the objective of the Bank to serve the needs of the business community, the Bank 
seeks to concentrate its assets in commercial loans and commercial real estate loans. To be consistent 
with the requirements of prudent banking practices, adequate assets wUl be invested in high-grade 
securities to provide liquidity and safety. 

The risk of nonpayment (or deferred payment) of loans is inherent in commercial banking. The 
Bank's marketing focus on small to medium-sized businesses may result in the assumption by the Bank 
of certain lending risks that are different from those attendant to loans to larger companies. 



Management of the Bank carefully evaluates all loan applications and attempts to minimize its credit 
risk exposure by use of thorough loan application, approval and monitoring procedures; however, there 
can be no assurance that such procedures can significantly reduce such lending risks. 

Source of Business. Management believes that the market segments targeted, small to medium 
sized businesses and professionals in the Bank's market area, demand the convenience and personal 
seivice that a smaller, independent financial institution can offer. It is these themes of convenience and 
personal service that form the basis of the Bank's business development strategies. The Bank provides 
semces from its centrally located main office in Frederick, Matyland, one branch on both the north 
and south sides of Frederick, Matyland, along with its branch in Walkersville,' Matyland, which it 
believes complement the needs of the Bank's existing and potential customers, and provide prospects 
for additional growth and expansion. The Bank has implemented a courier service to better serve local 
customers who are not conveniently located near one of the Bank's offices. Subject to obtaining 
necessaty regulatoty approvals, capital adequacy, the identification of appropriate sites, then current 
business demand and other factors, the Bank plans to establish additional branch offices over the next 
two years. There can be no assurance that the Bank will establish any additional branches or that they 
will be profitable. 

The Bank seeks to capitalize upon the extensive business and personal contacts and relationships 
of its Directors and Executive Officers to develop the Bank's customer base, as well as relying on 
Director referrals, officer-originated calling programs and customer and shareholder referrals. 

Market Area and Competition 

Location and Market Area. The headquarters for Bancorp and the Bank is located at 9 North 
Market Street, Frederick, Matyland 21701, in downtown Frederick. The Bank's main banking office is 
located at 30 West Patrick Street, Frederick, Matyland and has two branches located in Frederick, 
Matyland, one at 198 Thomas Johnson Drive, and the second at 6910 Crestwood Boulevard. The third 
branch is located in Walkersville, Matyland at 200 Commerce Drive. The primaty service area of the 
Bank is Frederick County, Matyland, wUh a secondaty market area in the surrounding counties of 
Carroll, Howard, Montgomety and Washington. Frederick County and the City of Frederick have 
experienced significant consolidation in the banking market over the past seven years. The Bank is one 
of two commercial banks based in Frederick County that have been organized since 1989, both of 
which have their headquarters in the City of Frederick. The Bank believes that market and banking 
trends provide an opportunity for the Bank to execute a focused strategy of offering personal and 
customized services and attract underserved and dissatisfied small business clients. 

Frederick County, located in central Matyland, had a 2008 population of approximately 233,000. 
This represented an increase of 5.6% from 2005. The population of Frederick County is anticipated to 
continue to grow, to approximately 266,000 in 2015 and 288,000 in 2020. The City of Frederick has 
experienced similar population growth, resulting in a 2008 population of approximately 62,000. 

The County currently has approximately 125,000 jobs. Raw employment figures in Frederick 
County do not reflect the significant intercounty commuter traffic between Frederick and surrounding 
counties. A significant portion of Frederick residents work in other jurisdictions, and a substantial 
number of Frederick County jobs are held by nonresidents. The economy of Frederick County is highly 
diversified. 
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Employment is currently distributed among the following categories: 

Percent 
Sector Of Jobs 

Construction 10.4% 
Manufacturing 6.0% 
Trade, Transportation and UtUities 17.3% 
Financial Activities 7.5% 
Services (includes business, health, hospitality and education) 42.6% 
Government 16.2% 

Competition. Deregulation of financial institutions and holding company acquisitions of banks 
across state lines has resulted in widespread, fundamental changes in the financial services industty. 
This transformation, although occurring nationwide, is particularly intense in Frederick Counfy, and the 
nearby Washington, DC and Baltimore metropolitan areas, because of the changes in the area's 
economic base in recent years and changing federal and state laws authorizing interstate mergers and 
acquisitions of banks, and the interstate establishment or acquisition of branches. 

In Frederick Counfy, Matyland, competition is exceptionally keen from large banking institutions 
headquartered outside of Matyland. In addition, the Bank will compete with other community banks, 
savings and loan associations, credit unions, mortgage companies, finance companies, the online 
divisions of out of market institutions, and others providing financial services. Among the advantages 
that many of these institutions have over the Bank are their abilities to finance extensive advertising 
campaigns, maintain extensive branch networks and technology investments, and to directly offer 
certain services, such as international banking and trust services, which will not be offered directly by 
the Bank. Further, the greater capitalization of the larger institutions allows for substantially higher 
lending limits than the Bank. Certain of these competitors have other advantages, such as tax 
exemption in the case of credit unions, and lesser regulation in the case of mortgage companies and 
finance companies. 

The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act (the "GLB Act") created a new type of regulated entity, the 
financial holding company that can offer a broad range of financial products. These new financial 
holding companies are able to affiliate with and engage in banking, securities, insurance and other 
financial activities not permitted under prior law. The GLB Act also permits banks with or without 
holding companies to establish and operate financial subsidiaries that may engage in most financial 
activities in which financial holding companies may engage. Large bank holding companies and other 
large financial service companies in particular wUl be able to take advantage of the new activities and 
provide a wider array of products than may be possible for smaUer institutions such as the Bank. 

Employees 

At Februaty 1, 2010, the Company employed sixty-five (65) persons on a fuU-time basis, two (2) of 
which are executive officers, and eight (8) persons on a part time basis. None of the Company's 
employees are represented by any collective bargaining group, and the Company believes that its 
employee relations are good. The Company provides a benefit program, which includes health and 
dental insurance, a 401k plan, life and long-term disability insurance for substantially aU full time 
employees and an incentive stock option plan for key employees and directors of the Company. 

Properties 

The main office of the Bank is located at 30 West Patrick Street, Frederick, in 3,575 square feet on 
the ground floor of a seven (7)-stoty office building, comprised of 65,477 square feet. The Company 
leases the space under a five (5)-year lease, which expires in July 2011, at a current annual rent of 



$95,833; subject to annual increases of 3% per year, plus additional rent relating to common area fees 
and taxes. The,Company has one 5-year renewal option. 

The Antietam branch is located at 198 Thomas Johnson Drive, Frederick, Matyland and consists of 
3,168 square feet in a 75,000 square foot building. The property is occupied under a five (5)-year lease, 
which expires in May 2012, at a current annual rent of $58,872; plus additional rent relating to common 
area fees and taxes. The Company has two 5-year renewal options. 

The Company leases approximately 3,800 square feet of office space located at 7 North Market 
Street, 2̂ "̂  floor, Frederick, Matyland, used for the Company's operations center, in a building owned 
by a limited liabUity company owned by three shareholders/directors. The lease term wUl expire in July 
2011. Pursuant to this lease, the current annual payments are $61,231 and are subject to annual 
increases of 5% per year. The Company has one 3-year renewal option. 

The Company leases approximately 2,418 square feet of office space at 9 North Market Street, 
Frederick, Matyland, which it uses as the headquarters location for the Bancorp and the Bank, with the 
same limited liabUity company mentioned above. The lease will expire in Januaty 2015. Pursuant to this 
lease, the current annual payments are $38,687 and are subject to annual increases of 3% per year. The 
Company has one 1-year renewal option. 

The Company also leases approximately 2,972 square feet of office space at 7 North Market Street, 
3"* Floor, Frederick, Matyland, used for administrative offices, with the same limited liability company 
mentioned above. The lease wiU expire in July 2013. Pursuant to this lease, the current annual 
payments are $46,068 and are subject to annual increases of 3% per year. The Company has two 5-year 
renewal options. 

The Company owns the premises for its branches located at 6910 Crestwood Boulevard, Frederick 
Matyland and 200 Commerce Drive, WalkersviUe, Matyland. 

The Company also owns 1.775 acres of vacant land at 8401 Progress Court in Frederick, Matyland 
which may be used for future expansion. 

The Company believes that its existing facilities outlined above are adequate to conduct the 
Company's business. 

Supervision and Regulation 

Bancorp is registered as a bank holding company pursuant to the Bank Holding Company Act of 
1956, as amended (the "Holding Company Act") and, as such, is subject to supervision and regulation 
by the Federal Reserve. As a bank holding company, Bancorp is required to furnish to the Federal 
Reserve annual and semi-annual reports of its operations and additional information and reports. 
Bancorp is also subject to regular examination by the Federal Reserve. 

Under the Holding Company Act, a bank holding company must obtain the prior approval of the 
Federal Reserve before (1) acquiring direct or indirect ownership or control of any class of voting 
securities of any bank or bank holding company if, after the acquisition, the bank holding company 
would directly or indirectly own or control more than 5% of the class; (2) acquiring aU or substantially 
all of the assets of another bank or bank holding company; or (3) merging or consolidating with 
another bank holding company. 

Under the Holding Company Act, any company must obtain approval of the Federal Reserve prior 
to acquiring control of Bancorp or the Bank. For purposes of the Holding Company Act, "control" is 
defined as ownership of 25% or more of any class of voting securities of Bancorp or the Bank, the 
.ability to control the election of a majority of the directors, or the exercise of a controUing influence 
over management or policies of Bancorp or the Bank. 
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The Change in Bank ControlAct and the related regulations of the Federal Reserve require any 
person or persons acting in concert (except for companies required to make application under the 
Holding Company Act), to file a written notice with the Federal Reserve before the person or persons 
acquire control of Bancorp or the Bank. The Change in Bank Control Act defines "control" as the 
direct or indirect power to vote 25% or more of any class of voting securities or to direct the 
management or policies of a bank holding company or an insured bank. A presumption of control 
arises under the Change in Bank Control Act where a person controls 10% or more of a class of the 
voting stock of a company or insured bank which is a reporting company under the Securities Exchange 
Act of 1934, such as the Company. 

The Holding Company Act also limits the investments and activities of bank holding companies. In 
general, a bank holding company is prohibited from acquiring direct or indirect ownership or control of 
more than 5% of the voting shares of a company that is not a bank or a bank holding company or 
from engaging directly or indirectly in activities other than those of banking, managing or controUing 
banks, providing services for its subsidiaries, non-bank activities that are closely related to banking, and 
other financially related activities. The activities of Bancorp are subject to these legal and regulatoty 
limitations under the Holding Company Act and Federal Reserve regulations. 

In addition to being a bank holding company, Bancorp has also been designated,a financial 
holding company, and as such, under federal banking law, may engage in an expanded list of non-bank 
activities. Non-bank and financially related activities of bank holding companies and financial holding 
companies, also may be subject to regulation and oversight by regulators other than the Federal 
Reserve. As of December 31, 2009, the Company was not conducting any activity for which the 
financial holding company designation is a prerequisite. 

The Federal Reserve has the power to order a holding company or its subsidiaries to terminate any 
activity, or to terminate its ownership or control of any subsidiaty, when it has reasonable cause to 
believe that the continuation of such activity or such ownership or control constitutes a serious risk to 
the financial safety, soundness, or stabUity of any bank subsidiaty of that holding company. 

The Federal Reserve has the power to prohibit dividends by bank holding companies if their 
actions constitute unsafe or unsound practices. The Federal Reserve has issued a policy statement and 
supervisoty guidance on the payment of cash dividends by bank holding companies, which expresses the 
Federal Reserve's view that a bank holding company should pay cash dividends only to the extent that 
the company's net income for the past year is sufficient to cover both the cash dividends and a rate of 
earnings retention that is consistent with the company's capital needs, asset quality, and overall 
financial condition. 

The Bank, as a Matyland chartered commercial bank which is a member of the Federal Reserve 
System (a "state member bank") and whose accounts are insured by the Deposit Insurance Fund of the 
FDIC up to the maximum legal limits of the FDIC, is subject to regulation, supervision and regular 
examination by the Matyland Department of Financial Regulation and the Federal Reserve Board. The 
regulations of these various agencies govern most aspects of the Bank's business, including required 
reserves against deposits, loans, investments, mergers and acquisitions, borrowing, dividends and 
location and number of branch offices. The laws and regulations governing the Bank generally have 
been promulgated to protect depositors and the Deposit Insurance Fund, and not for the purpose of 
protecting shareholders. 

Competition among commercial banks, savings and loan associations, and credit unions has 
increased following enactment of legislation, which greatly expanded the ability of banks and bank 
holding companies to engage in interstate banking or acquisition activities. As a result of federal and 
state legislation, banks in the Washington, DC/Matyland/Virginia area can, subject to limited 
restrictions, acquire or merge with a bank in another of the jurisdictions, and can branch de novo in 
any of the jurisdictions. The GLB Act allows a wider array of companies to own banks, which could 
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result in companies with resources substantially in excess of the Bank's entering into competition with 
the Bank. 

Banking is a business which depends on interest rate differentials. In general, the differences, 
between the interest paid by a bank on its deposits and its other borrowings and the interest received 
by a bank on loans extended to its customers and securities held in its investment portfolio constitute 
the major portion of the Bank's earnings. Thus, the earnings and growth of the Bank are subject to the 
influence of economic conditions generally, both domestic and foreign, and also to the monetaty and 
fiscal policies of the United States and its agencies, particularly, as it relates to monetaty policy, the 
Federal Reserve Board, which regulates the supply of money through various means including open 
market dealings in United States government securities. The nature and timing of changes in such 
policies and their impact on the Bank cannot be predicted. 

Branching and Interstate Banking. The federal banking agencies are authorized to approve 
interstate bank merger transactions without regard to whether such transaction is prohibited by the law 
of any state, unless the home state of one of the banks has opted out of the interstate bank merger 
provisions of the Riegle-Neal Interstate Banking and Branching Efficiency Act of 1994 (the 
"Riegle-Neal Act") by adopting a law after the date of enactment of the Riegle-Neal Act and prior to 
June 1, 1997 which applies equally to all out-of-state banks and expressly prohibits merger transactions 
involving out-of-state banks. Interstate acquisitions of branches are permitted only if the law of the 
state in which the branch is located permits such acquisitions. Such interstate bank mergers and branch 
acquisitions are also subject to the nationwide and statewide insured deposit concentration limitations 
described in the Riegle-Neal Act. 

The Riegle-Neal Act authorizes the federal banking agencies to approve interstate branching de 
novo by national and state banks in states, which specifically allow for such branching. The District of 
Columbia, Matyland and Virginia have all enacted laws, which permit interstate acquisitions of banks 
and bank branches and permit out-of-state banks to estabhsh de novo branches. 

USA Patriot Act. Under the Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools 
Required to Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism Act, commonly referred to as the "USA Patriot Act" or 
the "Patriot Act", financial institutions are subject to prohibitions against specified financial 
transactions and account relationships, as well as enhanced due dUigence standards intended to detect, 
and prevent, the use of the United States financial system for money laundering and terrorist financing 
activities. The Patriot Act requires financial institutions, including banks, to establish anti-money 
laundering programs, including employee training and independent audit requirements, meet minimum 
standards specified by the act, follow minimum standards for customer identification and maintenance 
of customer identification records, and regularly compare customer lists against lists of suspected 
terrorists, terrorist organizations and money launderers. The costs or other effects of the compliance 
burdens imposed by the Patriot Act or future anti-terrorist, homeland security or anti-money laundering 
legislation or regulations cannot be predicted with certainty. 

Capital Adequacy Guidelines. The Federal Reserve Board and the FDIC have adopted risk based 
capital adequacy guidelines pursuant to which they assess the adequacy of capital in examining and 
supervising banks and bank holding companies and in analyzing bank regulatoty applications. 
Risk-based capital requirements determine the adequacy of capital based on the risk inherent in 
various classes of assets and off-balance sheet items. The risk based capital guidelines will not be 
applicable to the Company until it has in excess of $500 million in assets, it has public debt or it 
engages in certain highly leveraged activities. 

State member banks are expected to meet a minimum ratio of total qualifying capital (the sum of 
core capital (Tier 1) and supplementaty capital (Tier 2)) to risk weighted assets of 8%. At least half of 
this amount (4%) should be in the form of core capital. Tier 1 Capital generally consists of the sum of 
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common shareholders' equity and perpetual preferred stock (subject in the case of the latter to 
limitations on the kind and amount of such stock which may be included as Tier 1 Capital), less 
goodwill, without adjustment for changes in the market value of securities classified as "available for 
sale" in accordance with FAS 115. Tier 2 Capital consists of the following: hybrid capital instruments; 
perpetual preferred stock which is not otherwise eligible to be included as Tier 1 Capital; term 
subordinated debt and intermediate-term preferred stock; and, subject to limitations, general allowances 
for loan losses. Assets are adjusted under the risk-based guidelines to take into account different risk 
characteristics, with the categories ranging from 0% (requiring no risk-based capital) for assets such as 
cash and certain U.S. government and agency securities, to 100% for the bulk of assets which are 
typically held by a bank, including certain multi-family residential and commercial real estate loans, 
commercial business loans and consumer loans. Residential first mortgage loans on one to four family 
residential real estate and certain seasoned multi-family residential real estate loans, which are not 
90 days or more past-due or non-performing and which have been made in accordance with prudent 
underwriting standards are assigned a 50% level in the risk-weighing system, as are certain privately-
issued mortgage-backed securities representing indirect ownership of such loans. Off-balance sheet 
items also are adjusted to take into account certain risk characteristics. 

In addition to the risk-based capital requirements, the Federal Reserve Board has established a 
minimum 3.0% Leverage Capital Ratio (Tier 1 Capital to total adjusted assets) requirement for the 
most highly-rated banks, with an additional cushion of at least 100 to 200 basis points for aU other 
banks, which effectively increases the minimum Leverage Capital Ratio for such other banks to 
4.0%-5.0% or more. The highest-rated banks are those that are not anticipating or experiencing 
significant growth and have well diversified risk, including no undue interest rate risk exposure, 
excellent asset quality, high liquidify, good earnings and, in general, those which are considered a 
strong banking organization. A bank having less than the minimum Leverage Capital Ratio requirement 
shall, within 60 days of the date as of which it fails to comply with such requirement, submit a 
reasonable plan describing the means and timing by which the bank shall achieve its minimum 
Leverage Capital Ratio requirement. A bank which fails to file such plan is deemed to be operating in 
an unsafe and unsound manner, and could subject the bank to a cease-and-desist order. Any insured 
depositoty institution with a Leverage Capital Ratio that is less than 2.0% is deemed to be operating in 
an unsafe or unsound condition pursuant to Section 8(a) of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act (the 
"FDIA") and is subject to potential termination of deposit insurance. However, such an institution wUl 
not be subject to an enforcement proceeding solely on account of its capital ratios, if it has entered 
into and is in compliance with a written agreement to increase its Leverage Capital Ratio and to take 
such other action as may be necessaty for the institution to be operated in a safe and sound manner. 
The capital regulations also provide, among other things, for the issuance of a capital directive, which is 
a final order issued to a bank that fails to maintain minimum capital or to restore its capital to the 
minimum capital requirement within a specified time period. Such a directive is enforceable in the 
same manner as a final cease-and-desist order. 

The forgoing capital requirements represent minimum requirements. Our state and federal 
regulators have the discretion to require us to maintain higher capital levels based upon our 
concentrations of loans, the risk of our lending or other activities, the performance of our loan and 
investment portfolios and other factors. Failure to maintain such higher capital expectations could 
result in a lower composite regulatoty rating, which would impact our deposit insurance premiums and 
could affect our abUity to borrow and costs of borrowing, and could result in additional or more sever 
enforcement actions. 

Prompt Corrective Action. Under Section 38 of the FDIA, each federal banking agency is required 
to implement a system of prompt corrective action for institutions, which it regulates. The federal 
banking agencies have promulgated substantially similar regulations to implement the system of prompt 
corrective action established by Section 38 of the FDIA. Under the regulations, a bank shaU be deemed 
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to be: (i) "well capitalized" if it has a Total Risk Based Capital Ratio of 10.0% or more, a Tier 1 Risk 
Based Capital Ratio of 6.0% or more, a Leverage Capital Ratio of 5.0% or more and is not subject to 
any written capital order or directive; (ii) "adequately capitalized" if it has a Total Risk Based Capital 
Ratio of 8.0% or more, a Tier 1 Risk Based Capital Ratio of 4.0% or more and a Tier 1 Leverage 
Capital Ratio of 4.0% or more (3.0% under certain circumstances) and does not meet the definition of 
"well capitalized;" (iii) "undercapitalized" if it has a Total Risk Based Capital Ratio that is less than 
8.0%, a Tier 1 Risk based CapUal Ratio that is less than 4.0% or a Leverage Capital Ratio that is less 
than 4.0% (3.0% under certain circumstances); (iv) "significantly undercapitalized" if it has a Total Risk 
Based Capital Ratio that is less than 6.0%, a Tier 1 Risk Based Capital Ratio that is less than 3.0% or 
a Leverage Capital Ratio that is less than 3.0%; and (v) "critically undercapitalized" if it has a ratio of 
tangible equity to total assets that is equal to or less than 2.0%. 

An institution generally must file a written capital restoration plan which meets specified 
requirements with an appropriate federal banking agency within 45 days of the date the institution 
receives notice or is deemed to have notice that it is undercapitalized, significantly undercapitalized or 
critically undercapitalized. A federal banking agency must provide the institution with written notice of 
approval or disapproval within 60 days after receiving a capital restoration plan, subject to extensions 
by the applicable agency. 

An institution, which is required to submit a capital restoration plan, must concurrently submit a 
performance guaranty by each company that controls the institution. Such guaranty shall be limited to 
the lesser of (i) an amount equal to 5.0% of the institution's total assets at the time the institution was 
notified or deemed to have notice that it was undercapitalized or (ii) the amount necessaty at such 
time to restore the relevant capital measures of the institution to the levels required for the institution 
to be classified as adequately capitalized. Such a guaranty shall expire after the federal banking agency 
notifies the institution that it has remained adequately capitalized for each of four consecutive calendar 
quarters. An institution which fails to submit a written capital restoration plan within the requisite 
period, including any required performance guaranty, or fails in any material respect to implement a 
capital restoration plan, shall be subject to the restrictions in Section 38 of the FDIA which are 
applicable to significantly undercapitalized institutions. 

A "critically undercapitalized institution" is required to be placed in conservatorship or 
receivership within 90 days unless the appropriate federal regulator, with the concurrence of the FDIC, 
formally determines that forbearance from such action would better protect the deposit insurance fund. 
Unless the FDIC or other appropriate federal banking regulatoty agency makes specific further findings 
and certifies that the institution is viable and is not expected to fail, an institution that remains critically 
undercapitalized on average during the fourth calendar quarter after the date it becomes critically 
undercapitalized must be placed in receivership. The general rule is that the FDIC wUl be appointed as 
receiver within 90 days after a bank becomes critically undercapitalized unless extremely good cause is 
shown and an extension is agreed to by the federal regulators. In general, good cause is defined as 
capital, which has been raised and is imminently avaUable for infusion into the bank except for certain 
technical requirements, which may delay the infusion for a period of time beyond the 90 day time 
period. 

Immediately upon becoming undercapitalized, an institution shall become subject to the provisions 
of Section 38 of the FDIA, which (i) restrict payment of capital distributions and management fees; 
(ii) require that the appropriate federal banking agency monitor the condition of the institution and its 
efforts to restore its capital; (iii) require submission of a capital restoration plan; (iv) restrict the 
growth of the institution's assets; and (v) require prior approval of certain expansion proposals. The 
appropriate federal banking agency for an undercapitalized institution also may take any number of 
discretionaty supervisoty actions if the agency determines that any of these actions is necessaty to 
resolve the problems of the institution at the least possible long-term cost to the deposit insurance 
fund, subject in certain cases to specified procedures. These discretionaty supervisoty actions 
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include: requiring the institution to raise additional capital; restricting transactions with affiliates; 
requiring divestiture of the institution or the sale of the institution to a willing purchaser; and any other 
supervisoty action that the agency deems appropriate. These and additional mandatoty and permissive 
supervisoty actions may be taken with respect to significantly undercapitalized and critically 
undercapitalized institutions. 

Additionally, under Section 11(c)(5) of the FDIA, a conservator or receiver may be appointed for 
an institution where: (i) an institution's obligations exceed its assets; (ii) there is substantial dissipation 
of the institution's assets or earnings as a result of any violation of law or any unsafe or unsound 
practice; (iU) the institution is in an unsafe or unsound condition; (iv) there is a willful violation of a 
cease-and-desist order; (v) the institution is unable to pay its obligations in the ordinaty course of 
business; (vi) losses or threatened losses deplete aU or substantially aU of an institution's capital, and 
there is no reasonable prospect of becoming "adequately capitalized" without assistance; (vii) there is 
any violation of law or unsafe or unsound practice or condition that is likely to cause insolvency or 
substantial dissipation of assets or earnings, weaken the institution's condition, or otherwise seriously 
prejudice the interests of depositors or the insurance fund; (viii) an institution ceases to be insured; 
(ix) the institution is undercapitalized and has no reasonable prospect that it will become adequately 
capitalized, fails to become adequately capitalized when required to do so, or fails to submit or 
materially implement a capital restoration plan; or (x) the institution is Critically undercapitalized or 
otherwise has substantially insufficient capital. 

Regulatory Enforcement Authority. Federal banking law grants substantial enforcement powers to 
federal banking regulators. This enforcement authorify includes, among other things, the ability to 
assess civil money penalties, to issue cease-and-desist or removal orders and to initiate injunctive 
actions against banking organizations and institution-affiliated parties. In general, these enforcement 
actions may be initiated for violations of laws and regulations and unsafe or unsound practices. Other 
actions or inactions may provide the basis for enforcement action, including misleading or untimely 
reports filed with regulatoty authorities. 

A.result of the volatUity and instabUity in the financial system during 2008 and 2009, the Congress, 
the bank regulatoty authorities and other government agencies have called for or proposed additional 
regulation and restrictions on the activities, practices and operations of banks and their holding 
companies. While many of these proposals relate to institutions that have accepted investments from, 
or sold troubled assets to, the Department of the Treasuty or other government agencies, or otherwise 
participate in government programs intended to promote financial stabilization, the Congress and the 
federal banking agencies have broad authority to require all banks and holding companies to adhere to 
more rigorous or costly operating procedures, corporate governance procedures, or to engage in 
activities or practices which they would not otherwise elect. Any such requirement could adversely 
affect the Company's business and results of operations. The Company did not accept an investment by 
the Treasuty Department in its preferred stock or warrants to purchase common stock, and except for 
the temporaty increases in deposit insurance for customer accounts, has not participated in any of the 
programs adopted by the Treasuty Department, FDIC or Federal Reserve. 

FDIC Insurance Premiums. The FDIC maintains a risk-based assessment system for determining 
deposit insurance premiums. Four risk categories (I-IV), each subject to different premium rates, are 
established, based upon an institution's status as well capitalized, adequately capitalized or 
undercapUalized, and the institution's supervisoty rating. During 2008, all insured depositoty institutions 
paid deposit insurance premiums ranging between 5 and 7 basis points on an institution's assessment 
base for institution's in risk categoty I (well capitalized institutions perceived as posing the least risk to 
the insurance fund), and 10, 28 and 40 basis points for institutions in risk categories II, III and IV The 
levels of rates are subject to periodic adjustment by the FDIC. Depositoty institutions will also pay 
premiums for the increased coverage provided by the FDIC. 
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Commencing in 2009, the premium rates increased by 7 basis points in each categoty for the first 
quarter of 2009. For the second quarter of 2009 and beyond, the FDIC established further changes in 
rates, and introduced three adjustments that can be made to an institution's inUial base assessment 
rate: (1) a potential decrease for long-term unsecured debt, including senior and subordinated debt 
and, for small institutions, a portion of Tier 1 capital; (2) a potential increase for secured liabilities 
above a threshold amount; and (3) for non-Risk Categoty I institutions, a potential increase for 
brokered deposits above a threshold amount. The schedule for base assessment rates and potential 
adjustment is set forth in the following table. During 2010, there has been discussion of increasing, or 
eliminating, the statutoty cap on the level of the Deposit Insurance Fund, which may result in 
continuing premium obligations even after the fund is recapitalized. 

Risk Risk Risk Risk 
Category I Category II Category III Category IV 

Initial Base Assessment Rate 12-16 22 32 45 
Unsecured Debt Adjustment (added) (5) to 0 (5) to 0 (5) to 0 (5) to 0 
Secured Liability Adjustment (added) 0 to 8 0 to 11 0 to 16 0 to 22.5 
Brokered Deposit Adjustment (added) . N/A 0 to 10 0 to 10 0 to 10 
Total Base Assessment Rate 7 to 24.0 17 to 43.0 • 27 to 58.0 43 to 77.5 

The FDIC also imposed a special FDIC insurance assessment of 5 basis points of each insured 
depositoty institution's assets minus Tier 1 capital as of June 30, 2009, but no more than 10 basis points 
times the institution's assessment base for the second quarter of 2009, which was collected on 
September 30, 2009. Additional special assessments may be imposed by the FDIC in the future. 

Additionally, the Bank has elected to participate in the FDIC program whereby noninterest 
bearing transaction account deposits will be insured without limitation through June 30, 2010. Until 
December 31, 2009, the Bank was required to pay an additional premium to the FDIC of 10 basis 
points on the amount of balances in noninterest bearing transaction accounts that exceed the existing 
deposit insurance limit of $250,000. During 2010, the fee will be 15 to 25 basis points, depending on 
the institution's risk categoty. 

Market for Common Stock and Dividends 

Market for Common Stock. Our common stock is not traded on any organized exchange, including 
The NASDAQ Stock Market. As of December 31, 2009, two market makers offered to make a market 
in the common stock in the over the counter "bulletin board" market under the symbol "FCBI". The 
common stock has traded only sporadically and in limited volume. No assurance can be given that an 
active or established trading market will develop in the foreseeable future. The following table sets 
forth the high and low bid prices for the common stock during each calendar quarter for 2009 and 
2008. These quotations reflect inter-dealer prices, without retail markup, markdown or commission, and 
may not represent actual transactions. These quotations do not necessarily reflect the intrinsic or 
market values of the common stock. As of December 31, 2009, there were 1,461,802 shares of common 
stock outstanding, held by approximately 650 shareholders of record. 

2009 . 2008 

Quarter High Bid Low Bid High Bid Low Bid 

First . .- $16.00 $10.25 $22.55 $19.50 . 
Second $12.00 $11.75 $21.25 $20.00 
Third $12.00 $ 9.00 $20.00 $18.00 
Fourth . $13.75 $10.00 $18.00 $13.35 

Dividends. Neither Bancorp nor the Bank has paid any cash dividends to date. Regulations of the 
Federal Reserve Board and Matyland law place limits on the amount of dividends the Bank may pay 
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without prior approval. Prior approval of the Federal Reserve is required to pay dividends which exceed 
the Bank's net profits for the current year plus its retained net profits for the preceding two calendar 
years, less required transfers to surplus. Under Matyland law, cash dividends may be paid without 
approval from the Department of Financial Institutions only out of undivided profits. 

State and federal bank regulatoty agencies also have authority to prohibit a bank from paying 
dividends if such payment is deemed to be an unsafe or unsound practice. Compliance with minimum 
capital requirements, as presently in effect, or as they may be amended from time to time, could limit 
the amount of dividends that the Bank may pay. As a depositoty institution, the deposits of which are 
insured by the FDIC, the Bank may not pay dividends or distribute any of its capital assets whUe it 
remains in default on any assessment due the FDIC. The Bank currently is not in default under any of 
its obligations to the FDIC. Even if the Bank has earnings in an amount sufficient to pay cash 
dividends, the Board of Directors may determine to retain earnings for the purpose of funding the 
growth of the Bank. Please refer to Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements included in this 
report for additional information. 

Issuer Repurchases of Securities During the Fourth Quarter of 2009. The following table provides 
information on the Company's purchase of its common stock during the quarter ended December 31, 
2009. 

Period 

October 1-31, 2009 . . 
November 1-30, 2009 
December 1-31, 2009 

Total Number 
of Shares 
Purchased 

— 

Average Price 
Paid per 

Share 

N/A 
N/A 
N/A 

Total Number of 
Shares Purchased 
as Part of Publicly 
Announced Plans 
or Programs (1) 

Maximum Number 
of Shares that may 
yet be Purchased 
Under the Plans 

or Programs 

146,000(2) 

(1) On June 26, 2007, the Company's Board of Directors approved a share repurchase program that 
authorizes the repurchase of up to 146,000 shares of the Company's outstanding common stock, 
subject to a maximum expenditure of $4.5 million. Repurchases under the program may be made 
on the open market and in privately negotiated transactions from time to time until June 30, 2012, 
or earlier termination of the program by the Board. 

(2) Subject to a maximum expenditure of $4.5 mUlion. Number of shares indicated is the remaining 
number of shares authorized for repurchase as of the end of the indicated period. 

Recent Sales of Unregistered Shares. None. 

Use of Proceeds. Not Applicable. 
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Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans. The following table sets forth 
information regarding outstanding options and other rights to purchase common stock granted under 
the Company's compensation plans. 

Equity Compensation Plan Information 

Plan category 

Number of securities to be 
issued upon exercise of 

outstanding options, warrants 
and rights 

Equity compensation 
plans approved by 
security holders(l) . 129,810 

Equity compensation 
plans not approved 
by security holders . 0 

Total 129,810 

Weighted average exercise 
price of outstanding options, 

warrants and rights 

(b) 

$10.02 

Number of securities remaining 
available for future issuance 

under equity compensation plans 
(excluding securities reflected in 

column (a) 

123,540 

N/A 
$10.02 

0 
123,540 

(1) Consists of the 2001 Stock Option Plan. Certain employment arrangements entered into by the 
Company, which have not been specifically approved by stockholders provide for the issuance 
under the 2001 Stock Option Plan of options to purchase common stock to certain officers. All of 
such options have been issued and are fully vested. For additional informafion, see the discussion 
of employment agreements in response to Item 10 and Note 10 to the consolidated financial 
statements. 
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Annual Meeting of Shareholders 

Tuesday, AprU 13, 2010—7:00 p.m. , 
Dutch's Daughter 
581 Himes Avenue 
Frederick, MD 21703 

Transfer Agent 

Registrar & Transfer Company 
10 Commerce Drive 
Cranford, NJ 07016 
1-800-368-5948 

Market Makers 

RBC WeaUh Management 
365 W Patrick Street 
Frederick, MD 21701 
301-662-6488 

Koonce Securities, Inc. 
6550 Rock Spring Drive, Suite 600 
Bethesda, MD 20817 
1-800-368-2806 

Availability of 10-K Report 

The annual report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission is available 
without charge upori written request to: 

William R. Talley, Jr. 
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 
Frederick County Bancorp, Inc. 
7 North Market Street 
Frederick, Maryland 21701 

Internet Access to Company Documents 

The Company provides access to its filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission at 
www.fcbmd.com. After accessing the web site, the filings are available upon selecting "About FCB" and 
then "Investor Relations." Reports avaUable include the annual report on Form 10-K or 10-KSB, 
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q or 10-QSB, current reports on Form 8-K, and aU amendments to those 
reports as soon as reasonably practicable after the reports are electronically filed or furnished to the 
SEC. 
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Principal Affiliate 

Balance Sheet 

Frederick County Bank 
9 North Market Street 
Frederick, MD 21701 __ 
301-620-1400 
Four Offices 

Assets 

Cash and due from banks . . . 
Earning assets 
Allowance for loan losses . . . 

Other assets . 

Total assets 

Net income 

December 31, 2009 

(Dollars in 

. $ 1,447 
250,953 

(3,127) 

8,298 

$257,571 

. $ 1,346 

Liabilities and Equity 

thousands) 
Total deposits 
Long-term borrowings 
Accrued interest and other 
Habilities 
Shareholders' equity 

Total Uabihties and 
shareholders' equity . . . . . . . . 

$219,769 
10,000 

769 
27,033 

$257,571 
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Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules. 

The following financial statements are included in this report: 

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2009 and 2008 
Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders' Equity for the years ended 
December 31, 2009 and 2008 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

All financial statement schedules have been omitted as the required information is either 
inapplicable or included in the consolidated financial statements or related notes. 

Exhibit No. Description of Exhibits 

3(a) Articles of Incorporation of the Company, as amended(l) 
3(b) Bylaws of the Company(2) 
4(a) Indenture, dated as of December 15, 2006 between Frederick County Bancorp, Inc. and 

U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee(3) 
4(b) Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust, dated as December 15, 2006 between 

Frederick County Bancorp, Inc. and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee, and 
Martin S. Lapera and William R. Talley, Jr. as Administrators(3) 

4(c) Guarantee Agreement dated as of dated as December 15, 2006 between Frederick County 
Bancorp, Inc. and U.S. Bank National Association, as Guarantee Trustee(3) 

10(a) 2001 Stock Option Plan(4) 
10(b) Employment Agreement between the Bank and Martin S. Lapera(5) 
10(c) Employment Agreement between the Bank and WiUiam R. TaUey, Jr.(6) 
10(f) 2002 Executive and Director Deferred Compensation Plan, as amended(7) 
10(g) Amendment No. 1 to the 2002 Executive and Director Deferred Compensation Plan(7) 
10(h) Promissoty Note with Atlantic Central Bankers Bank filed herewith 
11 Statement Regarding Computation of Per Share Income—Please refer to Note 1 to the 

consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2009. 
21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant 
23(a) Consent of Stegman & Company 
31(a) Certification of Martin S. Lapera, President and Chief Executive Officer 
31(b) Certification of WUliam R. TaUey, Jr., Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 
32(a) Certification of Martin S. Lapera, President and Chief Executive Officer 
32(b) Certification of William R. Talley, Jr., Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 

(1) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit of the same number to the Company's Quarterly Report on 
Form 10-QSB for the quarter ended March 31, 2004, as filed with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission. 

(2) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit of the same number to the Company's Quarterly Report on 
Form 10-QSB for the quarter ended September 30, 2003, as filed wUh the Securities and Exchange 
Commission. 

(3) Not filed in accordance with the provision of Item 601(b)(4)(v) of Regulation SK. The Company 
agrees to provide a copy of these documents to the Commission upon request. 

(4) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-8 
(no. 333-111761). 
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(5) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on 
September 29, 2009. -

(6) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on 
September 29, 2009. 

(7) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit of the same number to the Company's Annual Report on 
Form 10-KSB for the year ended December 31, 2004, as filed with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission. ' 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the 
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on Us behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly 
authorized. 

FREDERICK COUNTY BANCORR INC. 

By: /s/ MARTIN S. LAPERA 

Martin S. Lapera 
President and Chief Executive Officer DATE: Februaty 24, 2010 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed 
below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated on 
Februaty 24, 2010. 

Name ^ Position Signature 

Emil D. Bennett Director /s/ EMIL D . BENNETT 

John N. Burdette Chairman of the Board of 
Directors 

/s/ JOHN N . BURDETTE 

J. Denham Crum 

George E. Dredden, Jr. 

William S. Fout 

Helen G. Hahn 

WiUiam J. Kissner 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

/s/ J. DENHAM CRUM 

/s/ GEORGE E . DREDDEN, JR. 

/s/ WILLIAM S. FOUT 

/s/ HELEN G . HAHN 

/s/ WILLIAM J. KISSNER 

Martin S. Lapera 

Kenneth G. McCombs 

President, Chief Executive Officer 
and Director (Principal Executive 

Officer) 

Director 

/s/ MARTIN S. LAPERA 

/s/ KENNETH G . MCCOMBS 

Farhad Memarsadeghi Director /s/ FARHAD MEMARSADEGHI 

Raymond Raedy Vice Chairman of the Board of 
Directors 

/s/ RAYMOND RAEDY 

William R. Talley, Jr. 
Executive Vice President, Chief 

Financial Officer (Principal 
Financial and Accounting Officer) 

/s/ WILLIAM R . TALLEY, JR. 
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